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Global presence providing intelligent edge solutions (modules, connectivity,
software, platforms) to enable loT-based digital transformation




HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS'

$427.5m +14.1%
Revenues
(2017: $374.5 million)

$30.1 M +66.3%
Adjusted EBITDA

(2017: $18.1 million), with
$5.8 million less of R&D
capitalisation

$39.8m

Loss before tax
(2017: loss $56.8 million)

$3.6m
Loss in cash®
(2017: loss $27.0 million)

$3lh1 m +231%
Cloud and connectivity

revenues
{2017: $27.7 million]

$2.3m
Adjusted EBIT
[2017: loss $10.7 million}

3.8¢

Adjusted loss per share
(2017: loss per share
of 16.4 cents)}

$34.0m

Net debt at 31 December 2018

{31 December 2017:
$30.2 million)

results please refer to Note 11 to the attached financial statements.

32:: 60/0
Gross margin
(2017: 35.1%)

$33.4m

Operating loss EBIT _
[2017: loss $49.7 million] -
includes $16.3 million of
exceptional items?

{2017: $21.4 million)

27.9¢

Basic loss per share
{2017: loss per share
of 41.9 cents)

For the definition of ‘Adjusted’ figures and reconciliation from IFRS financial results to adjusted financial

2 Exceptionalitems comprised of $10.8 millionrelated to restructuring and $5.5mitlian of other exceptional

items. Please refer to Note 5B and Note 6 to the attached financiat statements.

3 Profit floss] in cash defined as Adj. EBITDA less capitalisation of internally generated assets and less
acquisition of tangible and intangible assets net of proceeds from disposal of assets - See also Note 11.
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$139.2m
Gross profit
(2017: $131.6 million)

$4n1m
Adjusted loss before tax
{2017: loss $17.8 million]

$25.8m

Cash flow generated from
operating activities

(2017: cash used in
operating activities

$4.8 million)



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

 Automotive division sold for $105 million in cash signed in  * New engagements with Qualcomm for licensing and the

July 2018 and completed on 27 February 2019 development of 5G products as well as CAT-m and NB-loT
» Continued cost optimisation, based on products and activities modules based on new Qualcomm 9205 LTE Madem
review started in late 2017 * Received certifications for:
* Integration of hardware and services businesses - clear - CAT-1, CAT 4 and CAT 11 modules, from main mobile
strategy defined to become the leader in end-to-end loT operators in the US
solutions

« New partnership with China Unicom, the telecom group,
using Telit's deviceWISE loT platform

performance modules

- Three NB-loT modules, from Deutsche Telekom

* Introduced the new smaller loT form factor module family
(x310] - meet growing demand for ultra-small, high-

GLOBAL FOOTPRINT

B

20+

Year's
Experience in loT

850+

Employees
Worldwide

Coveri {i?;g
O— . : V’L{:‘ —0
30+ 350: 400+
Tl SN -
Sales Salesforce X . Engineers
Offices lincluding distributors
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BUSINESS MODEL

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Telit develops, markets and sells cellular, Global Navigation
Satellite System IGNSS), short range wireless modules, loT
connectivity and loT platform services, to on-board edge devices
to the loT.

The Group's loT Portal delivers managed and value-added
services: application enablement: and connectivity management
in a Platform-as-a-Service {PaaS) model. In addition, the Group
offers mobile data plans in EMEA and the Americas that are
packaged and priced specificatly for loT business maodels.

Market position and competitive advantage

With extensive R&D experience, gained through thousands of
engineering staff-years, Telit has several differentiators that
increase its market position and competitive advantage including:

» Flexibility: Telit offers customers cross-technology producis
(being the first company to add non-cetlutar modules, including
short-range location technologies, to its portfolio} and services to
take a stand-alone device and connect it to the loT and to business
Apps. Our offering enables customers the flexibility of sourcing
any service or product and any combination thereof.

Telit modules are designed in a family concept: all modules in a
family have the same form factor and software compatibility but
offer different functionalities to meet the requirements of different
vertical application segments and regional configurations. The
costs that solution architects and their enterprise customers face
as they implement loT is substantial: all modules in a family are
interchangeable, so customers can easily replace the modules
with successive products without changing the application. This
reduces effort, time to market and total cost of ownership.

o Scalability: Telit produces more than 24 million modules a year,
with an extensive supply chain that includes strong relationships
with suppliers, high skilled manufacturing partners and full
control on capacity. This supply chain helps Telit to support
significant growth in the number of customers, as well as in the
capacily of each customer. Qur |oT services includes offerings for
an extensive set of application types and different deployment
scales with products and services to cover quantities from a few, to
millions of units.
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The Group operates in a highly competitive market, which
requires constant innovation. As a result, Telit continuously
makes significant investments in research and development in
its products and services in order to provide its customers with
cutting edge IoT products and capabilities, )

Telit's products and services are sold directly and indirectly,
through a network of distributors, solution providers,
engineering / design firms, device manufacturers and system
integrators.

* Innovation: Telit remains on the cutting edge of innovation for
solutions to connect 'things’ to the loT. Our ‘innovation includes
introduction of combo devices or bundles of different hardware
products as well as bundles of hardware and services. Telit
invested in developing a software suite - “oneEDGE" enabling
solutions for a new generation of Telit's cellular LPWA loT modules.
With integrated, secure, easy-to-use tools, it dramatically
simplifies design, deployment and management of loT products
and solutions, enabling a leap ahead into the new 5G super-
connected world. Combined with Telil's iSIM solution simWISE
these technologies solve long-standing challenges related to
integration, scalability, management and transtorm their
businesses. The offering is designed ta accelerate solutions to
market in anindustry that is expected to scale to three million-plus
new cellular connections per day by 2023. OneEDGE-based
products “are born” loT-ready to connect, to interact and to deliver
the next wave of productivity through successful, beyond-the-hype
digital transformation.

* Focus: Telit is 3 pure play loT business. It focuses on customer
needs to connect and maximise value from connected assets. Our
R&D and M&A elforts are focused on creating the best portfolio of
products and services to provide customers with the full solutions
necessary to effectively run and grow their businesses deriving
value from their loT deployments.



EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Overview

| am pleased to report that in 2018 Telit made
great progress towards our strategy of:

* refocusing on industrial loT products and
solutions;

 returning to double digit revenue growth;
* stabilising gross margin: and

* optimising our cost structure to focus on
growth and cash generation.

We reported significant progress in the
Group’s financial performance, returning to
double digit revenue growth (14.1%]. We saw
stabilisation of our gross margin, which was
a major objective of the turnaround plan. For
the year, gross margin was 32.6% which is
lower compared to 2017 [35.1%) but higher
compared to H2 2017 level. We also saw
major improvement in the toss in cash and
achieved a profit in cash in H2 2018.

Since | became Executive Chairman in
September 2018, the management team and
Board have concentrated on the
fundamentals of the core business. This
encompasses a further rationalisation of our
operational structure, better integration of
our products and services anda real focus on
profitability and cash generation.

We reshaped the loT Platform organisation
and go to market strategy and established
the basis for a healthier and more synergic
growth.

“loT remains a fast-growing and exciting
space. Telit is well positioned in this
market, and we are confident that our
operational performance will continue
to make good progress.”

Paolo Dal Pino
Executive Chairman

Our renewed emphasié on the core business,
the industrial loT products and services, was
the main reason why we sold the automotive
division for $105 million. The transaction
closed at the end of February this year. This
disposal is an important milestone in
executing our strategy. It f(rees wup
considerable internal resources, provides
significant cash inflow and the financial
ftexibility following the repayment of the
bank debts and resources to accelerate the
integration of our hardware products and loT
services.

Strategy

Telit is a key player in the industrial loT
market and aims at becoming a leading end-
to-end loT provider enabling enterprises
to successfully execute their digital
transformation.

We are focused on products and connected
devices to develop and maintain our leading
position in the loT market and increasingly on
integrated and value-added software and
services.

We believe in end-to-end solutions:
cannected deviceswill become more efficient
and user friendly, with software playing a key
role in simplifying enterprises approach to
loT. This inlegrated business approach
enables us to focus on synergies, leveraging
our combined offering of modules [cellular
and short range), the loT connectivity and the
loT platform and portal.
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We are focusing on our primary target, the
industrial loT market, which we believe is the
main driver of the digital transformation for
enterprises. We are committed to maintaining
and growing our leading position“in the loT
products market and increasing the value
and differentiation of our products.

The digital transformation of enterprises
globally, across both the public and private
sector, presents a significant opportunity.
Enterprises are coming to realise the benefit
and the business need to collect the right
information, process it into actionable data,
transmit that information, and act on it. In
doing so, this allows them to solve an
increasing number of problems, both legacy
issues and ones they may not have thought of
before.

Our business is at the farefront of this digital
transformation, providing the critical
ingredients to fulfit the need for real time
data from the physical world. These include
the following components:

loT Products. A diversified portfolio of
modules that allow “things™ to be connected
using the best available and most suitable
technology (Cellular, GNSS, Wi-Fi and BT/
BLE) for the application being developed.
These provide cost performance and a
significant reduction in time-to-market. The
Group markets its loT modules to numerous
market segments including asset tracking,
health care, security, telematics, point of
sale, wearables, tetemetry, industry and
energy and smart metering. In order to cater
to all these verticals, Telit continues to
develop a wide range of cellular products
from NB-loT to LTE high category and 5G
modules.
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EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT CONTINUED

We will continue the process in 2019 in order to deliver
further reduction of our cash operating expenses by

approximately $10 million.

1oT Connectivity services, These allow
scaling and globaldeploymentsof customers’
loT solutions with a single point of contact.
We deliver the ease of a single bitl and
dedicated 24/7 loT support services at
competitive rates, without the need for in-
house know-how, mapping and contracting
separately with multiple global MNQs. The
Group continues to invest and develop its loT
connectivity business, which covers all
customer connectivity needs and provides 3
recurring revenue stream.

loT Platforms services. Telit's loT platform is
an industrial grade suite of software that
provides Connectivity Management, Device
Management and Application Enablement,
which allows for the creation and
management of loT Applications, from
standalone applications such as metering
and asset tracking to more robust Industry
4.0 / lloT and factory automation solutions.
The platformisdesigned toenable customers
to manage their loT deployments through a
single loT Portal which facilitates interaction
with MNOs, dash boarding tools, securityand
administration and it ties with our modules in
the field. The Portal is a significant tool to
manage any loT deployment efficiently, save
costs, be llexiblg and solve issues remotely.

Overall, Telitenables the creation of solutions
and applications for fast deployment of loT
solutions  with complete life cycle
management {long and short-range
connectivity devices, global data plans and
l1oT platform), both in the traditional foT
verticals such as asset tracking, logistics,
remote industrial monitaring, automated
utility meter reading, telematics, mobile
health devices, and for the fast-growing
enterprise market.

Operational overview

The main corporate development was in July
2018, when we agreed to sell our automotive
division. The transaction was completed in
February 2019 and enabled us to pay off all
the HSBC and Hapoalim debt and reduce
cash operating expenses.

The disposal, that was completed in February
2019, saw Telit Belgium and its wholly owned
subsidiaries in France, Germany, Korea and
Israel, representing less than 20% of Telit's
revenue, being sold. This business had
approximately 120 employees, who support
the automotive business across three glabal
R&D and sales offices. As a result of the sale,
Telit will focus on the industrial loT and
improvement of Group wide margins. For
further information see Note 29.

In 2018, we also continued the review of the
Group's activities, cost base and product
portfolio in order to address the issues
around the decreased gross margin and
increased operating cost base. Our
achievements in this regard included;

*» We further focused on our 3G and 4G
portfolio. Several of our products and
services portfolio are now “end of life” and
we have reduced the R&D and operations
costs in maintaining products with low
contributions and reduce operating costs.
Write-off of capitalised development
assets and inventory [both finished goods
and components), where applicable from
abandoned projects or changes in our
business focus, were recorded under
restructuring costs in the income
statement.

¢ We completed the restructuring of our
short-range business and we closed
another R&D centre in Germany. We
transferred its knowledge to lower-cost
sites.

* Cost rationalisation contribute to a saving
of $12.7 million in operating cash expenses
in 2018 compared with cash expenses in
2017.
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« We will continue this process in 2019 in
order to deliver further reduction of our
cash operating expenses by approximately
$10 million. In order to achieve this, in Q4
2018, we simplified the top management
structure and rationalised the loT platform
organisation and go to market approach.

« Integration of the hardware and services
businesses - clear strategy defined to
become the leader in end-to-end loT
solutions.

* We defined our 5G strategy and engaged
with Qualcomm inorder tostart developing
our first 5G product which will address the
demand for high bandwidth products
including applications like gateway and
routers.

* We received certification from US mobile
operators for our CAT-1, CAT 4 and CAT 11
modules, and from Deutsche Telekom for
our NB-loT modules.

« Telit introduced the new smaller loT form
factor module family (x310] which will be
part of our product family and will cover
2G, CAT-M and NB-loT new products and
will meet the growing demand for ultra-
small, high-performance modules.

R&D and investment

We continue to invest across a range of
products and services, including the
development of our software suite -~
“oneEDGE" - which enables solutions for a
new generation of Telit's cettular LPWA loT
modules. With integrated, secure, easy-to-
use tools, it dramatically simplifies design,
deploymentand management of loT products
and solutions, enabling a leap ahead into the
new 5G super-connected world. Combined
with Telit's iSIM solution simWISE, these
technologies solve long-standing challenges
related to integration, scalability, and
management.



We have developed bestin class products for
our customers and will continue to be an
innovative globat leader for loT solutions.

Telit's investments in the last few years
includes not only the development of each of
the above-mentioned components but also,
increasingly, the integration of the different
components in order to transform our
products and services into a cohesive
solution which is ready to connect and send
data. Telit integration is designed to simplify
alt aspects of loT implementation for
customers and save them time and money,
reducing risks and speeding time to revenue
by easing deptoyment.

Board

During the last AGM in June 2018,
shareholders voted for three directors to be
removed from the Board. | was subsequently
appointed to the Board as non-executive
Chairman on 1 September 2018. On
7 September 2018 the Board received an
EGM requisition notice for the replacement of
further Board members. We held several
discussions with major shareholders in
respectof the proposals brought forward the
requisition notice and agreed on a separation
agreement with Yosi Fait, the prior Chief
Executive. Following the departure of
Mr. Fait, | was appointed Executive Chairman
for an interim period. Since then, we have
significantly enhanced our corporate
governance with further Board
appointments, four of whom were appointed
in October 2018. The Board now comprises of
five independent non-exscutive directors and
two executive directors.

| am confident that the current composition
of the Board will continue to strengthen and
reinforce Telit's governance and its leading
position in the global industrial loT space.

People
On behalf of all the Board, | would like to
sincerely thank all our employees worldwide

for their commitment, dedication and passion
during this year.

We know that our team make the difference
in all areas and we trust that together we will
deliver significant value creation for all our
stakeholders.

FCA Investigation

In December 2018, we announced that the
FCA has expanded the scope of the angoing
investigation announced on 27 March 2018 to
consider the accuracy of earlier
announcements by Telit, including its trading
update of 25 April 2017 and regarding the
placing, which was announced on 4 May 2017
and completed on 5 May 2017. The Group has
cooperated fully with the FCAin its enquiries
to date and will continue to do sa.

The Board of directors of Telit has changed
entirely since the events in question.

Outlook

foT remains a fast growing and dynamic
space, and Telit is well positigned to exploit
the growth opportunities in this market. We
are fully committed to delivering value and
growth for our business as a leadihg enabler
in the industrial loT space.

Following an overall improvement in 2018,
we are confident that our operational
performance in 2019 will continue to make
good progress and we wijll be better
positioned for growth opportunities.

We expect the Group's financial performance
will also significantly improve as our revenue
grows, and we see the benefits of a reduced
cost base and stabilising gross margins.

Paolo Dal Pino
Executive Chairman

16 April 2019
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FINANCE DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENT

| am pleased to report thatin 2018 Telit made a significant improvement in its financial results
based on revenue growth and a reduction in operating costs, which improved the Group's
overall efficiency without compromising its future development.

Financial results

12018 2017 Change Change
$m $m $m %
RevEnuss, 2112‘7.5_ .37435° (53.0 A61%
GF58s profill 139.2 UG 761 5:8%
Gross margin { 32%% 35.1% -
Other operating income 1 A9 2.4 (0.5] (20.8%)
Research and development o
expenses .. 1730 (66.9) (6.1) 91%
Selling and marketing expenses ~{(597) (66.8]) 7.7 11.5%
General and administrative T
expenses 126'0) (28.6) 2.6 9.1%
Exceptional expenses related :
to restructuring _f10.8) (16.0) 5.2 32.5%
J5%9] (5.4) (0.1 1.8%
L3000 s 1216} 18633%
. J@%) . d27.0) 23 186T%
3301 49.7 A83) .. 32.8%
I A 1 )
(398 T dseta)

e AL

ek, ..

T

§13:47;

AL TR

AR

768%

"We have made a significant
improvement in overall efficiency
without compromising future

development.”

Yariv Dafna
Finance Director

$427.5m

Group revenues
{2017: $374.5 million)

e i ——— —

Adjusted EBIT is defined as Earnings Before Interest, Tax, share based payment expenses, amortisation of acquired intangibles, impairment of intangible assets,
exceptional expenses relatad to restructuring and other exceptional items; Adjusted EBITDA as Adjusted EBIT plus depreciation and other amortisation; Adjusted Profit
(Lossl before tax as Profit before tax plus share based payment expenses, amortisation of acquired intangibles, impairment of intangible assets, exceptional expenses
related to restructuring and other exceptional items: Profit {loss] in cash defined as Adj. EBITDA less capitalisation of internally generated assets and {ess acquisition of
tangible and intangible assets net of proceeds from disposal of assets.
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Reconciliation between operational and adjusted operational results

Impairment Share
of internally based Amortisation Changein :
2018 Exceptional  generated payment  ofintangible deferred 2018
reported items 3ssets  expenses acquired tax adjusted

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
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Gross margin 32.6% 32.6%
Other .
operating
income 1.9 - = - - - 1.9
Research and
development .
expenses (73.0} - 10.2 2.0 2.1 - (58.7)
Selling and
marketing
expenses (59.1] - - 2.7 1.3 - {55.1)
General and
administrative
expenses {26.0) - - 1.0 < - {25.01
Exceptional
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loT services .

The 23.1% increase in Cloud and connectivity
revenues is encouraging after the
disappointing growth of last year. In the loT
connectivity, we enjoyed another year of fast

Revenues

Group revenues increased to $427.5 million
{2017; $374.5 million), an increase of 14.1% of
which Cloud and connectivity revenues were
$34.1 million (2017: $27.7 million), an
increase of 23.1%.

growth in the US. The US recovered from the

lastyear but still suffers from a faster decline
in the average revenue per user [ARPU),
which was traditionally higher than in EMEA,
In the oT Cloud revenue, we faced a slower
than expected growth for lack of ramp up of
certain projects which led us to be more
selective in engagThg for small projects or
companies.

Hardware [modules)

Revenue growth was back to double digit
fuelled by growth in all regions with America
showing the strongest growth with revenues
up to $192.4 million [2017: $160.2 million). We
are in a good position to continue to grow our
revenue in America at a higher rate than in
other markets.

Telit's activities in the loT services business
unit have grown inrecentyears and, although
operational results from this business unit
still comprise less than 10% from the Group’s
results, it focuses more and more on loT
services as one of the future growth engines.

Telit Communications PLC Annual Report 2018

growth in EMEA which was offset by slower’

Americas

Revenues were up to $192.4 million {2017:
$160.2 million), slightly ahead of our
expectations. The overall market for LTE
products continued to grow, with additional
certifications of our CAT-1"and CAT-M1
products and the major US carriers plans to
focus exclusively on LTE. We are in a good
position to continue grow our revenue in this
market at higher rate than in other markets.

EMEA

Revenues increased to $159.6 million {2017:
$147.4 million). EMEA continues to be
'i‘r'npacted by cellular technology stagnation.
The uncertainty of the timing of MNOs moving
to new LTE technologles remains a
significant factor but it'is now expected that
low category LTE deployment that started in
2018, will ramp up in 2019.
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FINANCE DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT CONTINUED

Telit's portfolio for this region includes a full set of products supporting the different LTE
technologies with and without fall-back to the legacy 26 and 3G networks, to allow customers
to go through this uncertain period with as little disruption as passible to the serviceability of
their devices in the field.

APAC

Revenues were up to $75.5 million (2017: $66.9 million), back to growth after the decline we
saw in 2018. The growth was slightly below our expectation mainly as a result of the slower
than expected deployment of a significant utility project, which impacted our overall
performance since the end of 2017.

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker in the Group. The chief operation decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments
and makes strategic decisions, has been identified as the Executive Chairman / Chief
Executive.

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss, is
presented below:

2018

Revenue

External sales:

Sales of HW products
Sales of Connectivity and |OT platforms services
Sales of licences and other services
Inter-segment sales'
o i»v'ﬁ ’*

l’z-
e
¥
5
(4

Result
Gross profit

Gross margin
Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of internally generated development
costs

Segment EBIT ‘ | 2% C&'&;A’S:SMMIQ mL

Unallocated expenses?
Operating loss
Finance income
Finance costs % ~_, £
Loss before income taxes vﬁmtb :
Income taxes ‘dﬂﬂw{zr
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1oT Products loT services  Consolidated

2017 $m $m $m
Revenue
External sales:

. Sales of HW products 343.7 - 343.7
Sales of Connectivity and
10T platforms services - 27.7 27.7
Sales of licences and other services - 3.1 3.1

lnler segmenlsales‘ b e el . -

“I_{? 130 sjuc‘%‘eﬁsms

Result

Gross profit 113.7 17.9 131.6
Gross margin 33.1% 57.8% 35.1%
Impairment of goodwill (1.6) - {1.6)
Impairment of internally generated

development costs : (6.4) {2) (8.4)
Segment EBIT 89) {17.5) {26.4)

{2.6%] (56.7%)

Unallocated expenses? ) (23.3)
Operating toss 149.7)
Finance income } 0.2
Finance costs - (7.3]
Loss before income taxes (56.8)
Income taxes _ 4.6

R T A T T

Lass fo‘lhe iod Npuths

3 . +
1 There are no transactions between business unit segments.

2 Unallocated expenses principally "including general and administrative expenses such as director’s
compensalion, salaries of certain senior executives, prolessional lees and other expenses which cannot be
directly allocated to one of the segmeats.

The split of revenues by geographical markets is as follows:

2017 % of total

. $m revenue Change
Americas ..160.2 42.8% 201%
EMEA S kIS T4 39.4%. 8.3%.
APAC ,,fg’%& mma&%:s,ww . 669 17.8% 129%

Telit Communications PLC Annual Report 2018
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FINANCE DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT CONTINUED

©

We have taken several actions in order to
rationalise our operating cost structure and
improve future profitability.

Gross margin and gross profit

Gross margin was 32.6% {2017: 35.1%). The year-on-year decline was expected, and is mainty
due to the faster shift from mature technologies with higher gross margins, te LTE, which isa
relatively new technology, with lower margins at this stage. Whilst we are expecting future
gross margins to remain in the low thirties, we also expect LTE product margins to improve
and take the margin slightly up.

This improvement results from the maturity and growth in volumes as well as the additional
improvement coming from the divestment of the automative business, which traditionally had
a lower gross margin.

Graoss profit was $139.2 million (2017: $131.6 million), an increase of 5.8%, derived from the
growth in revenue which was offset by the decline in the gross margin.

Operating expenses

¢ Gross R&D expenses as follows:

2017

$m

Gross research & development expenses’. 714
Less - capitalisation? {31.1)
Add - amortisation 18.2
Add - impairment? 8.4
ReSearenandevetonment net | = )

1 Gross research and development expénses declined by $0.5 million following the implementation of our
cost reduction ptan.

2 The amount capitalised in respect of internally generated development assets decreased by 19%. As a
percentage of gross R&D expenses, it decreased from 43.6% in 2017 to 35.7% in 2018. The amount
capitalised is mainly related to the development of high category LTE products for both industrial and
automotive which were disposed in February 2019) and tow categories including the CAT-M1 and NB-loT
for the industrial loT.

3 Anon cashimpairment loss on capitalised development assets, mainly as a result of decrease in future
revenues from several products and products that were put at “end of life” status.
» Selling and marketing expenses decreased by 11.5% to $59.1 million {2017: $66.8
million). The decrease derived from the continued implementation of the cost saving
plan.

« General and administrative expenses decreased by 9.1% to $26 million [2017: $28.4
million]. Excluding former CEQ’s compensation in both years suggest a saving of
$1.7m, derive mainly from the continued implementation of the cost saving plan.

» Exceptional expenses related to restructuring:

Following the review of the Group's activities, cost base and product portfolia, we took
several actions in order to rationalise our operating cost structure and improve future
profitability as part of a restructuring plan, The restructuring plan aimed to cut
approximately 10% of the annualised cash operating expenses in 2018.

The restructuring plan was extended in November 2018 in order to achieve additional

reduction of $10 million in cash operating expenses in 2019 in addition to the reduction in
operating expenses as a result of the automotive sale.
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Restructurung costs recogmsed include the following:

2017
$m
Termination fees and other employees related costs! 1.9
Accelerated amortisation of capitalised development
assets related to restructuring? 6.2
Accelerated amortisation of acquired technology
related to restructuring? 1.8
Provision forri'r'npai‘rmenl of goodwill related to
restructuring? . 0.3
Provision of inventory items related to restructuring®’ 5.7 '
Other expenses related to reslruclurmg - o ﬁ&{gﬁ»aio .
- : ] s 08 B W ‘“”15 5

1 Related mainly to the headcount reduction following the closing of the R&D centre in Germany and the
reduction in the headcount at the loT services. The amount was affecied by the reversal of unvested share
based payment charges related 1o unvested options and RSUs issued lo these employees in the amount of
$0.8m.

2 Non cash write-off of capitalised development assets, acquired technology and goodw:ll( which recorded
under resiructuring costs following a ctassification of several products and services as “end of life” or for
being abandon as part of the overall restructuring plan.

3 The rationalisation of the product portfotio made some inventory (both finished goods and components}
redundantwhich resulted in non cash impairment charges.

4 Including mainly consultancy costs related to restructuring and other costs related to closing of offices in
Germany and in loT services.

Other exceptional items:

2017

$m

Integration and transaction costs' 5.0

Legal and other expenses related to crisis management? 1.5

Net expenses lgain] in relation to the departure

of the former CEOs? .2)

Legal expenses related to BAMES* - -
0.1 "

""" ﬁf‘?’ JSlS‘QW}B 354

1 Costs related mainly o the autamative sate which was signed in 2018 and completedin February 2019 and
include mainly legal and other costs related to the transaction and the reorganisation. [2017: related
mainly to the GainSpan integration and restructuring, }

~

Costs related mainly to tegal and advisory costs in association with the crisis management started in 2017
following the departure of former CEQ and the ongoing FCA investigation.

3 Net expenses lgain) were affected by the reversal of unvested share based payment charges related to
unvested options and RSUs issued to CEQsinthe amount ol $1.3m (2017; $2.5 million]. For more detalls see
also remuneration report.

4 Costs related todelending the Group positionin BAMES caseincluding the settlernent fees of approximately
$1 million - see also note 29.
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FINANCE DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT CONTINUED

&)
In 2018 loss in cash was $3.6 million, a significant

improvement over the $27.0 million loss in cash of 2017.
In H2-2018, the Group moved to a positive profit in cash.

Finance costs, net

.

‘2018 2017

. ~$?1 $m Difference
Non-cash expenses related to effective rate — }
interest on preferred loan 12 11 0.1
Interest expense on bank loans and overdrafts' { -~ 3 2.3 0.8
Bank fees and other bank expenses ) 1.2 -
Exchange rate differences, net? o 3 2.6 {2.2)
Loss from Hedging Transactions? e - 0.6
Interestincome C o) o) -
o6l RS N RO S

1 Interest expenses related to loans and overdralts increased by $0.8 mitlion, due to an increased utilisation of
our bank facilities and anincrease in the interest rate.

2 Thedeclinein the exchange rate differences derive mafnly from the decrease in the euro over the US dollars.

Due to the uncertainty around the Euro currency. the company entered into a hedging arrangement to protect
the operating costs denominated in Euro - as the Euro currency agz_x_fnsl the USD was lawer than expected, the
hedging arrangement resulted in a loss. ’

Fotlowing the repayment of our bank debt in February 2019, we expect a decline in our
financing costs in 2019.

Profitability

We measure our profitability based on adjusted figures to eliminate exceptional and share
based payment charges. The adjusted figures exclude: a share-based payment charge of
$5.7 million, before feversal of unvested awards related to employees who left in 2018 of
$2.1 million {2017: $4.3 million}; restructuring costs of $10.8 million (2017: $16.0 million};
other exceptional expenses of $5.5 million (2017: $5.4 million); impairment of capitalised
development assets of $10.2 million (2017: $8.4 million] and amortisation of acquired
intangible assets of $3.4 million (2017 $4.8 million].

In 2017, we adopted the “profit in cash” performance measure which together with revenue
and adjusted EBITDA, are the most important KPIs. The profit in cash is defined as Adjusted
EBITDA less R&D capitalisation less capital expenditures. In 2018 loss in cash was
$3.6 million, a significant improvement over the $27.0 million loss in cash of 2017. In H2-2018,
the Group moved to a positive profitin cash.

Adjusted EBITDA increased to $30.1 mitlion (2017: $18.1 mitlion].
Adjusted EBIT was $2.3 million [2017: loss $10.7 million). The operating loss was $33.4 million
(2017 loss of $49.7 million). This improvement was mainly derived from the increase of

$7.6 million in gross profitand the decrease of $5.1 million in the exceptional expenses related
to restructuring.

Adjusted net loss for the year was $4.9 mitlion (2017: loss of $20.5 million) and reported net
toss was $36.4 million (2017: loss of $52.2 million).

Adjusted basic loss per share was 3.8 cents (2017: loss per share 16.4 cents). Basic and diluted
loss per share was 27.9 cents (2017: basic and diluted loss per share was 41.9 cents].
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Dividend

The Board is not proposing to pay a dividend for the period. The Board are considering all
options in relation to the cash received from the sale of the automotive division, being mindful
of the investment requirements of the Group.

Net debt and cash flow
As at 31 December 2018, net debt was $34.0 million {2017: $30.2 million].

Cash flow provided from operating activities of $25.8 million (2017: cash used in operaling
activities of $4.8 million). The significant improvement of $30.6 million was mainly driven by
the overall improvement in the financial performance and an improvement in the working
capital level. The operating cash flows before movements in working capital was $14.8 million
compared with $0.2 million in 2017,

Cash flow used in investing activity was $33.7 million (2017: $51.9 million). The decrease was
mainly due to no acquisition expenditure in 2018 [2017: $6.7 million) and the decrease in
capitalised development expenditure.

Cash flow from financing activity was $2.2 million {2017: $72.2 million). The decrease was
mainly due to issue of new shares of $49.7 million that took place in 2017 and the remaining
mainly from the net increase in borrowings.

Balance sheet A
Internatly generated development assets, net

As at 31 December 2018, the net amount of internally generated development assets
decreased by $7.4 million to $67.3 million (2017: $74.7 million). The split of the net assets by
technology is as follows:

Internally generatedt Internally generated
developmentassetsinat development assets, net

Technology as at:mDetembenzma as at 31 December 2017 Change year over year

s ARy $m % $m %
4G fiﬁ&f#l}ﬁmﬁfﬁij % 9.7 67% (1.8) (4%
3G R REAR0% 9.4 12% (2.8) (29%)
Other loT Modules b‘}% Esqm“m %3 69 9% 1.2 17%

loT Services &MMA@E’ : 8.7 12% (4.0) 146%)
ergqgwa‘h«fﬁwﬂz 5%100% {24 T TS 00 %A PR U 70 S TSH10%)

Internally generated development assets that completed the development phase, moved to
mass production phase and which have started to be amortised, increased to 63% of the total
“internally generated development assets (2017: A?"/ol

Net assets in development process oy
{not amortised yet)
Net assetsin amornsatlon phase

Telit Communications PLC Annual Report 2018
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FINANCE DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT CONTINUED

The net assets that are in the development phase, before being amortised, are mainly 4G
products and loT services software. i

Weighted T R e
average of 3 nally generated
- remaining Net assetsin ‘§% ﬁlopg@gptgssets.",
Net assets started yearstobe developmentprocess ,as’ét’}ﬁbecem_b?l"
Technology to be amortised amortised [not amortised yet} 'mggg—.%;a; ]
$m % tm % mﬁﬂsm
4G 30.7 72% 3.4 17.2 70%
3G 6.3 15% 2.6 0.3 1%
Other loT . R
V3
Modules 2.8 % 4.2 53 o1 BTSN
ToTiServices e 122 1T B rnd 6wt 280 MR R 1210) AR % md e T e

Total equity

Net shareholders’ equ"ity decreases from $124.5 million as at 31 December 2017 to
$86.5 million as at 31 December 2018 mainly due to the net loss in 2018.
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KEY INDICATORS

The Board and
management has several
indicators to measure its
financial and operational
performance. Among all
indicators management
defines the following as
the key indicators, in order
to measure growth and
profitability.

Cloud & Connectivity Revenues

$34.1m

2018

$27.7m

2017

Loss in cash*

($3.6)m

2018

($27.0)m

2017

4 Profit {loss) in cash defined as Adj. EBITDA less capitalisation of internally generated assets and less
acquisition of tangible and intangible assets net of proceeds from disposal of assets - See also nole 11.

Revenues

$427.5m

2018

$374.5m

2017

Gross Profit

$139.2m

2018

$131.6m

2017

Hardware Revenues

$391.5m

2018

$343.7m

2017

Adjusted EBITDA

$30.1m

2018

$18.1m

2017

Yariv Dafna
Finance Director

16 April 2019
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Telit has a risk management process to identify,
assess and monitor the principal risks that we face

as a business.

During 2018 we have performed a detailed
assessment of those risks that we believe
could seriously affect the Group's business
model, future performance, solvency or
liquidity.

The Board has overall responsibility for risk
management and internal controls and is
fully supported by the Audit Committee. The
key features of our system of internal control
and risk management, including those
relating to the financial reporting process,
are:

* a management structure to enable

effective decision making

« acompliance officer with responsibility for
the day-to-day operation of the Group's
compliance process

» clearly defined financial
business planning and
processes and systems

reporting,
forecasting

¢ monthly review of key performance
indicators and regular service of
performance against budget

» updated  whistleblowing policy to
encourage a culture of openness with
regards to risks.

We set out below our principal risks and how
we are managing or mitigating those risks.
The Board considers these to be the most
significant risks faced by the Group however
they do not comprise all the risks associated
with our business and are not set out in
priority order. Additional risks not presently
known to management, or currently deemed
to be less material, may also have an adverse
effect on the business.

For financial instrument risk management
and objectives please see note 27 of the
financial statements.

Market growth

Telit's future success is dependent largely on
the continued growth in the averall size of the
loT market which is, in turn, a derivative of
the number of loT modules sold and the
average selling price of an loT module. A
decline in either the average selling price or
the number of units sold which is not matched
by a proportionate increase in the other, or 3
decline in both the average selling price and
the number of units sold, would decrease
Telit's addressable market and its growth
opportunities. Market growth is also a key
driver of our strategy to upsell loT services.
Inability to scale our loT services, which is
still a loss-making activity, will negatively
affect our future performance.

Telit is well positioned to detect any change
within the m2m and loT markets, accordingly,
the management team reviews the strategy
and long-term product development plans to
test that Telit is developing the technology to
meet the future needs of the industry. During
2018, Telit's management continued its
thorough review of its product portfolio with
a view of reducing the overall number of
product variants and focusing on those that
are either currently or are expected to be in
the future, high runners.

Competition

Telithas experienced and expects to continue
to experience strong competition from a
number of companies including competitors
that offer low cost products. Telil's
competitors may announce or develop new
products, services or enhancements that
better meel the needs of customers or
changing industry standards. In addition,
new competitors or alliances among
competitors could emerge. Increased
competition may cause greater than expected
price reductions, reduced gross margins and
loss of market share, any of which could have
a material adverse effect on Telit’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.
Some of Telit's competitors and potential
competitors have greater financial resources
than Telit and therefore may be able to
respond more quickly than Telit to changes in
customer requirements and devote greater
resources to the enhancement, promotion
and sale of its products.
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Telit has mechanisms and strategies in place
to mitigate the challenges provided by
competitors  including expanding into
connectivity services, creating a
differentiator in our offering to customers.
We continually review our trading channels
and  customer  relationships. More
specifically, we developed in the last few
years the loT services which not only provide
additional streams of revenues but also help
us to differentiate us from our hardware-only
competitors.

Key talent

Telit depends on the services of its key
technical, sales, marketing and management
personnel. The loss of the services of any of
these persons could have a material adverse
effect on Telit's business, results of
operations and financial condition. Telit's
success is also highly dependent on its
continuing ability to identify, hire, train,
motivate and retain highly qualified technical,
sales, marketingand management personnel
in its various geographical locations.
Competition for such personnel can be
intense, and Telit cannot give assurances
that it will be able to attract or retain highly
qualified technical, sales, marketing and
management personnel in the future.

The Board recognises the importance of
retaining critical staff to ensure effective
delivery of its strategy. A range of controls
are used to manage this risk effectively. The
executive directors and management meet
regularly to review and monitor people
policies and procedures, talent development
and succession planning. We ensure
compensation is competitive, with a balance
of short-term and long-term incentives. We
invest in training and development of our
staff. Objectives and performance reviews
ensure appropriate behaviours and delivery
of results.



Financing

Following the sale of the automotive division
in February 2019, Telit has repaid all previous
credit facilities and since then relies on its
cash balance to finance its working capital
needs. The Group will seek to rebuild
commercial credit facilities in order to free
some of its cash and increase its financing
flexibility. There is always a risk that this type
of financing will not be available to companies
including Telit in the future. Should such
finance not be available there is a risk that
lack of enough cash available as financing
source, could have a material adverse effect
on Telit's business, financial condition or
results of operations.

Product lifespan, changesin
standards and technology and
product and service development

The Groupisina marketthat sees continuous
technological development and therefore the
future success of the Company depends,
among other things, on Telit’s ability to:

¢ enhanceitsexisting products and services,

while maintaining a portfolio with a
manageable size.

address the increasingly sophisticated and
varied needs of its customers.

* respond to technological advances and
emerging  industry  standards  or
government regulations and practices on
a cost-effective and timely basis.

¢ execute its strategy to upsell its loT
services to enable end to end solutions.

Developing Telit's technology, product and
service range entails significant techaical
and business risks. The Group may use or
procure new technologies ineffectively or fail
to adapt its systems to customer
requirements or emerging industry
standards. If Telit faces material delays in
introducing new products, services or
enhancements, it may be at a significant
competitive disadvantage. Additionally, Telit
may face regulatory hurdles with respect to
its products and services which could affect
Telit’s ability to supply such products and
services or which could expose Telit to
liability which could have a material adverse
effect on Telit's business, financial condition
or results of operations.

The markets for Telit's products and services
are characterised by rapidly changing
technology, evolving industry standards and

increasingly sophisticated customer
requirements. Changing customer
requirements and the introduction of

products embodying new technology and the
emergence of new industry standards can
render Telit's existing products obsolete and
unmarketable and can exert downward
pressure on the pricing of existing products.
Telit's success depends on its ability to

anlicipate changes in technology and in

industry standards and to successfully
develop and introduce new, enhanced and
competitive products and services on a
timely basis. Telit cannot give assurances
that it will successfully develop new products
or enhance and improve its existing products
and services, that new products and services
and enhanced and improved existing
products and services will achieve market
acceptance or that the introduction of new
products and services or enhancing existing
products and services by others will not
render Telit's products obsolete. Telit's

‘inability to develop products and services

that are competitive in technology and price
and meet customer needs could have a
material adverse elfect on Telit's business,
financial condition or results of operations.

In order to address the concerns above, Telit
is constantly monitoring the market, its
customers’ current and potential needs and
technological advances and changes in
standardsintheloT. Aswell, Telit continuously
invests in developing more products and
services in order to mitigate products
concentration risks and to remain an loT
market leader.

Dependency upon key intellectual
property and risk of infringement

Telit's success depends in part onits ability to
protect its rights in its intellectual property.
Telit relies upon various intellectual property
protections, including patents, copyright,
trade-marks, trade secrets and contractual
provisions to preserve its intellectual
property rights. Despite these precautions, it
may be possible for third parties to obtain
and use Telit's intellectual property without
its authorisation.

The industry in which Telit operates has
many participants that own, or claim to own,
proprietary intellectual property. In the past
Telit has received, and in the future, may
receive assertions or claims from third
parties alleging that Telit's products or
services violate or infringe their intellectual
property rights. Telit may be subject to these
claims directly or through indemnities
against these claims which Telit has provided
to certain customers. Rights to intellectual
property canbe difficult toverifyandlitigation
may be necessaryto establish whetheror not
Telit has infringed the intellectual property
rights of others. Telit is currently involved in
certain intellectual property litigation {see
note 22 of the Financial Statements).

In the event of an unfavourable outcome in
such a claim and Telit's inability to either
obtain a license from the third party or
develop a non-infringing alternative, then
Telit's’ business, operating results and
financial condition may be materially
adversely affected and Telit may have to
restructure its business.

The General Counsel and Finance Director
along with external IP experts have
responsibility for the management of the
commercial aspects of the Group's |P
matters ensuring our ability to use our IP is
not restricted by infringement claims. We
have policies, controls and processes to
ensure the originality and confidentiality of
intellectual property created internally,
including in relation to the use of open source
software,

Dependency on suppliers

Our products include components some of
which are purchased from a sfngle, or a
limited number of, suppliers. From time to
time, certain components used in our
products have been, and may be in the future,
in short supply and shortages in allocation of
components may result in a delay in fitling
orders from our customers, which may
adversely affect our business and our
reputation. In addition, suppliers may decide
to exit the market segment that caters to
Telit's business and in such a case, Telit's
business may be adversely affected if it
cannot find a suitable replacement.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

We also depend on a timited number of
manufacturing partners that purchase
components and manufacture our products.
If these manufacturers do not manufacture
our products properly or cannot meet our
needs in a timely manner, we may be unable
to fulfil orders received from our customers
and our revenues may decrease accordingly.
In addition, Telit's failure to maintain the
relationships with existing manufacturer
partners could have a material adverse
effect ot its business and finandial condition.

We may encounter the following risks due to
our reliance on such manufacturer partners
- the absence of guaranteed or adeguate
manufacturing capacity; potential violations
oflaws and regulations by our manufacturers
thal may subject us to additional costs for
duties, monetary penalties, and damage to
our  reputation;  potential  business
interruption due to unexpected events such
as natural disasters, labour unrest or
geopolitical events; reduced control over
delivery schedules, production levels,
manufacturing yields, costs and product
quality; the inability of our contract
manufacturers to secure adequate volumes
of components in a timely manner at a
reasonable cost; and unexpected increases
in manufacturing costs.

In order to mitigate these risks, we are
maintaining relationships with as many
suppliers as possible. In relation to
n;anufacturing, Telit mainlains relationships
with secondary manufacturing partners to
pravide backup manufacturing in the event of
inability to manufacture via Telit's primary
partner.

System failures and breaches of
security

The successful operation of Telit's business
depends upon maintaining the integrity of
Telit's  computer, communication  and
information technology systems. However,
these systems and operations are vulnerable
to damage, breakdown or interruption from
events which are beyond Telit's control. Any
such damage or interruption could cause
significant disruption to the operations of
Telit. This could be harmful to Tetit's business,

financial condition and reputation and could
deter current or potential customers from
using its services. There can be no guarantee
that Telit's security measures in relation to
its computer, communicationand information
systems will protect it from all potential
breaches of security, and any such breach of
security could have an adverse effect on
Telit's business, results of operations or
financial condition.

In order to mitigate this risk Telit continuously
investsintheimprovement andstrengthening
of the relevant systems in order to minimise
the risk of system failures. This includes a
full set of security policies, tools and software
to identify security weakness and a strong IT
team which is responsible for close
fonitoring the security of all our IT systems.

Data security and data privacy

Telit holds and processes dala and
information that could be of interest to third
parties with criminal intentions. Telit
prioritises maintaining and improving
measures to protect information systems
and the data stored in them. This includes
careful design of the IT system architecture,
consistent risk management, regular tests
and automatic monitoring of applications and
systems in order to identify attacks at an
early stage and achieve the highest possible
level of data security and operational
reliability.

As an international business, Telit holds,
handles, receives and transmits personal
data in, to and from different a number of
locations. Failure to comply with legal or
regulatory requirements relating to data
security or data privacy may result in
reputational damage, regulatory action,
fines and litigation, which would adversely
impact Telit's reputation and its financial
results.

Telit's ongoing data privacy compliance
efforts include: - (a] assessing its exposure
and handling of personal data; [b} maintaining
appropriate  policies; el  reviewing
contractual commitments with third parties;
and (d) raising awareness among statf.

Telit Communications PLC Annual Report 2018

Reputation and ethics

The incident in August 2017 in relation to
Telit's previous CEQ has highlighted to the
Board how incidents of ethical misconduct
can damage the Group’s reputation and lead
to consequential damage to financial
performance.

The international nature of Telit's business
means it is subject to a complex and rapidly
changing legal and regulatory environment.
Non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, including anti-bribery and
corruption and anti-fraud laws, trade
restrictions or other sanctions and action or
inactions which is perceived by stakeholders
to be inappropriate could lead ta loss of trust,
damage to our reputation, resutt in litigation,
regulatory action, fines and other penaliies.

The Board is committed to improving
corporate responsibility at Board level and
throughout the Group and has instigated a
programme of change to ensure
transparency, compliance and a culture of
openness. This includes greater diversity at
Board level, undertaking reqular risk
assessments, refreshing internal policies in
respect of anti-bribery and whistleblowing,
and the use of internal and external
investigations and audits.

Brexit

The UK's decision to exit the European Union
in 2016 created significant uncertainty. This
uncertainty has yet to recede as political
negotiations within the UK and between the
UK and EU have yet to reach a conclusion and
the future arrangements, timeframes and
econornic landscape remain unclear.

Management receive regular reports on
Brexit and closely monitor the changing
economic situation in the UK. The Group has
a small proportion of sales fram and in the
UK and low number of customers based in
the UK. In addition, the Group’s main
functional currency and presentational
currency are both US dollars which largely
mitigates our exposure to adverse foreign
currency impact arising on Brexit.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As Telit continues to
develop and provide ever-
better technology and
services in the Internet of
Things sector to a world-
wide customer base, it
also believes that it has
a social responsibility to
-ensure that its business
dealings are ethical.

“We work hard to promote a
marketplace that does not tolerate
social abuses or unethical business.”

Yariv Dafna
Finance Director

Human resources

Our employees are at the heart of our
business and we recognise that our
employees play a part in the delivery of our
goals. We aim to attract, retain, and motivate
the best people and take responsibility for
staff welfare, training and development. in
addition, Telit aims to be an inclusive and
professional workplace. Telit is opposed to
discrimination and is committed to sustaining
equality in all employment matters.

Business ethics

We believe that personal and business
integrity is an essential part of delivering
strong financial performance and we expect
every person working for or on behalf of Tetit
to operate to a high ethical standard. Telit's
efforts to operate ethically, include on-going
projects to detect and prevent anti-bribery
and corruption, modern slavery and ethical
sourcing of materials. In addition, Telit
recognises thatas a major, globalcorporation
it has a duty to conduct its business with
concern on its impact on the environment.

For more information about Telit's Code of Ethics, Anli-Bribery and Corruption, Anti-Slavery
& Human Trafficking Policy, and our Supply Chain Respansibility, ptease visit our website:
www.telit.com/about/company-information/corporate-responsibility/

Health & Safety

We employ staff in multiple locations, world-.
wide. We aim to conduct our activities to
international health and safety standards
and do our utmost to provide a safe working
environment for our employees.

By order of the Board

YarivDafna
Finance Director

16 April 2019
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAOLO DAL PINO .

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN & CHAIRMAN OF
THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE, AGED 56
JOINED SEPTEMBER 2018

Mr. Dal Pino has held a number of executive
positions, operational and financial roles
across a range of mutltinational businesses.
He currently is member of the board of SACE
‘SpA, the Italian export credit agency.

Untit January 2018, he was CEQ of Prometeon
Tyre Group, the industrial tyre business
divested from the Pirelli Group. Previously he
was President of Pirelli America Latina for
five years. He has more than 25 years’
experience in the TMT industry. He has been
Chief Executive Officer of Wind, the ltalian
mobile and broadband operator; President of
the Latin American operations of the Telecomn
Italia Group; President of Tim Brazil, Chief
Executive Officer of the Seat Group and
Managing Director of the Espresso Group. He
has been member of the board of Terna SpA,
the ltalian nationat grid and of a number of
listed and non listed international companies.

FINANCE DIRECTOR AND PRESIDENT,
AGED 45
JOINED NOVEMBER 2017

Mr. Dafna joined Telit in 2003 and took an
active role in Telit's {PO on the AIM in 2005
and in other fundraisings that the company
undertook since then. Mr. Dafna held the
position of Group CFO from February 2007 to
June 2012, following which he became Chief
Corporate  Development  Officer with
responsibility for all M&A activity in the Telit
Group. In 2016, he became also COO, with
responsibility of atl operation and purchasing
activities. In  November 2017. he was
appointed to the Board as Finance Director.
Mr. Dafna holds a BA in
Administration and Accounting from the
College of Management Academic Studies
[Rishon LeZion, Israel), an MBA from Tel-Aviv
University and he is a Certified Public
Accountant.
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Business .

SIMON PATRICK DUFFY

SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE, AGED 69

JOINED NOVEMBER 2017

Mr. Duffy has held a number of non-executive
and executive roles in both listed and unlisted
companies across a number of industries.
His current directorships inctude Wizz Air
Holdings Plc, YouView Television Ltd and
Modern Times Group AB. His executive roles
have included Executive Chairman of Tradus
Plc; ExecUtive Vice Chairman of Virgin Media
Group; Chief Executive of NTL Inc; CFO of
Orange SA; Chief Executive of End2End
Holdings AS; Deputy Chairman and Chief
Executive of WorldOnline International BV;
and Deputy Chairman and Group Finance
Director at Thorn EM! Plc.



INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, CHAIRMAN OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE, AGED 55
JOINED OCTOBER 2018

Mr. Sharon has held a number of executive,
operational and marketing roles in several
companies, especially in the Telecom sector.
He is currently the chairman of the board and
CEQ of Gotan Telecom, an lIsraeli cellular
company [MNO). He was President & CEOQ of
Pelephone Communications LTD, since 2005
until 2016, one of Israel’s largest cellular
operators. Prior to Pelephone, Mr. Sharon
served as deputy CEO and CMO of Barak 013
aninternetservice provider and internationat
long-distance operator. He started his career
as a business consultant at Shaldor, one of
Israel’s leading strategy consutting firms. He
has more than 25 years’ experience in the
telecommunications industry, leading
companies to success, developing strategies
and managing operations of major telecom
companies in Israel. He has served as a
board member at a range of companies,
including YES [a multichannel TV company)”
Bezeq international and others. He also
serves as board member of several charity
organizations. Mr. Sharon holds an M.B.A
from Tel-Aviv University and a B.A in
Economics and Business from the Hebrew
University in Jerusalem.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, AGED 56
JOINED OCTOBER 2018

From 2007 to 2011, Ms. Lindén was Minister
of Communications for Finland, where she
was  responsible for media  and
telecommunications. She had previously
served as Minister of Culture, Youth and
Sport from 1999 to 2002. She was Member of
Parliament in Finland for 16 years. She has a
long experience of the Oulu City Council. She
has held numerous positions of trust in a
number of organizations including roles as
ITU's Special Envoy for the Broadband
Commission for Digital Development,
memberships in the Broadband Commission
and Arctic Economic Council's [AEC)
Telecommunications Infrastructure Working
Group. She is Chairperson for NxtVn Finland
Oy that develops open-access, carrier-
neutral, and multi-tenant Data Center Parks.
The Intelligent Community Forum, a New
York-based think tank named her as its

“Visionary of the Year for 2011" for her .

commitment to ensuring affordable
broadband access to every citizen in Finland.
Ms Lindén holds a Master of Science
[Computer Sciencel degree from the
University of Qulu, Finland.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTINUED

HARALD ROSCH
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, AGED 50

JOINED OCTOBER 2018

Mr. Risch is Chief Executive Officer of Melita
{Malta) since Aprit 2016. He was previously
CEO of blizoo (Bulgaria, 2014-15), Kabel
Baden-Wirttemberg (Germany, 2009-2012)
and HanseNet [Germany, 2003-2008). Prior
to this he held management positions in
Telecom Italia and Infostrada and worked
with McKinsey & Co for 6 years. His
experience in non-executive board positions
include Sky Germany, Internetstores, United
Digital Group and SEAT Pagine Gialle.
Mr. Rdsch has degrees in Business
Administration from ESB Reutlingen and
ESC Reims and holds an MBA from INSEAD.

.

ADAM POWER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, AGED 49

JOINED OCTOBER 2018 .

Mr. Power is a career digital and media
executive, most recently as president of
international and China for CBS Corporation.
In this role he founded their Chinese digital
media business which became a top 10 online
media group by audience and operated
the digital businesses across the globe.
Mr. Power has led significant growth across
globat markets through organic development
and a strong M&A track record with over 25
acquisitions in China, Europe and Asia. He is
also involved in social commerce start-ups
and consults media companies, helping them
to expand their business into new markets.
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

o,

“The new Board, following the advice of its
advisors, decided that it was appropriate for
the Company to follow the principles of the
QCA Corporate Governance Code.”

Paolo Dal Pino
Executive Chairman

The Board believes that the business and the
delivery of its strategy should be based on
strong corporate governance. We also
believe that good governance is essential to
the way in which we operate on a day-to-day
basis. The Board is committed to developing
a culture of openness, transparency,
constructive challenge and support.

In November 2017, the Company's Board
began a year-long process of important
changes, driven by a desire to strengthen and
enhance the Company’'s governance and
transparency. A new chairman and senior
non-executive director, who had been
recruited through an independent UK
executive consultancy firm and approved by
the Company’s Nomination Committee, were
appointed. These were Richard Kilsby and
Simon Dutfy, respectively. Yariv Dafna, who
has served in various roles in Telit since
2003, became Finance Director and joined
the Board as an executive direclor. On
31 December 2017, Davidi Gilo, who had been
a non-executive director, resigned. On 5
March 2018, with appraisals from an
independent executive consultancy firm, lwo
additional onon-executive directors were
appointed to the Board, Miriam Greenwood
and Shlomo Liran. On 13 June 2018, Enrico
[Chiccol Testa, stepped down from the Board.
In accordance with best practice, at the
Company’'s AGM in May 2018, all directors
stood for re-election. They comprised five
non-executives and two executive directors.
Five of the seven directors had been
appointed to the Board since November 2017.
At the 2018 AGM, three of the non-executive
directors were not re-elected: Miriam
Greenwood, Shlomo Liran and the then
chairman, Richard Kilsby. In order to have a
sufficient number of non-executive directors
for quorate committee meetings, Miriam
Greenwood was re-appointed by the
remaining Board members immediately
follawing the AGM. This re-appointment was
to be on an interim basis, until new non-
executives could be found. Simon Duffy took
on the chairman role on an interim basis.
Following consultation with shareholders,
I, Paolo Dal Pino, assumed the chairman
role on 1 September 2018 and Mr. Duffy
reverted to his role as senior independent
non-executive director. As had been agreed,
Miriam Greenwood resigned as non-

executive director. Following further
consultation with shareholders and a
shareholder requisition notice which had
then been withdrawn, Yosi Fait resigned as
director and CEQ on 21 September 2018 and
four new non-executive directars were
appointed on 12 October 2018, with Lars
Reger resigning. The new non-executive
directors were Gil Sharon, Adam Power, Suvi
Lindén and Harald Rosch. On Mr. Fait's
resignation, | became executive chairman,
until such time that a new CEQ will be found.

in the previous year's annual report, the
Company stated that it would aim to comply
with the principles and provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code and associated
guidance. As the Board's constitution
changed following the 2018 AGM, the new
Board, following the advice of its advisors,
decided that it was appropriate for the
Company to follow the principles of the QCA
Corporate Governance Code, which would be
in accordance with best practice and with
AIM Notice 50. The principal means of
communicating our application of the QCA
Code land if applicable, explain where we do
not comply), are this Annual Report and our
website [www.telit.com]. Because of the
events described above, there were certain
provisions of the QCA Code with which the
Company did not comply in 2018. For
example, there was no Board performance
review due to the frequent turnover of Board
members. In addition, while there were
always at least two non-executive directors
on the Board, the general shareholder
expectation that at least half of the directors
of a board will be independent non-executive
directors, was not met due to the changes
described above. The Company is also aware
that, in accordance with the QCA Code, a
single person should not fulfil the roles of
both chairman and chief executive officer.
| was first appointed as a non-executive
chairman but became executive chairman on
the departure in September 2018 of the then
CEO, Yosi Fait. My appointment as Executive
Chairman continues to be temporary until a
chief executive is appointed.

In the remainder of this report, | have set out
the Group's application of the QCA Code,
including where  appropriate, cross
references to other sections of the Annual
Report.

QCA Code compliance

The QCA Code sets out ten principals, split
into three categories as follows:

Deliver growth

1. Establish a strategy and business model
which promote long-term value for
shareholders.

2. Seek to understand and meet
shareholder needs and expectations.

3. Take into account wider stakeholder and
social  responsibilities and  their
implications for long-term success.

4. Embed effective risk management,
considering both opportunities and
threats, throughout the organisation.

Maintain a

framework

5. Maintain the board as a well-functioning,
batanced team led by the chair.

dynamic management

6. Ensure that between them the directors
have the necessary up-to date
experience, skills and capabilities.

7. Evaluate board performance based on
clear and relevant objectives, seeking
continuous improvements.

8. Promote a culture thatis based on ethical
values and behaviours.

9. Maintain governance structures and
processes that are fit for purpose and
support good decision-making by the
board. '

Build Trust

10. Communicate how the company is
governed and is performing by
maintaining a dialogue with shareholders
and other relevant stakeholders.
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Deliver growth

1. Establish a strategy and business model
which promote long-term value for
shareholders.

The Group’s business model is set out on
page 6, with its strategy set out on page 7. We
believe the model and strategy promote
long-term value for our shareholders, as
demonstrated by ijour financial performance
set out on page 4, (i) our end to end
capabilities in this industry, set out on page 6
and (i) our market position and competitive
advantage set out on page 6. We are clear in
our understanding of the market risks the
Group faces, and the risk management
processes in place to counter these (see
pages 22-24).

2. Seek to understand and meet
shareholder needs and expectations.

The Board realises that effective
communication with shareholders on
strategy and governance is an important part
of its responsibilities. The Group's Investor
Relations Manager has responsibility for
ensuring that Telit communicates openly
with shareholders and that shareholder
views are communicated back to the Board.
Following their release to the market, interim
and finalresults are presented toinstitutionat
shareholders and analysts. The CEOQ /
Executive Chairman and Finance Director
meet regularly with investors and analysts
via investor roadshows, participation in
conferences and additional dialogue with
key investor representatives held in the
intervening periods.

The Board uses the AGM to encourage
communication with private shareholders.
Where voting decisions are not in line with
Telit's expectations, the Board will engage
with those shareholders to understand and
address any issues. It was in consultation
with shareholders that, following the 2018
AGM, the Company appointed me as
chairman and Gil Sharan, Adam Power, Suvi
Lindén and Harald Rosch were appointed as
non-executive directors.

The Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director also makes himself available to
shareholders if they have concerns, where
contact through the normal channels of
Executive Chairman and/or Finance Director
has failed to resolve, or for which such
contact is inappropriate.

3. Take into account wider stakeholder and
social  responsibilities and  their
implications for long-term success.

The Company wunderstands that its
relationship with its staff, shareholders,
customers, partners and suppliers is critical
to achieving its goals.

Qur employees are al the heart of our
business and we recognise that our
employees play a part in the delivery of our
goals. We aim to attract, retain, and motivate
the best people and take responsibility for
staff welfare, training and development.

Despite the breadth of the location of staff,
the Company strives to bring staff together
through communication, engagement and
empowerment. Telit's technologicat
infrastructures enable staff to easily
communicate with colleagues, wherever
they are located. An intranet portal provides
staffwithrelevantinformation and discussion
opportunities.

{n addition, Telit aims to be an inclusive and
professionat workplace. Telit is opposed to
discrimination and is committed to sustaining
equality in all employment matters. The
Company has a whistleblowing policy in
place which includes arrangements by which
staff can, in confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial or other
matters. The policy aims to encourage staff
to report suspected wrongdoing in the
knowledge that their concerns will be taken
seriously; to provide staff with guidance as to
how to raise concerns and to reassure staff
that they can raise concerns without fear of
reprisals.
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The Company works with customers to
provide them with products and solutions
that will be right for their needs and, in turd,
continuously assesses how it can bolster its
operations and business to better serve its

customers. Throughout the customer
relationship  life-cycle, different Telit
departments engage with customers

including sales, product marketing and
customer support at varying stages of the
customer relationship, so that the customer
is always supported.

We nurture a panel of strategic suppliers and
partners able to deliver top-tier technologies
with a focus on quality. We operate a best in
class system of category management,
performance assessment [(cost, quality,
deliveryl, costing, and measures in near
real-time its supply chain performance.
Regular management meetings, roadmap
reviews, techpical workshops, and risk
assessments are performed to ensure the
health and proper functioning of the entire
supply chain. In addition, we operate a
supplier comptiance program which includes
modern slavery and conflict mineral checks.

4. Embed effective risk management,
considering both opportunities and
threats, throughout the organisation.

The Group's approach to risk is set out in the
Audit Committee’s Report [pages 43-44). The
Board has responsibility for establishing and
maintaining the Group's internal risk control
systems. The Board regularly reviews and
evaluates such internal controls, ensuring
they meet the. needs of the Group. The
internal controls are designed to manage
risk rather than eliminate it and therefore
cannot provide absolule assurance against
material misstatement or loss. While the
Company does not have an internal audit
function presently, the Board has engaged
Grant Thornton to perform a risk analysis.
This risk analysis will form a basis for an
internal audit plan to be discussed by the
audit committee during 2019.

A summary of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, as well as
mitigating actions, are set out on pages
22-24 [Principat Risks and Uncertainties).



Maintain a

framework

5. Maintain the board as a well-functioning,
balanced team led by the chair.

The board comprises the Executive
Chairman, five independent non-executive
directors, one of wham is the senior
independent director, and on2 Finance
director. The directors are expected to
commit sufficient time for the regular
business of the board and its committees
plus any additional time needed for
extraordinary matters requiring the attention
of the Board and its committees. The number
of meetings of the board [and its committees]
during the year, together with the attendance
of each director, is set out on page 31.

dynamic  management

k3

The Compasition of the Board

As | explain in detail above, the composition
of the Board altered substantially during
the course of last year. The change was
driven by a desire to strengthen the Board's
conslitution, bringing it ‘in line with goad
corporate governance, and by shareholder
consultation and interaction.

As itis now constituted, the Board now has a
majority of independent non-executive
directors, with diverse industry and
jurisdictional expertise.

The Company is aware thal, in accordance
with the QCA Code, a single person should
not fulfil the roles of both chairman and chief
executive officer. With the departure in
September 2018 of the then CEO, Yosi Fait, my
appointment as  Executive Chairman
continues to be temporary until a chief
executive is appointed. Through this process,
the Board is maintaining communication and
co-operation with its major shareholders.

Simon Duffy has served as the Company's
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
since November 2017. Simon's role is to
provide a sounding board for me and to serve
as an intermediary for the other directors
when necessary. He is also available to
shareholders if they have concerns which
contact through the normal channels of
Executive Chairman, or other executive
directors has failed to resolve or for which
such contact is inappropriate.

The Board is satisfied that, in accordance
with the QCA guidelines, those directors it
deems to be independent are independent,
having regard to their length of service on the
Board, as well as the materiality of their
interests in Telit (including any pecuniary
interests).

In considering the Board's composition
overall, the Board took into account various
considerations inctuding length of tenure,
Board diversity, independence and the mix of
skills and experience of the directors. We are
satisfied that the current composition of the
Board reflects an appropriate balance of
skills, experience and knowledge.

The Board delegates specific responsibilities
to the Audit, Remuneration, Nomination,
PDMR Trading and Investigation Committees,
as detailed further in principle 9 betow.

Board and committee meeting attendance
The table below sets out the attendance at
Board meetings, and committee meetings,
during the year to 31 December 2018.

In addition, the Board and Remuneration
Committee adopted, respectively, four and
three resolutions by written consent.

Appointment, removal and re-election of
directors

Directors are appointed by the Board or at
the Annual General Meeting (AGM). Board
appointed directors need to be re-appointed
by the shareholders at the subsequent AGM.

The Company's Articles of Association
require that at each AGM any director who
was elected or last re-elected as adirector at
or before the AGM held in the third calendar
year before that AGM shall retire by rotation
and, if required, such further directors shatl
retire by rotation as would bring the number
retiring by rotation up to one-third of the
number of directors in office at the date of the
notice of AGM. However, in line with best
practice, starting from 2018, all directors
stood to be re-appointed by the shareholders
in the AGM held that year.

Audit Remuncration
Committeo Commitiee POMR Trading Nominatii ! Inati
_ Board ings 3 ting ing Commil [ i ¢ 1
Eligibte Ellgible Eligibte Eligible Eligible EUgible

toattend Attended toaltend Attended toallend Attended toattend Altended toatiend Attended toattend Attended
Yosi Fait 12 12 - ~ - - - - - - - -
Lars Reger 713 - = - - - K - -
Enrico
Tesla 7 7 - - - - - - - - - -
Yariv Dalna 18 18 - - - - 3 3 - - - -
Richard
Kilsby 7 7 - - - - i 1 - - - -
Mirfam
Greenwood 9 8 4 4 5 5 1 1 - - - -
Shlemo
Liran 5 5 3 3 4 4 - - - - - -
Ramn Zeevi 7 6 1 1 - - - - 1 1 - -
Simon
Duffy 18 17 4 6 5 5 4 4 - - | 1
Paoclo
Dal Pino 7 7 - - - - - - 1 1 - -
Suvi Lindén b 4 - - .1 1 - - ... .1 1 1
Gil Sharon [ 3 1 1 1 1 - - 1 Al - -
Adam
Power 4 3 - - 1 0 -~ - 1 0 1 1
Harald
Résch 4 & 1 1 - - - - - - - -
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Board appointments are conducted in a
formal, rigorous and transparent manner by
the entire Board. Since 10 August 2017,
appointments by the Board have been made
based on the recommendations of the
Nomiination Committee where possible.

6. Ensure that between them the directors
have the necessary up-to date
experience, skills and capabilities.

The Company has taken advice from certain
of its shareholders on the appointment of the
recent non-executive directors to the Board
|details of which, and the other members of
the board, are set out under principle 5
above).

The Company is confident that its current
appointments provide an appropriate
balance of sector, financial and public
markets skills and experience, as well as an
appropriate gender balance and balance of
personal  qualities and  capabilities.
Furthermore, as a group, the directors have
a combined experience in a wide range of
jurisdictions and market places, and a wealth
of experience in both years and in the number
of companies in which they have served over
time. We have set out in more detail below
the relevant skills, experience, personal
qualities and capabilities each director
brings to the Board:

Paolo Dal Pino, Executive Chairman

See page 26 for information regarding
Mr. Dal Pino.

Mr. Dal Pino's previous executive, operational
and financial roles across a range of
multinational businesses provide him with
the experience and skills needed by an
executive chairman of Telit. These positions
have included listed companies, which
provides Mr. Dal Pino with an important
understanding of the expectations placed on
listed companies.

Mr. Dal Pino has more than 25 years’
experience in technology and telecoms
companies which provides the board with an
important understanding of Telit's industry.
Having previously served as CEQ of Wind, an
italian mobile and broadband operator and
as President of TIM Brazil, the Brazilian
subsidiary of Telecom fltalia, an [talian
telecommunications company, he has
acquired both top-level executive experience
and relevant experience and knowledge of
Telit's telecommunications business.

With experience of leading multinational
companies, Mr. Dal Pino is able to lead a
multinational group of companies like Telit.
He has also served in senior executive
positions in the industrial sector, which fits
into Telit's hardware part of the business.

Mr. Dal Pino maintains a connection to the
industries in which he has worked, providing
him with up to date understanding of the
market.

Director and

Yariv Dafna, Finance

President

See page 26 for information regarding
Mr. Dafna.

Mr, Dafna has served in a number of diverse,
senior roles in Telit since 2003, as Group
CFO, Chief Corporate Development Officer
and as Chief Operations Officer. This provides
him with a comprehensive viéw and
understanding of Telit and its business. This
provides the board with extensive knowledge
of Telit from its early beginnings to the
present day.

As a Certitied Public Accountant and holding
an MBA, Mr. Dafna also brings business and
financial acumen and qualifications to the
board and to the Finance Director role.

Mr. Dafna keeps his skills and experience
relevant and up to date by closely following
the industry relevant to Telit, as well as the
financial landscape in the relevant markets.
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Simon Patrick Duffy, Senior Non-Executive
Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee
See page 26 for information regarding
Mr. Duffy.

Having held a number of senior executive and
non-executive positions in  major UK
corporations, including as Board Chair,
Senior Independent Director and Chair of the
Audit Committee, Mr. Duffybrings substantial
corporate governance and UK public
company experience to his role as Telit's
seniof non-executive director.

He has served as Group Finance Director at
Thorn EMI PLC and as CFO of Orange SA,
which strengthens the board’s and the audit
committee’s (of which he is chair] financial
and business acumen.

Mr. Duffy maintains his knowledge and
experience through his other directorships
and his continuous connection to the UK
market and industry organizations.

Gil Sharon, Non-Executive Director,
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
See page 27 for information regarding
Mr. Sharon.

Mr. Sharon brings relevant sector experience
to Telit, having held a number of executive,
operational and marketing. roles in several
companies.in the telecommunications sector,
for a total of more than 25 years. He has
served on boards [as CEO as well as other

positions] at major Israeli telecom
companies,  including  YES, Bezeq-
International, Pelephone and others.

Mr. Sharon is therefore able to provide
guidance and an outside perspective to the
board and the Remuneration Committee on
industry practice and strategy.

As current chairman and CEO of a major
Israeli cetlular company and with strong ties
ta the industry both in Israel and abroad,
Mr. Sharon maintains his connection ta, and
understanding of, the sector, and to best
practice for boards.



Suvi Lindén, Independent Non-Executive
Director

See page 27 for information regarding
Ms. Lindén.

As former Minister of Communications for
Finland and former Special Envoy to the
Broadband  Commission for  Digital
Development, Ms. Lindén brings relevant
industry experience from a regulatory
perspeclive. Ms. Lindén also brings gender
diversity to the board.

Ms. Lindén maintains an active connection to
the telecommunications industry through
membership to industry organizations and
association with industry leaders.

Harald Rosch, Independent Non-Executive
Director

See page 28 for information regarding
Mr. Rosch.

As current CEO of Melita (a diversified
telecommunications operator in Malta) and
former CEO and General Manager of
telecommunications operators in Germany,
Italy and Bulgaria, Mr. Résch brings relevant
sector experience to the board from a diverse
European perspective. He also has relevant
non-executive role experience, having held
non-executive positions in Sky Germany and
others.

Mr. Rosch's current role as CEO of a
telecommunications operator as well as his
continued association with industry leaders
and market players, allows Mr. Riosch to
maintain relevant skills and experience.

Adam Power, Independent Non-Executive
Director
See page 28 for information regarding
Mr. Power.

Mr. Power's background in media and digital
in diverse locations from the UK to China,
brings industry diversity to the board. He
also bolsters the board’s uaderstanding of
the UK market.

Mr. Power is a media, technology and digital
consultant to companies around the globe
which keeps him up to date with trends and
developments.

Induction and development of directors

On appointment ta the Board, new directors
receive a comprehensive and tailored
induction programme, the aim of which is to
introduce them to key management and
personnel across the business and to
enhance their knowledge and understanding
of the Group's business, strategy and
governance structure, as well as their own
duties and responsibilities. This includes
time with each of the executive directors, and
with a wide range of senior management
from across the business.

independent advice

In 2018, up until his departure on 31 October
2018, the directors had access to the advice
and services of the then Chiel Legal Officer,
who was responsible for ensuring that all
Board procedures were complied with.
Following his departure, that responsibility
was passed to the Company Secretary, who
regutarly updates and advises the Board on
Board procedures and related comptiance.

Individual directors are also able to take
independent legal and linancial advice at the
Company's expense where they judge it
necessary to support the performance of
their duties as directors. In addition, a
Directors” and Officers’ liability insurance
policy is maintained for all directors and each
director has the benefit of a Deed of
Indemnity.

Appointment and re-election

Directors are appoinled by the Board or at
the AGM, Pursuant to the Company’s articles
of association, any director appointed by the
Board, only holds office until the next AGM,
where such director may be recommended
for re-election, The Company's articles of
association also require that at each AGM,
any director who was elected or last re-
etected as a director at or before the AGM
held in the third calendar year before that
AGM, shall retire by rotation and, if required,
such further directors shall retire by rotation
as would bring the number retiring by
rotation up to one-third of the number of
directors in office at the date of the notice of
AGM. However, in line with best carporate
governance practice all directors elect to
resign and if, they so wish, put themselves
forward for re-appointment by the
shareholders at each AGM,

External advisors

As referenced in principle 4 abave, the Board
has engaged Grant Thornton to perform a
risk analysis. This risk analysis will form a
basisforaninternalaudit planto be discussed
and considered by the audit committee in
2019.

7. Evaluate board performance based on
clear and relevant objectives, seeking
continuous improvements

While the Company did not conduct a formal
board evaluation in 2018 due to the frequent
changes in the makeup of the Board,
following my appointment as Chairman,
| assessed the individual contributions of
each of the members of the Board to ensure
their individual contribution is relevant and
effective and that they are committed
members of the Board.

Given the recent changes to the Board, the
Board will undertake a formal evaluation of
its own performance and the performance of
the Board committees during the course of
2019, to ensure that the members of the
Board collectively function in an efficient and
productive manner.

8. Promote a culture that is based aon
ethical vatues and behaviours.

The Company recognises that it has a social
responsibility to ensure thatall of its business
dealings are ethical and that all employees
operate to a high standard. in doing so, the
Company promotes a  commercial
environment that does not tolerate social
abuses or unethical business. With that, the
Company aims to attract, retain and motivate
the best people and takes responsibility for
staff welfare, training and development. In
addition, the Company aims to be aninclusive
and professional workplace. The Company is
opposed to discrimination and is committed
to sustaining equality in all employment
matters.
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Over the coming year, and in addition to our normal duties,
the Board will continue to monitor, assess, and seek ways

to underpin and improve our governance further.

The Company believes that personal and
business integrity is an essential part of
delivering strang financial performance and
expects every pefson working for or on
behalf of the Company to cperate to a high
ethical standard. Its efforts to operate
ethically include on-going projects to detect
and prevent anti-bribery and corruption,
modern slavery and ethical sourcing of
materials. In addition, the Company
recognisesthatasamajor, global corporation
it has a duty to conduct its business with
concern on its impact on the environment.

The Company has a whistleblowing policy in
place, which includes arrangements by
which staff can, in confidence, raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial or
other matters. The policy aims to encourage
staff to report suspected wrongdoing in the
knowledge that their concerns will be taken
seriously; to provide staff with guidance as to
how to raise concerns and to reassure staff
that they can raise concerns without fear of
reprisals.

+ The Company has adopted a code in
compliance with Market Abuse Regulation
(EU) No 596/2014, which is appropriate for an
AlM-quoted company. In addition, a PDMR
Trading Committee comprising at least one
of the Executive Chairman or Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director, plus a
representative from each of the tegal and
finance departments, must approve all
dealings by PDMRs. The Company operates
an expanded closed period of 45 calendar
days before the announcement of an interim
financial report or year-end report to further
limit the risk of insider dealing.

9. Maintain governance structures and
processes that are fit for purpose and
support good decision-making by the
board.

As Executive Chairman, | am responsible for
running the business of the Board, and for
ensuring appropriate strategic focus and
direction, as well as ensuring its approach to,
and application of, good corporate
governance. | am also responsible for
proposing the strategic focus to the Board,
implementing it once it has been approved
and overseeing the management of Telit's

operations and business, to deliver value to
shareholders and other stakeholders of the
Group, as @ whole, over the medium to long-
term.

The Board's responsibility

Itis the Board's responsibility to:

« formulate, review and approve Telit's long-
term strategy and annual plan;

s monitor  Telit's performance
strategy and the annual plan;

against

» identify principal risks, ensure systems of
risk management and control are in place
and monitor them; and

 review succession plans for the Board and
management.

Anumber of matters arereserved specifically
to the Board, including approval of the annual
report, adoption of budgets, material
financial commitments and any M&A activity.
To ensure the Board is the decision-making
body for those matiers that are considered of
significance to the Group owing to their
strategic,  financiat or  reputational
implications or consequences and to retain
control of these key decisions, on 9 February
2018, the Board adopted a schedule of
matters reserved for the decision of the
Board or a duly authorised committee
thereof. )

The Board generally meets a minimum of
once every quarter and receives appropriate
and timely information prior to each meeting.
A formal agenda is produced for each
meeting, and Board and committee papers
are distributed several days before meetings
take place. Any director can challenge
proposals, and decisions are taken
democratically after discussion. Any director
who feels that any concern remains
unresolved after discussion may ask for that
concern to be noted in the minutes of the
meeting, which are then circulated to all
directors. Specific actions arising from such
meetings are agreed by the Board or relevant
committee and then followed up by
management.
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Board cammittees

The Board is supported by the Audit,
Remuneration, Nomination, POMR Trading
and Investigation Committees, each of which
has access to the resources, information and
advice that it deems necessary, at the cost of
the Campany, to enable the committee to
discharge its duties. Those duties are set out
inthe Terms of Reference of each committee.
The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration,
Audit and Nomination Committees can be
found at www.telit.com/about/investor-
relations/aim-rule-26/.

Apart from the Nomination and POMR
Trading Committees, which are both chaired
by the Executive Chairman, and Yariv Dafna
lan executive director) is a member of the
POMR Trading Committee, executive
directors are not members of the Board
committees, although they may be invited to
attend meetings.

The Company Secretary acts as secretary to
each committee. The minutes of committee
meetings are circulated to all committee
members and are given by each relevant
committee chairman to the Board. The
specific responsibilities of each committee
are set out below.

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2018, the Audit Commiltee
comprised Simon Duffy [Chairman), Gil
Sharon and Harald Résch, who are all
independent non-execulive directors. The
Finance Director, Chief Financial Officer,
CompanySecretaryandCorporate Controller
attend each meeting by invitation. The Audit
Committee is primarily responsible for
considering reports from the Finance
Director on the half year and annual financial
statements, for reviewing reports from the
external auditors on the scope and outcome
of the annual audit and for oversight of the
Group's policies (implementation and
compliance). The financial statements are
reviewed, and the results of the review
reported to the Board. The Board is satisfied
that at least one member of the Audit
Committee has recent and relevant financial
experience. The Audit Committee, as awhole,
has competence relevant to the sector in
which Telit operates.



Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Gil Sharon [Chairman),
SuviLindén and Adam Power, allindependent
non-executive directors. The Remuneration
Committee’s primary responsibility is to
review the p_erformanf(:e of the Company’s
execulive directors and to set their
remuneration and other terms of
employment. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for administering the
employee share option scheme.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee, comprised Paolo Dal Pino
{Chairman], Gil Sharon, Suvi Lindén and
Adam Power. The responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee include, among other
duties: proposing candidates for appointment
to the Board, having regard to the balance of
skills, structure and composition of the
Board and ensuring the appointees have
sufficient time available to devote to the role.

'PDMR Trading Committee

As at 31 December 2018, the PDMR Trading
Committee comprised Paolo Dal Pino
{Chairmanl, Simon Dulfy, Yariv Dafna [or the
Company’s CF0O) and a Company lawyer. The
responsibilities of the PDMR Trading
Committee include (i) considering any
applications to deal in securilies of the
Company made by any person discharging
managerial responsibilities ("POMR"} or a
person closely associated with a PDMR
["PCA") [both terms as defined in the EU
Market Abuse Regulation (EU/596/2014));
lii} providing clearance to the PDMR or PCAin
cases where the committee has deemed it
appropriate that clearance be granted;
(il where clearance to deal is given, following
up with the PDMR or PCA to confirm the
action taken by the POMR or PCA was in
accordance with the clearance to deal
provided; and liv] ensuring that all relevant
‘announcements to any competent authority
or the public are made within the relevant
time period.

Investigation Committee

As at 31 December 2018, the lnvestigation
Committee  comprised  Simon  Duffy
{Chairman), Suvi Lindén and Adam Power.
The responsibilities of the Investigation
Committee include overseeing investigations
carried out in respect of the Group,
supervising the conduct of the Board in
respect of an investigation and considering
the major findings of an investigation.

Build Trust

10. Communicate how the company is
governed and is performing by
maintaining a dialogue with
shareholders and other relevant
stakeholders.

The Board communicates how Telit is
governed and is performing by maintaining a
dialogue with shareholders and other
relevant  stakeholders  through the
mechanisms set out on page 29.

In addition to those steps, Telit makes a range
of corporate information. including recent
announcements, notices for, and results, of
any general meetings and its financial
statements, available to the public on its
website: www.lelit.com.

The Board receives regular updates on the
views of shareholders through briefings and
reports from Investor Relations, the Chief
Executive Officer / Executive Chairman, the
Finance Directorand the Company's brokers.
Telit communicates with institutional
investors frequently through briefings with
management. In addition, analysts’ notes and
brokers’'briefings are reviewed tounderstand
the external view of the Group.

Outside of this mechanism, the Board
welcomes considered enquiries from
shareholders and other stakeholders at any
time.

The report to shareholders of the
Remuneration Committee is on page 36. The
report to shareholders of the Audit
Committee is on page 43.

The Company’s AGM

The 2018 AGM was held on 25 June 2018, at
Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London
EC4N 6AF. At the meeting, shareholders
were given an opportunity to question the
Board on the business being proposed. The
Chairman of the board, two directors, Chief
Executive Officer and the Finance Director
attended the meeting and were available to
answer questions.

Shareholders were able to vote by proxy if
they could not attend. Shareholders were
given the option ta vote for or against the
resolutions or to withhold their vote. The
proxy form and results made it clear that a
vote withheld was not a vate in law and would
not be counted. The results of the AGM were
published on the Telit website.

The AGM for this year will be held on 6 June
2019. Full details will be included in the
Notice of Meeting. The Executive Chairman,
Finance Director and the Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director plan to attend the
AGM.

The year ahead

Over the coming year, and in addition to our
normatl duties, the Board will continue to
monitor, assess, and seek ways to underpin
and improve our governance further. This
will include refreshing, as needed, the
matters reserved for the Board, reviewing
our risk management and internal risk
control systems, and conducting a formal
evaluation of the Board's performance and
that of its committees.

Paolo Dal Pino
Executive Chairman

16 April 2019
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REPORT ON DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

It is the Committee’s intention to continue to look at
aspects of the Company’s remuneration practices
in 2019 to ensure alignment with our strategy.”

Gil Sharon

Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Report from the Chair of the
Remuneration Committee

On behalf of the Board, | am presenting
the Remuneration Committee’'s (the
“Committee”] report for the year 2018. | took
over the role on 12 October 2018 and this
is my first report as Chair of the Committee.

The Committee has been reconstituted and
will now comprise Suvi Lindén, Adam Power
and me. We will, on behalf of shareholders,
support ongoing development and strong,
effective governance of a remuneration
framework appropriate for the business.

Remuneration and business
strategy

The Committee’s aim is to reward and
encourage excellent performance as well as
to promote the interests and the success of
the business of the Company. Asthe Company
grows, both in its performance levels and in
its global reach, the Committee’s aim is to
ensure that the Company's remuneration
packages are appropriate in attracting,
incentivising and retaining high calibre
individuals, and remain in line with the
industry.

The year under review

In 2018 the Board of Directors changed
significantly. In June 2018, prior to the AGM,
Enrico (Chicco) Testa resigned as a director.
At the AGM, the resolutions to re-elect three
non-executive directors, Richard Kilsby,
Miriam Greenwood and Shlomo Liran, were
defeated on a poll. In order to maintain
stability and an effective board with proper
independent oversight, the remaining board
members resolved to re-appoint Miriam
Greenwood on an interim basis, until new
non-executive directors could be appointed.
In the meantime, the Board engaged with
shareholders to discuss its composition, and
accordingly, following these discussions it
appointed Paolo Dal Pino as independent
non-executive Chairman with effect from
1 September 2018, with Miriam Greenwood
stepping down on the same date. Following
the departure of Yosi Fait as CEO on
21 September 2018, Paolo Dal Pino became
Executive Chairman.

e

in the context of these changes, the
Committee (and the Committee as previously
constituted in 2018} took a number of actions
on remuneration matters which the Board
believes are in the best long-term interests
of shareholders. Thisincludes anamendment
to the performance measures for 2018's
annual bonus to align better with the
Company's plans for 2018, linking a
substantial portion of the 2018 bonus to
achieving cash savings during this year, in
meeting revenue and gross margin targets.

It is the Committee’s intention to continue to
look at aspects of the Company's
remuneration practices in 2019 to ensure
alignment with the strategy for the business.

In October 2018, at the time of Mr. Dal Pino
appointment as Executive Chairman no
change in remuneration was applied
fotlowing the change in his position from
non-executive to an executive chairman.

The year ahead

The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee can be found on the Telit website
at www telit.com/about/investor-relations/
aim-rule-26/. This sets out the role and
function of the Committee.

Shareholder support

As a Committee, we intend to monitor best
practice in executive compensation and
corporate governance. Whilst we are an AIM
listed company, we will voluntarily seek
shareholder approval for the Remuneration
Report. The Committee is appreciative of the
support received from shareholders. We
hope that this year’s Remuneration Report
will be informative on the remuneration of
Telit's senior management team, and on the
changes that we have made during the year
and how we intend to act in the future.

Gil Sharon
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

16 April 2019
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REMUNERATION GOVERNANCE

The Committee’s responsibilities
The Committee has responsibility for:

. selting and recommending to the Board
the remuneration policy for all executive
directors and the Company’s Chairman;

+ monitoring the ongoing appropriateness
and relevangé of the remuneration policy;

. determining‘the levels of fixed pay for
Executive Directors, and the balance
between fixed and variable pay elements;

approving the design of, and determining
targets for, any performance-related pay
schemes operated by the company and
approving the total annual payments made
under such schemes;

reviewing the design of all share incentive
plans;

= determining each year whether any share
incentive awards will be made, and the
scope of any performance targets to be
used; and

* reviewing and approving any material
termination payment.

The remuneration of Non-Executive
Directors is determined by the Executive
Directors based on its long-standing policy.

Committee composition

The Remuneration Commiltee comprises
three independent non-executive directors:
Gil Sharon [Chair), Suvi Lindén and Adam
Power, The three committee members were
appointed to the Board on 12 October 2018.
During 2018, the committee comprised
Miriam Greenwood (as Chair, and who retired
from the board on 1 September 2018),
Shtomo Liran (who stepped down from the
Board on 25 June 2018, after the resolution
for his re-election at the AGM was defeated.)
and Simon Dulfy. Following 25 June 2018
[and until Ms. Greenwood's retirement from
the board}, the committee comprised Miriam
Greenwood and Simon Duffy.

The Committee may invite members of
management to attend meetings as
appropriate, unless they have a conflict of
interest, in order to assist the committee to
discharge its duties.

Remuneration policy

The objective of the remuneration policy is to
promote the long-term success of the
Company, keepipg an appropriate balance
between fixed and performance-related,
immediate and deferred remuneration.

The Committee aims to set levels of
remuneration for Executive Directors that
are sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors of the calibre required to deliver the
Company’s business strategy.

Service contracts and treatment of
teavers

No service contracts currently have notice
periods of more than six months.

Changes to incentive arrangements
for Executive Directors

Bonus Schemes

The Cummittee, at its previous composition,
reviewed the effectiveness and relevance of
the variable remuneration elements of the
policy to ensure it continues to create
alignment with both the business strategy
and shareholder interests.

As a result, the following changes to the
performance criteria for the annual bonus
have been approved with effact from
1 January 2018:

* 40% of the bonus is based on achieving a
saving in the cash OPEX

* 17.5% of the bonus is based achieving the
revenue budget

17.5% of the bonus is based on achieving
the gross margin target

25% of the bonus - board discretion
following Committee recommendation

Advance payments of bonus will not be
permitted

in 2019, the current Committee, reviewed
again the effectiveness and relevance of the
variable remuneration elements of the
Executive Chairman and Finance Director
and set new bonus scheme as detailed below.
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Former Chief Executive

The variable compensation plan as described
above was capped at a maximum of 100% of
the former CEO's fixed annual compensation.
This cap was increased to 150% in May 2018,
but the increase was not actually
implemented as part of the separation
agreement.

In accordance with the compensation plan
then in place for the Company’s then CEO. on
his departure from the Company, received
$471,500 on account of his compensation
plan, pro-rated for the period.

Executive Chairman

Paolo Dal Pino was appointed Independent
Non-executive Chairman on 1 September
2018. He became Executive Chairman _
following the departure of Yosi Fait as CEO,
on 21 September 2018.

Mr. Dal Pino had no variable compensation in
2018,

For the year 2019, the Remuneration
Committee has approved a performance
based variable compensation based on the
following performance criteria with effect
from 1 January 2019:

» The entire incentive bonus is dependent on
the Adjusted EBITDA as approved in the
company budget for 2019

* The bonus for achievingin full the Adjusted
EBITDA target will be $1 million

¢ The bonus scheme allows a lower bonus in
case of a lower EBITDA but if the EBITDA
will be ata lower level than 76.2% from the
budget, no bonus wilt be paid

» The bonus scheme allows a higher bonus
in case of a higher EBITDA but the bonus is
capped to $1.25 million

The actual adjusted EBITDA will be also
adjusted to reflect higher or lower level of
R&D capitalization against the amount in the
approved budget.




REMUNERATION GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Finance Director

Mr. Dafna’s variable compensation ptan as
described above for 2018 was capped at a
maximum of 75% of the Finance Director's
fixed annual compensation. Following a
change in the fixed annual compensation, as
of 1 January 2019, the variable compensation
planwas reduced from 75% to a maximum of
50% of fixed annual compensation.

In May 2018 the Committee discussed special
bonuses for several executives, including
Mr. Dafna, with regards to the sale of the
automotive business, and resolved to grant
success related bonuses to be paid upon
completion of the transaction and based
on the commercial terms of the transaction
at signing date. This decision of the
remuneration committee was further
reviewed and confirmed by the current
Remuneration Committee in November 2018.
According to this Mr. Dafna will be entitled to
a special bonus for this transaction in the
amount of $400,000.

Following a review by the Committee, the
following changes to the performance
criteria for the annual bonus have been
approved with effect from 1 January 2019:

¢ 40% of the bonus is based on achieving the
adjusted EBITDA

» 20% of the bonus is based achieving the
revenue budget

* 20% of the bonus is based on achieving 3

saving in the cash OPEX

20% of the bonus - board discretion

following Committee recommendation

In the event of a change of control, the
Finance Director will be entitled te a bonus
equal to at least 6 months’ gross salary (this
arrangement pre-dates Yariv Dafna’s
nomination to the Boardl.

Former Chief Executive ~ loss of office
compensation

Yosi Fait resigned as director and CEO on
21 September 2018 and on his departure
from the Company, received, in addition to
the customary clearance until his last
working date, the following payments;

* $270,500 in tieu of notice period

« $1,000,000 as
arrangement (*)

special  payment

(*) In 22 November 2017, the Committee
resolved the following special arrangement:

* |f, before 31 December 2018, the CEQ is
served with a notice of termination other
than for cause orin the event of a change of
control following which he resigns, then he
will be entitled, in addition to any other
right under his employment agreement:

- Abonus payment of $1 million: and

- The discretionary element of the 2018
banus will be paid in full.

¢ In addition, the CEQ will be entitled to a
special bonusifthe Companyis sold during
the term of his employment, provided,
however, that if this takes place before the
end of 2018, Yosi Fait could receive either
the special arrangement bonus or the
bonus in case of sale of the company but
notboth.)
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Remuneration policy

implementation

Base Salary and Benefits
Former Chief Executive

Mr Fait's base salary was increased during
May 2018 by 13.4% from ILS 1,980,000
[approximately $550,000 at the average ILS-
USD exchange rate in 2018] to ILS 2,245,000
[approximately $625,000 at the average ILS-
USD exchange rate in 2018| plus additional
gross up of his benefit in kind related to the
use of the company car in the amount of
ILS 65,000 (approximately $18,000 ai the
average ILS-USD exchange rate in 2018).

Finance Director

Yariv Dafna’s fixed compensation as of
1 January 2019 is ILS 1,080,000
[approximately $300,000 at the average
ILS-USD exchange rate in 2018) compared
with 1LS 900,000 (approximately $250,000 at
the average ILS-USD exchange rate in 2018)
in 2018. With this change of the fixed
compensation the variable compensation
was reduced from up to 75% to 50% from the
fixed compensation, reflecting a total
increase in overall compensation of 2.85%.

Executive Chairman

Following his transition to Executive
Chairman on 21 September 2018 [from
previously serving as  non-executive
Chairman as of 1 September 2018), Mr. Dal
Pino’s compensation remains unchanged at
$250,000 per year.



1

Directors’ remuneration table {audited)

The single figure of total remuneration in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 and

paid to each director who held office during the year was as follows: .
Post-
Gross salary Benefit employment
and fees inkind Bonus benefits
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Executive
directors
Enrico Testa' 78 1 6
Paolo Dal Pino? 83
Yosi Fait? 504 38 472 3
Yariv Dafna* 313 26 185 37

Non-executive

directors

Ram Zeevi® 24
Miriam

Greenwood® 29
Shlomo Liran® 14
Richard Kilsby® " 125
Simon Duffy 94
l.ars Reger’ * -
Suvi Lindén? 10
Gil Sharon? 13
Adam Power? 9
Harald Rosch? 10

,ot 1.-,2018 L % *@ﬂmvaoﬁﬁm,, ?mvst%ﬂ

1 Mr. Testa compensation in 2018 reflect his remuneration till his resignation in May 2018. Post reﬂgnahon he
continues to act as Execulive Chairman of the group’s Italian subsidiary.

2 From date ol appointment.

3 Amountsin respect of the services of Mr. Fait are until the date of his resignation and paid: 85% to a company
under his control and 15% to Mr. Fait directly (but the bonus is paid solely to the company under his control).
Benefits in kind is composed of $22,000 usage of company car and $16,000 of legal fees paid by the Company
on Mr. Fait's behalf. The salary and fees exclude the payment of $272,000 in lieu of notice period and the bonus
amountinclude only the requtar bonus and exclude the $1 miltion speciat arrangement bonus.

4 Benehitsin kind represents usage of company car.
5 Until date of termination,

6 Mr. Reger, who was appoinled to Lhe board by NXP BV, in the contexl of the acquisition of NXP's ATOP
business unit by Telit, reccived no pay for his rote as director and step down on October 2018, '

11 Nol including social contribution elernent of the remuneration.
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L T U

The smgle flgure of lotal remuneration in respecl of lhe year ended 31 December 20]7 and

paid to each director who held oifice during the year was as follows:

) Post-
Gross salary Benefit employment
and fees in kind Bonus benefits
$°000 $'000 $'000 .$'000
Executive
directors
Enrico Testa 383 - 56 17
Oozi Cats' 1,127 174 - 188
Yosi Fait? 555 86 419 4 |
Yariv Dafna’ 42 1 - 6

Non-executive

directors

Ram Zeevit 46 - - - ﬂ,‘fm
Davidi Gilo 134 - - - Lx& mm
Richard Kilsby® 25 - -~ - j
Simon Dufty? N - - - i ’ ‘
Lars Reger® - - - - [SuE 5‘*}?“4‘." :

-

Until date of lerminalion. Salary in 2017 was paid until the end of August and also ‘includes $292,000,
as payment for unused vacation days. The information above excludes an amount of $1.2 miltion paid to
Mr. Cats in April 2017 as advance of his annuat bonus for the year. The Company isin the process of pursmng
Mr. Cats lor the reimbursement of Lhis amount, as he did not meet any of the KPIs for the year. Benafits in kind
is composed of $104,000 rent of apartment, $42,000 of legal fees paid by the Company on Mr. Cal's behall,
and the remaining related to other travel and company car cosls.

2 Amounts in respect of the services of Mr. Fait arc paid: 85% o a company under his control and 15% to
Mr. Fail directly [but the bonus is paid solely 1o the company under his control). Benefits in kind is composed
of $30.000 usage of company car and $56,000 of legal fees paid by the Company on Mr. Fait's behalf.

3 Fromdale of appoiniment, benefits in kind represents usage of company car.
4 Amountsin respect of the services of Mr. Zeevi were paid directly 10 a company under his control.

5 Mr. Reger, who was appointed lo the board by NXP BV, in the context of the acquisition of NXP's ATOP
business unil by Telit, received no pay for his role as director.

Payments to past directors

During the year ending 31 December 2018, no payments were made to past directors, apart
fram fees paid directly to the lawyers and the financial expert of Qozi Cats in the amount of
$125,000. The advisors were retained to defend Mr. Cats in criminal proceedings arising from
the BAMES case, for further delalls please see Note 24. The Company had a legal obligation
to pay these fees.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares
The directors®interests in shares in the Company are detailed in the table below:

At 31 December 2017

Number  Percentage
ofordinary  ofordinary

Directors shares share capilal
Paolo Dal Pino'+ ~ -
Yariv Dafna 58:0 30,000 0.02%
Simon Duffy L3 @&11%572‘@«31 009% - -
Suvi Lindén" f%‘mﬁ%ﬂ“ ' - -
Gil Sharon! ST - -
Adam Power! IR - -
Harald Résch' ( ﬁm&f DR - -
Yosi Fait¢ W’W‘ﬁmh?ﬁ e - -
Lars Reger?* BTSRRI 2,255.943 1.73%
Richard Kilsby S R - -
Enrico Testa* R S e Ty T e 1,441,146 1.11%
Ram Zeevit LT e AR - -
Qozi Cats? ¢ F AR S e _q‘.f‘t;?};' 16,733,470 12.85%
1 Was not a Director in 2017.

2 Mr. Reger was nominated as a director anbehall of NXP B.V. and is theretore considered as having aninterest

in NXP’s holdings of 2.255,943 shares.
3 Mr. Cats ceased holding office within the Company and Group in August 2017. The information provided

as at 31 December 2017 is based on the information Mr. Cats provided to the Company on 7 August 2017
and released to the market the following day.

Was not a Director in 2018.

Details of directors’ share options and RSUs as at 31 December 2018 are provided below.

Exercise
price
Executive directors Grant date Number (pencel Exercised Vested Unvested
Yariv Dafna 16 Aprit 2014 100,000 206 25,000 75,000 -
3 August 20152 166,646 217 - 83,333 83,333
3 August 20152 25,000 1 - - 25,000
4 October 20177 80,000 183 - 20,000 60,000
4 October 2017° 12,000 1 3,000 - 9.000
16 July 2018° 300,000 .. 171 - . .= ..300,000

R tal T 75 FHe0 b Na L T 28 000178 333 E477.333

~

These options vest in & equal instalments on the anmversarles of the grant and explre Syears from the grant
date. Mr Dafna was not a director when these options were granted - these options will be expired in
April 2019.

The options granted on this date vest as follows: 25% on the second anniversary of the grant date; 25% on the
third anniversary and 50% on the fourth anniversary. The options expire 5 years from the grant date. The
RSUs granted on this date vest an the fourth anniversacy ol the grant date. Mr Dafna was not a dicector when
these options were granted.

The options and RSUs granted on this date vest in 4 equal instalments on the anniversaries of the grant date.
The options expire 5 years from the grant date. Mr Dafna was not a director when these options and RSUs
were granted,

These options vest in 4 equalinstalments on the anniversaries of the grant and expire 5 years from the grant
date.

Telit Communications PLC Annual Report 2018
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REMUNERATION GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

No options have expired in respect of any of the above grants.

The share based compensation -cost attributable to the directors in 2018 is an income of
$1,390,059 due to the reversal of the costs associated with the unvested options of the former
CEO and former director, which expired. {2017: income of $1,788,677 due to the reversal of the
costs associated with the unvested options of the former CEQ which expired when his
employment ended).

The aggregate of the amount of gains made by directors on the exercise of share options in
2018 was $6,442(2017: $7,876,809).

The highest and lowest closing prices of the Company's shares on AIM during 2018 were
189 pence [February 21, 2018} and 125.8 pence {December 18, 2018). The Company’'s share
price on the close of trading on 31 December 2018 was 129.9 pence.

By order of the Remuneration Committee
GitSharon

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
16 Aprit 2019
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Simon Duffy

Chairman of the Audit Committee

“The Company has in place internal control and risk
management systems in relation to the Company’s

financial reporting process and the Group’s process
for preparation of consolidated accounts.”

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to
present the Audit Committee’s report tor the
year to 31 December 2018. This is my second
report as Chair ot the Audit Committee since
| took over the rote an 23 November 2017.

Membership

The membership of the Audit Committee has
been reconstituted and now comprises
myself as Chair, Gil Sharon and Harald
Rosch, who both joined the Board on
12 October 2018.

Role

In March 2018, the previously constituted
Board adopted new terms of reference for
the Audit Commiltee, a copy of which can be
found on the Telit website at www.telit.com/
about/investor-relations/aim-rute-26/. The
Audit Committee, as presently constituted,
has confirmed its approval of these terms of
reference.

In overview, the role of the Audit Committee

is to:

e monitor the integrity of the financial
statements of the Company, including its
annuat and half-yearly reports, interim
management statements, preliminary
announcements and any other formal
statements relating to its financial
performance, and, having regard to
matters communicated to it by the auditor,
review and report to the board on
significant financial reporting issues and
judgements which those statements
contain;

= keep under review the Company’s internal
controls and systems that identify, assess,
manage and monitor financial and other
risks;

s review the adequacy and security of the
Company's  arrangements for its
employees and contractors to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible
wrongdoing in financial reporting or other
matters and ensure that arrangements
are in place for the proportionate and
independentinvestigation of such matters
and appropriate follow up action.

+ consider and make recommendations to
the Board, to be put to shareholders for
approval at the annual general meeting, in
relation to the appointment, re-
appointment, removal and remuneration
of the Company’'s externatl auditor.

Main activities of the Audit
Committee relating to the 2018
financial year

During the year, the Audit Committee met
seven times. It reviewed the 2017 annual
report and associated preliminary year end
results announcement, focusing on key areas
of judgement and complexity, critical
accounting policies, provisioning and any
changes required in these areas or policies.
In addition, the Audit Committee reviewed
the interim results announcement, which
included the interim financial statements
that were released on 4 September 2018.
These statements reported encouraging
financial resutts which reflect the impact of
the return to revenue growth and the cos!
cutting plan.

At the end of 2017 the Board engaged Grant
Thornton to perform a review of certain of the
Group's financial policies, controls, and
procedures. During 2018, the Audit
Committee received and reviewed four
reports relating to the following matters:

* The existence of third-party distributors

* Consolidation process

« Revenue process

¢ R&D expense and capitalisation

No material issues were identified by Grant
Thornton and any process issues which were
identified have been or are being addressed.

The Committee considered the impact of new
accounting standards on the Company’s
financial statements, including IFRS15 and
IFRS164.

The Committee also considered the impact of
accounting standard IFRSS onthe Company’s
financial statements in light of the sale of the
Automotive division, which was completed in
February 2019.

The Committee appointed Grant Thornton to
conduct a risk assessment with the objective
of identifying the areas of risk the Group
faces and of proposing a plan to perform an
audit of those risk areas. The assessment
will be presented to the Committee and
addressed by it in the course of 2019.

Significant matters relating to the
annuat report

The Company has in place internal control
and risk management systems in relation to
the Company’s financial reporting process
and the Group's process for preparation of
consolidated accounts. The Company does
not have an internal audit function. A review
of the consolidated financial statements is
completed by corporate finance to ensure
that the financial position and results of the
Group are appropriately reflected therein.
The Audit Committee reviewed the work of
the corporate finance team and a report on
the process was provided to the Audit
Committee by the Finance Director and CFOQ.
The Committee also had comprehensive
discussions with the external auditors about
the financial reporting process and the
financial statements.

Significant issues and judgements that were
considered in respect of the 2018 financial
statements were as follows. These include
the matters relating to risks disclosed in the
UK external auditor’s report.

e Carryingvalue of assets, both tangible and
intangible, and in particular the carrying
value of goodwill and capitalised research
and development costs. The committee
concluded that the value of the Company's
assets was fairly stated and was at least
equal to their carrying value (see notes 13
and 14),

« Directors’ remuneration and share based
payments. The committee reviewed the
treatment of these items and agreed they
had been properly accounted for and
disclosed.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

* Going concern review. The commitlee
reviewed the  assumptions  and
methodology employed to generate the
forecasts underlying the going concern
statement..The committee concluded that,
on the information available to it, it could
recommend to the Board the forecasts
were reasonable and provide adequate
foundation for making the going concern
statement,

* Reveniue recognition. The committee
reviewed the methodology and controls in
the revenue process and concluded the
revenues for 2018 are fairly stated.

o Taxation. The committee reviewed the
basis of tax provisions and other taxation
items, and in particular of deferred tax
assets, and concluded they were
appropriately valued and disclosed.

* Legal cases. The committee agreed that
adequate provision has heen made for all
material litigation and disputes, based on
the currently most likely outcomes,
including the litigation summarised in
note 22.

As part of its review of the Annual Report, the
Committee considered whether the reportis
‘fair, balanced and understandable’. On the
basis of this work, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board that it could
make the required statement that the Annual
Report is 'fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company's
position and performance, business model
and strategy’.

%4

Relationship with the external
auditor

EY have acted as external auditor since 2013.
The Audit Committee reviews annually the
appointment of the auditor [taking into
account the auditor's effectiveness and
independence and all appropriate guidelines)
and makes a recommendation to the Board
accordingly. The EY partner responsible for
the relationship with the Company was
rotated oif the account after the AGM in June
2018. The new audit partner has since met
with the Committee.

There are no contractual obligations that
restrict the Company's current choice of
external auditor. Fees paid to the audilor for
audit, audit-related and other services are
analysed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, The Audit Commitlee
takes account of the nature and level of all
non-audit services provided by the external
auditor in the annual review of its
independence. It concluded that the external
auditor can correctly be described as
independent.

FRC review on EY UK's annual

audit of Telit for the year ended

31 December 2017

The FRC conducted a review of EY UK's
annual audit of Telit for the year ended

31 December 2017  and  made
recommendations for improvement in
relation to the impairment testing of

internally generated development assets,
impairment of goodwitl and intangible assets
and involvement in and oversight of the work
of component audit teams. In each of these
areas, EY has committed to making
appropriate changes to the way in which their
audits of Telit are conducted. The Committee
has reviewed and agreed the proposed
changes and will monitor progress against
each of them.

The Committee followed up with EY in the
early months of 2019 to confirm the actions
were implemented for the 2018 audit.

Telit Communications PLC Annual Report 2018

The year ahead

The Committee will continue to review the
internal controls, financial statements and
supporting processes to ensure they are
robust and fit for purpose and will
recommend changes where appropriate. It
will also lead a review of the risks the Group
faces. This review will form the basis for the
Committee’s work in monitoring the risks
inherent in the Group's business in the years
ahead.

Simon Duffy
Chairman of the Audit Committee

16 April 2019



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their
annual report and the
financial statements of the
Group for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, together
with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and position as
well as the linancial position of the Group, its
cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing
facilities are set out in the Finance Director’s
statement on pages 12-21 and in notes 17, 26
and 27 to the financial staternents. These
pages also include the Group's objectives,
policies and processes for managing its
capital; its financial risk management
objectives; details of its financial
instruments; and its exposures to credit risk.

After making enquiries at the time of
approving the accounts, the directors are
confident that the Company and the Telit
Group have adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. For this reason, the financial
statements are prepared on a going concern
basis. Further infarmatien in respect of the
directors’ consideration of going concern is
included in note 1(b] to the financial
statements.

Use of Financial Instruments

The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group and the exposure of
the Group to financial risks are disclosed
within note 27 to the financial statements.

Research and development

Information relating to group’s research and
development, including expenditure, can be
found in Finance Director’s statement.

Donations
The Group made $21,000 in charitable
donations  during the year ended

31 December 2018 [2017: $144,000.

Dividends

The Board is not propasing to pay a dividend
for the period. The Board are considering all
options in relation to the cash received from
the sale of the automotive division, including
special dividend and share buy back.

Significant shareholders, as at 31 December 2018

Run Liang Tai Managernent Limited
Oozi Cats®

Ibex Investors LLC

Davide Renato Ugo Serra

Senvest Management, LLC

Numberof Percentage of
ordinary ordinaryshare
shares capital
19,888,505 15.22%
16,733,470 12.80%
9.180,492 7.02%
9.166,533 6.99%
4,999,067 3.82%

5 Mr. Cats ceased holding office within the Company and Group in Augusl 2017. The'information provided as at,
31 December 2018 is based on the information Mr. Cals provided to the Company on 7 August 2017 and

released to the market the fotlowing day.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED -

The directors who held offi¢e during the year
were as follows;

Simon Duffy
Yariv Dafna

Paolo Dal Pino [appointed on 1 September
2018)

Suvi Lindén (appointed on 12 October 2018}
Gil Sharon (appointed an 12 Ogtaber 2018)
Adam Power [appointed on 12 October 2018}
Harald Résch [appointed on 12 October 2018}

Richard Kilshy [stepped down from the
board on 25 June 2018)

Enrico Testa [stepped down from the board
on 13 June 2018 but still act as the chairman
of the Group's ltatian subsidiary)

Yosi Fait [resigned from the board and atl
other posilions with the group on
21 September 2018]

Ram Zeevi [stepped down (rom the board on
25 June 2018)

Lars Reger (stepped down from the board on
12 October 2018)

Miriam Greenwood (stepped down from the
board on 1 September 2018]

Shlome Liran {slepped down from the board
on 25 June 2018)

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third party
indemnity provisions for the benefit of its
directors in respect of their roles as directors
of the Company and, where applicable, as
directors or senior executives of subsidiary
undertakings, which were made during 2007,
were replaced with an updated version in
2012 and replaced again with an updated
version in 2018 and remain in force at the
date of this report.

Employees .

In considering applications for employment
from disabled people, the Group seeks to
ensure that full and fair consideration is
given to the abilities and aptitudes of the
applicant against the requirements of the job
for which he or she has applied. Employees
who become temporarily or permanently
disabled are given individual consideration,
and where possible equal opportunities for
training, career development and promotions
are given to disabled persons.

Within the bounds of law, regulation and
commercial confidentiality, ‘information is
disseminated to all levels of staff about
matters that affect the progress of the Group
and are of interest and concern ta them as
employees. The Group also encourages
employees, where relevant, to meet on a
regular basis to discuss matters affecting
them.

Provision of information to auditor

The directors who held office at the date of
approval of this directors’ report confirm

that, so far as they are each aware, there is

no relevant audit information of which the
company's auditor is unaware; and each
director has taken all the steps that he cught
to have taken as a director to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the company's auditor is
aware of that information.

In accordance with Section 489 of the
Companies Act 2006, a resolution for the
appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as auditor
of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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Subsequent events and future
developments

Please the see Executive Chairman
Statement on page 7 for particulars of the
important events affecting the Company
which have occurred since the end of the
financial year and an indication of likely
future developments in the business of the
Company.

By order of the Board

Yariv Dafna
Finance Direg

16 Apri



STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are
responsible for preparing
the Annual Report, group
and parent company
financial statements in
accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to
prepare group and parent company financial
statements for each financial year. Under
that law, and as required by the AIM Rules of
the London Stock Exchange, the directors
have elected to prepare the group and parent
company financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs] as adopted by European
Union.

Under company law the directors must not
approve the group and parent company
financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the group and parent company
and the profit or loss of the group for that
period.

In preparing these financial statements, the
directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgments and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ specify which generally accepted
accounting principles have been adopted
in their preparation;

¢ state whether the group and parent
company financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, subject ta
any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

+ present information, including accounting
policies, in a manner that provides
relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis wunless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the group’s and
parent company'’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the company and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the group and parent company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

Telit Communications PLC Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF TELIT COMMUNICATIONS PLC

Opinion
_Inour opinion:
» Telit Communications PLC’s group financial statements and parent company financial
statements [the “financial statements”} give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s

and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the group’s loss for the
year then ended;

¢ the group financ‘iaj( statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union;

» the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act;’and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006. .

We have audited the financial statements of Telit Communications PLC which comprise:

Group Parent company

Consolidated balance sheet as at Balance sheet as at'31 December 2018
31 December 2018,

Consolidated statement of comprehensive

Statement of changes in equity for the year

income for the year then ended ) then ended .
Consolidated statement of changes in equily Statement of cash flows for the year then
for the yearthen ended . ended

Related notes 1 to 29 to the financial
statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies

Consolidated statement of cash flows for'the
year then ended

Related notes 1 lo 29 to the financial
stalements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs] as adopted by the European Union
and, as regards to the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing [UK]
(ISAs [UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those slandards are
further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report below. We
are independent of the group and parent
company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to
listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibitities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.



Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in retation to which the ISAs (UK)

require us to report to you where:

« the directors’ use of the gaing concern basis of accounting in the preparaﬁbn of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

* the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified malerial
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the group's or the parent company's
ability to continue to adopt the going cancern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Overview of our audit approach

Key audit matters * Capitalisation of development costs and their potentiat impairment '

» Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
* Improper revenue recognition

Complexity of taxation

Audit scope « We performed a full scope audit of 6 components and audit’

procedures on specific balances, where we consider the risk of
material misstatement to be higher, for a further 8 components.

» The components where we performed full or specific audit
procedures accounted for 95% 12017: 91%) of normatised earnings
before ‘interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, non-recurring
operating expenses, impairment and exceptional items related to
restructuring [normalised EBITDA’), 100% [2017: 98%) of Revenue
and 93%{2017: 91%) of Total assets.

» For the remaining 12 reporting components of the Group we have
performed other procedures appropriate to respond to the risk of
material misstatement.

Materiality * QOverallgroup mateciality of $0.53m {2017: $0.34m} which represents
2% [2017: 2%) of normalised EBITDA.

Key audit matters

Key audil matters are those matters that, in our professional jidgment, were of mast
signifi€ance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement [whether or not due to fraud] that we
identified. These matters included those which had the grealest effect on: the overall audit
strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement
team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
awhole and in forminhg our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Telit Communications PLC Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF TELIT COMMUNICATIONS PLC continueD

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to
the Audit Committee

Risk ) )
Capitalisation of development
costs and their potentiat
impairment

Refer to the Audit Committee Report
{page 43); Accounting policies {page
70); and Note 13 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (page 97}

As at 31 December 2018 net
capitalised  development  cosls
totalled $67.3m {2017: $74.7m), of
which $24.9m is not yet being
amortised (2017: $39.9m). The group
capitalised development costs of
$25.3m in the year (2017: $31.1m).
Ouring 2018 management continued
its review of the development
projects portfalio. As a result of this
review $1.2m of accelerated
amortisation was recorded during
the year {2017: $6.2m}. Management
also recorded impairment of $10.2m
in respect of the underperforming
development assets (2017: $8.4m).

*» The capitalisation of costs
associated with the development
of the group's products, in
accordance with the criteria set
out in IFRS, involves significant
management judgement and is
therefore an area of focus for our
audit.

e There is a risk that costs are
capitalised inappropriately,
affecting the group’s profitability.
There is also a risk that
management  may  override
controlstoinfluence the significant
judgements in respect of the
capitalisation of internal
development costs in order to
meet market expectations or
bonus targets,

¢ Thereisatsoariskthatimpairment
of capitalised development assets
lincluding  assets  not  yet
amortised] is not recognised.

.

At each in-scope location (3 full scope, 6 specific 'scope and

1 specified procedures locations) related to this significant risk, we
gained an understanding of the group’s process (and key controls)
for the capitalisation of internal development costs. This also
included gaining an understanding of the group’s payroll and
purchasing systems.

We tested asample of gross development costs across the group to
supporting documentation, including timesheet recards, invoices
and purchase orders.

Forcosts that originated in other group entities and were recharged
to the IP owner, we checked the composition of costs recharged
with the originating entity, including the allocation to specific
projecls, and tested these to the supporting documentation noted
above.

For capitalised development costs, we tested a sample of the
projects against the 1AS 38 capitalisation criteria, including the
eligibility and nature of the costs, and whether the costs were
directly attributable to the projects.

For capitalised development costs relating to developers’ payroll,
we inspected timesheet reports trom the time tracker system. We
tested the integrity of this report, and on a sample basis we checked
that the time charged to the project was allocated to the correct
project code, We reconciled the total number of hours per the time
tracker system report to SAP.

We analysed the average payroll per hour rate applied by
management to calculate the capitalised cost, and investigated
anomalies.

We tested the estimated useful life for a sample of projects,
including the timing of when the asset was brought into mass
production and the calculation of amortisation. We enquired as to
whether there were any changes in accounting policy in respect of
useful lives and obtained evidence for a sample of projects to
confirrr) their "mass production” stage (including the start date of
amortisation]. We recalculated the amortisation charge for the
year and compared to the amounts recorded in the financial
statements.

We tested a sample of feasibility reports across the new projects in
development as at 31 December 2018 by reviewing the reports and
making enquiries with the Heads of the respective R&D Centres to
understand their reasoning behind the conclusions / justifications
in the reports.

We made enquiries regarding the current status of the projects
includedin the sample, includingwhether anyissues /inefficiencies
had been encountered which could impact the final completion of
the project. We also met with the President of Products & Solutions,
with whom we discussed the feasibility approval process, the
reasons for any delays noted by the Heads of the R&D centres, the
certification process, historical accuracy of feasibility reports
prepared in previous years, and the status of the projects within
our sample.

Basedonourauditprocedures
on the group's accounting for
internal development cosls,
we concluded that the internal
development costs capitalised
are in line with the IAS 38
capitalisation criteria.

We also concluded that the
amounts  recognised as
impaired or subject to
accelerated amortisation, are
reasonable.

We identified an  audit
adjustment  of $17m in
respect of impairment of
capitalised development
assets. This adjustment was
recorded by management.

We concluded that the
disclosures in the financiat
statements are appropriate.
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Risk

Ourresponse tothe risk _

Key observations
communicated to

* We agreed the total 2019 budgeted sales from QlikView by product
back to the 2019 consolidated budget. We reviewed and compared
the budgeted group sales for the top 25 customers to the actual
sales of 2018, investigated any significant changes between budget
to actual, and obtained support where relevant.

¢ We then agreed budgeted sales for a further sample of projects
back to the relevant supporting documents including actual sales
made in January-February 2019, the backlog of open POs, and
sales team correspondence with customers.

* Through discussion with the President of Sales we gained an
understanding of the rationale behind the budgeted sales for each
of the projects within our sample. This included understanding who
the customers are, competition in the market for the relevant
products, and whether any delaysin the taunch of these products is
likely to affect anticipated sales.

¢ We tested separately the consolidation adjustments for the
elimination of the mark-up for development costs recharged from
group entities incurring the development costs to the [P owners,
including any foreign currency translation adjustment.

» We tested separately the R&D consolidation adjustments for the
elimination of intercompany mark-ups and foreign currency
translation adjustments.

* We reviewed the intangible assets disclosures within the Annual
Report and Accounts, to ensure this was consistent with the audited
balances.

We performed audit procedures at 3 full and 6 specific scope locations,
which covered 93%and 94% of the capitalised and expensed development
costs respectively. We also performed specified procedures over the
developmentcostsin 1 location, which covered 7% of the capitalised and

. the Audit Committee

6% of the expensed development costs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF TELIT COMMUNICATIONS PLC continued

Risk

_Ourresponse to the risk

Key observations
communicated to

.the Audit Committee

Impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets

Refer to the Audit Committee Report
{page 43); Accounting poticies (page
71l; and Note 13 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (page 97)

As at 31 December 2018 the group
recognised goodwill of $19.7m (2017:
$20.8m).

The group also recognised other
intangible assets of $77.3m (2017:
$89.6m]  including  capitalised
development costs of $67.3m (2017:
$74.7m).

There is a risk that these assets are
not supported by the future cash
flows they will generate, resulting in
an impairment charge that has not
been recognised by management.

We validated that the Cash Generating Units [CGUs] identified
reflect the lowest level at which management monitars gaodwitl in
accordance with the requirements of 1AS 36, Impairment of Assets
['IAS 36).

We tested the methodology applied in the value in use calculation
['VIU'} against the requirements of |AS 36, and the mathematical
accuracy of management’s model.

We considered the group’s market capitalisation compared with
the net assets of the group as at 31 December 2018.

We used our EY valuations specialists to assist with our assessment
of the appropriateness of theimpairment testing model, specifically
thediscountrateand long-term growth ratesincludingcomparison
to economic and industry forecasts (where appropriate}.

We oblained an understanding and performed an assessment of
the underlying assumptions for the FY19 budget and implied
growth rates beyond FY19.

We assessed operating results against historic assumptions to
assess the historical accuracy of forecasting.

We checked key areas of judgement in management’s cash flow
forecast used in the impairment review ensuring that revenue is
not included trom new product developments and future
restructuring benefits.

We comparedbudgetstothose forecastsusedinotherassessments
such as revenue, going concern and capitalisation of internally
developed intangible assets, and understood any sensitivity within
thecash flows and theimpact of changes onkeyareas of judgement.

We performed sensilivityanalysis by stresstesting keyassumptions
in the model including revenue, gross margin and EBITDA with
downside scenarios to understand the parameters that, should
they arise, could lead to a different conclusion in respect of the
carrying value of each CGU.

We assessed the disclosures in Note 13 of the financial statements
against the requirements of IAS 36.

The entire goodwill balance was subject to full scope audit procedures

by the Primary audit team.

Based on our audit work we
agree with management’s
conclusion that no
impairment  should be
recognised -in the current
year.

We noted that assumptions
applied by management are
within an acceptable range
although, as stated ‘in Note
13 to the financial
statements, are particularly
sensitive to revenue growth
assumptions for the Services
CGU.

We were satisfied with the
disclosures in the Annual
Report and financiat
statements.
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Risk

Ourresponse to the risk

Key observations
communicated to
the Audit Committee

lrriproper Revenue recognition
Refer to the Audit Committee Report
(page 43); Accounting policies [page
73); and Note 3 and 4 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
(pages 84-85)

The group recorded revenue of
$427.5m (2017: $374.5ml, including
products revenue of $391.5m {2017:
$343.7m) and services revenue of
$36.0m (2017: $30.9ml.

The group generates a larger
proportion of its revenue during the
last quarter of the year, which
increases both the risk of error, and
the risk of manipulation of the timing
of revenue recognised at or near the
year-end

We tested the key application controls over the revenue process over
all locations. We tested the aperating effectiveness of key controls
over revenue recognition at 3 full scope components. For the
remaining components we took 3 fully substantive audit approach.

For both products and services revenue at full and specific scope
locations, we identified and assessed the design of key controls to
validate that revenue recognition was appropriate and applied in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

We performed revenue analytics through a three-way correlation
between Revenue, Cash, and Accounts Receivable at 6 components,
with 2 components performing alternative procedures. We tested
revenue related journals outside of our expectations.

We performed a detailed review of conltracts with significant
customers and distributors. We assessed the impact of contract
terms and conditions on revenue recognition.

We performed detailed cut-off procedures and checked whether
revenue was recognised in the correct period.

We read management’s assessment of the impact of adopting
IFRS 15 and compared it to the guidance in the standard. We checked
a sample of the contracts analysed by management to supporting
documentation.

We audited the relevantdisclosuresin the Annual Repartand financial
statements,

We performed substantive procedures over this risk area in 5 full
scope and 3 specific scope locations, which covered 100% of group
revenue.

Based on the procedures
performed, we concluded
that the revenue recorded for
the year ended 31 December
2018 is materially correct.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF TELIT COMMUNICATIONS PLC continueD

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to
the Audit Committee

Complexity of taxation

Refer to the Audit Committee Report
(page 43); Accounting policies (page
72); and Note 9 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements [page 89)

The group operates in several
jurisdictions, which creates
complexities in the accounting for
taxation. The group faces a risk that
given the international nature of its
operations, material tax exposures
may not be provided for or disclosed
in the financial statements
appropriately.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group
has recognised a deferred tax asset
balance of $19.0 million {2017: $15.1
million], income tax receivable
balance of $0.8 million {2017: $0.9
million), deferred tax liability of $1.5
million (2017: $1.1 million), and an
income tax payable balance of $2.8
million 2017: $2.2 millionl. The total
tax credit for 2018 was $3.5 million
(2017: $4.6 million tax credit),

We eng3aged our tax specialists and inquired of the Group Tax

Director regarding how the group manages and controls taxation
across the various’jurisdictions in which'it operates.

We obtained and read the results of the third party tax studies and
reviewed correspondence with the relevant tax authorities that
supported the lax position of the group as at 31 December 2018.

With support from our tax specialists, we evaluated management’s
rationale for the forecast supporting the likelihood of the Group
generating sufficient future taxable profits to support the
recognition of the deferred tax asset as at 31 December 2018. We
considered the appropriateness of management’s assumptions
based on the known facts and circumstances, including the
reliability of forecast models.

We reviewed and assessed the Group’s transfer pricing policy.

We inquired of management and assessed the current status of
ongoing tax audits or audits concluded during the year in various
jurisdictions.

We considered the appropriateness of the Group’s disclosures in
respect of current and deferred tax and tax provisions as required
by IFRS.

We performed audit procedures at 6 full and 6 specific scope locations,
which covered 99% and 97% of the tax receivable and tax payable

- balances respectively, 100% of both deferred tax asset and deferred tax

liabitity balances and $7% of the corporation tax credit.

We  concluded  that
management’s judgements
in relation to the taxation
charge, tax provisions and
the related disclosures were
appropriate.
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In the prioryear, our auditor’s reportincluded
key audit matters in relation to Going concern
and covenants compliance, and Management
integrity and risk of override. In the current
year, these have not been included as key
audit matters as we consider the likelihood
and magnitude of the risk of material
misstatement in relation to these areas to
have reduced, and therefore less significant
auditor attention was required in performing
our audit in these areas.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation
of materiality and our allocation of
performance materiality determine our audit
scope for each entity within the Group. Taken
tagether, this enables us to form an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
take into account size. risk profile, the
organisation of the group and effectiveness
of group wide controls and changes in the
business environment when assessing the
level of work to be performed at each
reporting component.

Inassessingtheriskofmaterialmisstatement
to the Group financial statements, and to
ensure we had adequate quantitative
coverage of significant accounts in the
financial statements, of the 26 reporting
components of the Group, we selected
components covering entities within The
United Kingdom, Italy, The United States,
Cyprus, Hong Kong, Israel, Korea, Germany,
France, Belgiumn and India, which represent
the principal business units within the Group.

Of the 14 (2017: 13) components selected, we
perfaormed an audit of the complete financial
information of 6 [2017: 6) components (“full
scope components’] which were selected
based on their size or risk characteristics.
For the remaining 8 {2017: 7} components
("specific scope components”], we performed
audit procedures on specific accounts within
each component that we considered had the
potential for the greatest impact on the
significant accounts in the financial
statements either because of the size of
these accounts or their risk prafile.

The reporting components where we
performed audit procedures accounted for
95% {2017: 91%]} of the Group’s normalised
EBITDA, 100% [2017: 98%) of the Group's
revenue and 94% {2017: 91%) of the Group's
total assets. For the current year, the full
scope components contributed 74% {(2017:
67%] of the Group’s normalised EBITDA, 88%
[2017: 84%] of the Group's revenue and 78%
{2017: 64%) of the Group's total assets. The
specific scope components contributed 21%
{2017: 24%] of the Group's normalised
EBITDA, 12% (2017: 14%) of the Group's
revenue and 16% [2017: 27%) of the Group's
total assets. The audit scope of these
components may not have included testing ot
all significant accounts of the component, but
will have contributed to the coverage of
significant accounts tested for the Group. We
also instructed 1 location to perform
specified procedures over certain aspects of
capitalised development costs and their
potential impairment, and 1 location to
perform specified procedures overintangible
assets and related income statement
accounts,

The remaining 10 components (2017: 10]
together represent 1% of the Group's
normalised EBITDA (2017: 4%) and have no
Group revenue (2017: less than 1%). For
these components we performed other
procedures, including analytical review,
testing of consolidation journals and
intercompany eliminations, and foreign
currency translation recalculations to
respond to any potential risks of material
misstatement to the Group financial
statements.

The charts below illustrate the coverage
obtained from the work performed by our
audit teams.

Normalised EBITDA

‘[ 74% Fult scope
components

B8 21% Specific scope
components

B8 5% Other
procedures

Revenue

W 88% Full scope
components

B 12% Specific scope
components

I 0% Other
procedures

\

Total assets

W 78% Full scope
components

.8 16% Specific scope
components

. '6% Other
procedures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF TELIT COMMUNICATIONS PLC continuen

Changes from the prior year

Owing to an increase in activity in Korea and
Brazil we have revised these scopes from
specific scope to full scope, and specified
procedures to specilic scope, respectively.
On the basis of our revised risk assessment,
we have changed the scope of the India
component from full scope to specific scope.
Our specific scope covered all key accounts
in the component.

Integrated team structure

The overall audit sirategy is determined by
the Senior Statutory Auditor. The Senior
Statutory Auditor is based in the UK but,
since part of Group management and some
operations reside in Israel, the Group audit
team includes members from both the UK
and Israel. The Senior Statutory Auditor
visited Israel 3 times during the current
year’s audit, and members of the Group audit
team in both jurisdictions work together as
an integrated team throughout the audit
process. Whilst in Israel, he focused his time
on the significant risks and judgemental
areas of the audit. He met the Executive
Chairman and Finance Director and other
senior members of management.

Involvement with component teams

In establishing our overall approach to the
Group audit, we determined the type of work
that needed lo be undertaken at each of the
components by us, as the primary audit
‘engagement team, or by component auditors
fromather EY global network firms operating
under our instruction. For the 4 full scope
components, audit procedures were
performed directly by the EY component
audit team. For the 8 specific scope
components, where the work was performed
by component auditors from EY network
firms, we determined the appropriate level of
involvement to enable us to determine that
sufficient audit evidence had been obtained
as a basis for our opinion on the Group as a
whole.

56

During the current year's audit cycle, visits
were undertaken to the component teams in
the US, Italy and Israel by the Senior Statutory
Auditor and to India, Hong Kong and Korea by
another Partner from the Integrated Primary
team. These visits involved discussing the
audit approach with the component teams
and any issues arising from their work,
meeting with local management, attending
closing meetings and reviewing key audit
working papers on risk areas. The integrated
primary team interacted regularly with the
component teams where appropriate during
various stages of the audit, reviewed key
working papers, and were responsible for
the scope and direction of the audit process.
This, together with the additional procedures
performedatGrouplevel,gave us appropriate
evidence for our opinion on the Group
consolidated financiat statements.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in
planning and performing the audit, in
evaluating the effect of identified
misstatements on the audit and in forming
our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or
misstatement that, individually or in the
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of the
users of thefinancial statements. Materiality
provides a basis for determining the nature
and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Group to
be $0.53 miltion {2017: $0.34 million), which
is 2% of normalised EBITDA (2017: 2%]. We
believe that normalised EBITDA, adjusted for
the exceptional items described below,
provides us with an appropriate materiality
basis for 2018, given the significant pre-tax
loss.

* EBITDA loss - $(2.3lm

fl - Exceptional expenses related (o restructuring - $11.7m
j + impairment of goodwill and intangible assets - $10.2m
PYTHEENTR © Other exceptional expenses [excluding share benefit charge/credit) - $6.9m

* Total $26.5m

« Materiality of $0.53m {2% of materiality basis)

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality following downgrades to

forecast EBITDA.

We determined materiality for the Parent Company to be $0.2 million (2017: $0.1 million),
which was an allocated group materiality based on normalised EBIT {2017: based on total

assets).
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Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the
individual account or balance level. It is set
at an amount to reduce to an appropriately
low level the probability that the aggregate
of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds materiality.

Based on our risk assessments, together
with our assessment of the Group's overall
control environment, our judgement was that
performance maleriality was 50% (2017:
50%) of our planning materiality, namely
$0.27m (2017: $0.17m). We have set
performance materiality at this percentage
due to the increased engagement risk due to
losses generated in 2018.

Audit work at component locations for the
purpose of obtaining audit coverage over
significant financial statement accounts is
undertaken based on a percentage of total
performance materiality. The performance
materiality set for each component is based
on the relative scale and risk of the
component to the Group as a whole and our
assessment of the risk of misstatement at
that component. In the current year, the
range of performance materiality allocated
to components was $257,000 to $51,000
(2017: $168,000 to $42,0001.

Reporting threshold

An  amount below which identified
misstatements are considered as being
clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we
would report to thern all uncorrected audit
differences in excess of $26,000 (2017:
$17,000], which is set at 5% of planning
materiality, as well as differences below that
threshold that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements
against both the quantitative measures of
materiality discussed above and in light of
other relevant qualitative condiderations in
forming our opinion.

Other infarmation

The other ‘information comprises the
information included in the annual report set
out on pages 2 to 47, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
The directars are responsible for the other
information.

Our opinion on the financial stalements does
not cover the other information and, except ta
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materiatly
inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. f we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material

misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in
the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken
in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic
report and the directors’ report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements; and

» the strategic report and directors’ report
have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding
of the Group and the parent company and its
environment oblained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified materiat
misstatements in the strategic report or the
directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have nat
been kept by the parent company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by
us; or

¢ the parent company financial statements
are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or”

¢ certain  disclosures of  directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made; or

» we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF TELIT COMMUNICATIONS PLC conmivuen

Résponsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’
responsibilities statement set out on page 47,
the .directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such'internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the
group and parent company’s ability to
continue as 3 going concern, disclosing, -as
applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the group or the parent company
or {0 cease operalions. or have no realistic
alternative byt to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements

Our .objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as awhole are free from material
. misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a quarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK}  will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or érror and are
considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influénce the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financiat
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements
is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's  website at  www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities, This description
forms part of our auditor’s report:

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2004. Qur audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company's
members those malters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. Tothe fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s membeérs as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for-
the opinions we have formed.

Cameron Cartmell
(Senior Statutory Auditor]
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP,
Statulory Auditor

London

16 April 2019

The maintenance and integrity of the Telit
Communications PLC website is ‘the
responsibility of the directors; the work
carried out by the auditors does not involve
consideration. of these. matters and,
accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial staternents since
they were initially presented on the website.

Legislation in the Uaited Kingdom govérning
the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

R hae e e

N e v e e vas IR N PR R D

For the year ended 31 December 2015

2017

$'000

Revenue 374,531
Cost of sales (242 .949)
5%131*582

Other operating income . ~_5A L 1"»"%&1‘9& i 2,437,
Research and development expenses ) sz}_ (72985 ‘ {66,870]
Selling and marketing expenses Fai(59:439) (66,786)
Generat and administrative expenses “‘"" 3.(25.973) 128,640)
Exceptional expenses related to restructuring 6 F" 2110,842) {15,979}
Other exceptional items 58 [ETEI5:545) (5.412)

, ETORER]

Qpegrating oSSy it o X S LRE e L T 3"‘-«""«}‘3 W 513374080 149, 668]‘
] ) PRy .

(OBErating 0SSy, 2t Tt VT RLTF L URTE U YT AR BTy SRRSO T e BT T 331408 T {14976 68)
Exceptional expenses related to restructuring ’ k"’, TX10'8%7 15.979)
Other exceptional items 1723451545 5,412
Share based payment charges , ErgEeiisn 4,324
Impairment of internally generated development assets { i 140,238 8,414
Amortisation of intangible assets acquired  ° N, 5131387 4,834
;Ad)usted EBITXY %A X ‘, ' 240107705

1 155
‘7:&’ ‘1(6*552) (7.248)

Finance income
Finance costs 8

£ ﬁ‘.‘»lqa ;;m

313¢ 813)&1*J(56’781)‘
"ﬂf’%‘_‘
9 ..jfz ’453, 4,565

* Adjusted EBIT is a company specific non GAAP measure which excludes share based payment charges, exceptional expenses retated to res(ru:lunng, |mpa|rment of
internally generated development assets, other exceptional items and amortisation of |ntang|ble assets acquired. The Group's management believes that non-GAAP
measures provlde useful information ta investars ta evaluate operating results and profitahility for financial and operational decision-making purposes and to provide
comparabmty between the companies in this sectar, as they eliminate non-cash and other exceptional items.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME conrinueD

For the year ended 31 December 2018

) 2017

Note $°000

Net loss f:'%alab 3601 (52,216)
‘ rﬂ"jﬂ»«x:;ﬁ;‘j

Other comprehensive income ¢ o 2T ﬂ‘é’“"’"&},
ltems to be rectassified in subsequent periods to profit and loss:
Foreign currency translation differences 11,801
Iltems not to be reclassified in subseguent periods to profit and loss:
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plan, net of tax "”kﬁlé) (242)

[3:‘ TR nw}' ‘
PR m[wmmﬁ, H401657)

Basic 105s | [:
Diluted: los=;_

Dlluted welghted average number\of eqmty shaf:é

t
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2018

. Company
2017 2017
. Note $°000 $'000
ASSETS 3
Non-current assets
Intangible assets ‘ 13 110,436 5
Property, plant and equipment 14 01 26,545 11
Investments in subsidiaries 15 i - 4‘%‘*&91t999 90,042
Other long-term assets 17 PR "51’456' 1,909 m’fSB 995 22,926
Deferred tax asset 90 LERE19:043 15,068 [377% 1,541
FuEin40/612 153,958 [ndi 4 A 114,525
Current assets . B e ""‘:aa?! : &%ﬁ:ﬁ..?i
Inventories 16 PETER7187 23,829 RTLYEI265 472
Trade receivables 17 Vo EATH99:550 100,410 {4 229941233 3,251
Income tax receivables 9B BFIARS9 934 {TENRAE -
Other current assets 17 EREI5531 15,968 ’::‘&57 235, 62,524
Deposits - restricted cash 18 ¥ g"‘;"“‘*"«‘345 393 {LAGYE e -
Cash and cash equivalents 18 £ 41,908 §F :vm%?m 11,568
_ e . 183,442 8.252 78,015
R CENENTERI SN T T3337/4001% -’" 21418 9}:“3:‘31 92 540

PR

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

]

Shareholders’ equity Yy
- Share capital 19 YELTTS2285 2165 JEEFT5a12:165, 2,165
Share premium account 19 [Baatte9.778 49,778 FE=3:049,778 49,778
Other reserve 19 BEORRNZ727) 12,727) V3E5H29/669, 24,538
Treasury stock fund ' 19 JHEsngns - R -
Translation reserve 19 B 318,049) (12,697) {-2HK4.938) [909)
Retained earnlngs‘ 19 "f;}:;;;ss.aw 88,024 [h2%53521052 59,630
AT T g SRR Ay RN i s ﬁea’meif ﬂ1_24’:51.3i’£..ba..;128 726’5\"‘ ‘5135 207
) ] T T8 ’
Non-current liabilities SR,
Long-term borrowings from banks 26 42,203 PERESRE 16,664
Post-employment benefits 20 3,272 W;m\f' 2 -
Delerred tax liabilities 9D : 7‘;11'451 1,109 4 -
Provisions 24 FSREEAN373 923 -
R Fafi2987 47,507 16,864
Current liabilities :;&iﬁm b
Short-term borrowings from banks T 2% m:v??(z,sizj‘a’ 30,256 ; 2,508
Trade payables 21 FESEN200824 104,012 . :ﬁ‘;:,i, 2,999
Provisions 26 BERRlzI54 708 }ER aEER -
Income tax payables _ 98 |eEnidtliens 2190 {7 oRsny -
Accruals and other current liabilitvi_esfz ) 21 JRECEaMss 28,184 | 7Rx%681289 35,167
]f'{i::giaz’e‘w 165,350 T3k 488122 40,674
ey

'{Total‘equnyand llab|lxt|es ¥ ‘? R

T ,”;6?;0{'"“#337 z.omﬂW +2 216 849 FITN92,540

The financial statements on pages 59 to 126 were approved by the board and authofised for issuance on 16 April 2019 and are signed on its -

behalf by: Paoto Dal Pino, Executive Chairman.

Company number: 05300693

1 Retained earnings for the Company includes a loss for the year which amounted to $6,106,000 (2017; $1,160,000).
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
[Loss) / profil for the year

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment af intangible assets )
Capital gain from sale of investments in subsfdiary
impairment of investments in subsidiary
Impairment of loan to subsidiary
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Increase in provision for post-employment benefits
Change in long-term provisions, net
Finance costs, net
Taxincome
Share-based payment charge, net

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital:

Decrease / lincreasel in trade and other receivables
[Increase) / decrease in other current assets
Decrease / lincrease) in inventories
(Decrease] / increase in trade payables
{Decrease] / increase in other current liabilities
Cash from operations
Income tax paid
Interest received
Interest paid N

Net'cash lused.in) /i from operating actlvmes A

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets i
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Capitalised development expenditure

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acqtﬁred
Additional investment in subsidiary

Additional loans made to subsidiaries

Repayment of loans from subsidiaries

Decrease/ [increase) in restricted cash deposits
‘Netcash:(used in] /frorm investing activitiesgeris .

Company
2017 §24% "«’?Fgﬁ‘é‘ 2017
$'000 X §4°000 $'000
(52,216} “"‘fﬂé’n‘b‘si 1,160
¥
_ 8,765 12
13 w&mama 32,883 835
13 kel 10,024 Lm%:’f»*f“ -
15 ST —.k?:&fﬁn 171 =
]5 =~ Vo -
17 - o
14 99 E -
13 5 3 446 F 5
20 '1’&'..""1!362! {325}, ez
26 Yeiga Ki501 13.857) _;:?i:"g:fﬂs TTTg)
78  LRIERT6T05" 713 (2,028 1,162
9 L (3%53) 14.565) E 88 (562
25 EETIaleny” 1,805 delw;v“z'l' 11.742)
PR 41846 172 L355308.975] 855
““"Tmlaz*él 1,468 B a14%6) 514
T7.42:007, (376) . FiiiN938 (22,455)
.7_33:3(4‘238] .. ..8,521 [ai2583264 (88
T i l15.027l LZ 23309, 1,148
4,8 (3,284 FEFET41087, 834
....._.tESSaR'-32951A 1,474 §5,72303559) 19,192}
g ‘imm’:’“inol (3.196) JE BTN 2E (17]
‘..%, a.':!mz 155 faRgTedas 342
l3 247) m’f?ﬂnfzzn ~. . [630]
7 G, :‘Jm 597)
o AR

; 5 18:296] (5]
13 ERERI8) -
FTRETYn62 =
13 fEERies,300) =
2 o -
15 P IF T (5,017}
17 PEEREEIE {27,000)
7. PERREE ] 6,000

Mg ;A‘"z»f‘i?ze. (196) EXRsas

T i

P e A ¢§J[33"675)u..¢h.

(51’899]5‘?,, mzta’a ooorm [26 0221

1 Amount paidin cashin the period in respect of exceptional items was $5.3 million [2017: $5.3 million].
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS conrinued

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Company

2017 {§ 018 2017
$°000 &2 4’000

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of share opi’iong, 25 [%a:“’m ' 196 . 196
Issue of shares . . l,\s,:ﬁ;},:-m_g_ : 49,660 PRIRERSSIEE. 49,640
Dividend paid . '“‘19 - (5,682 ?gﬁ'g“m‘g., {5,682)
Short-term borrnw.i}\gs from banks, net 26 10,606 ° -
Proceeds from long-term borrowi'ngs from banks .26 3.{:{5 ’4‘1616 21,530 14,370
Repayment of long-term barrowings from banks iy T ’3"""13[9»326) (4,116) TI.‘E"E[Z,BS?] -
Repayment of long-term borrawings from subsidiaries e 26 .. &'mﬁ_ 3 - IERARe (4,000)
NEtcash from /,1used in) (Nancing activitios s, -kt M r - e £PEL AR I 218518 172,194 TR (2,857 Y ER5AI544
T = > D =
Increase / [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents b:ﬁi:;i 724) 15,481 "E3Ts(4%604) 8,925
Cash and cash equivalents - balance at beginning of year T R eNN908, 26,547 4511568 3,753
Efiect of exchange rate differences ErdsnnTe) (120}, lﬁﬁ;}?ﬂﬁ(SloS) (1,110}

I 1‘»18”&;:*2&’1??5135 oueia«r»}’%mﬁ;ﬁéw s'ml’"*:a ':;411*568

1 Amount paid in cash in the period in respect of exceptional items was $5.3 million (2017: $5.3 million).

Telit Communications PLC Annual Report 2018 163



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Year ended 31 December 2018

Share
Share premium Qther Translation Retained
capital account reserve reserve earnings Total
o $°00D $'000 $'000 $:000 $'000 $'000
Ba:laﬁnce amEJafnﬁuaf'ry 0T8T B A R85 R B FA9778% AL 27 2N i 120697 B 3881024 %0 TRi1241543
Total comprehensive income / [Loss) fof the year
Loss for the year - - = - {36,360) {36,360}
Other comprehensive income - - = (5,352) (4) [5,356)

B T e TN oy T TR =
[lotal comprehensive.income,(loss) by, o 2 Ko 4 rw“*;C“F_”-. o "3".’& T S5 3521 B, 36136 LIRE T 411778)

Transactions with owners:
. Share-based payment charge - 3 - - - 3,659 3,659
wealance*“'an 31I’nmecember,zme“§ R s a2k - 9 T8R0T 2T a8 0NN 8455 319] T°% 1841486

Year ended 31 December 2017

Share
Share preamium Other Treasury Translation Retained
capital account reserve stock fund reserve earnings Total
$000 $'000 $'000 . $'000 _ . $°000, . $'000 __$'000

B3lance atg Manusry 20178 Bt b 278 AN O BAN I 17 2N 038 T 412,127 KT T 9 29) R e '?(21.*4991 b DRBET L A922]
Total comprehensive income /

{loss] for the year

Loss for the year - = = = - (52,216) (52,216}
Olher comprehensive income - - - 2= 11,801 121.2) 11,559

AT R ) '*w 7,
40 7657‘§

}? .u‘; ‘rufs )

Transactions with owners:

Exercise of options 31 165 = 1,929 - (1,929) 196
Issue of shares 150 49,510 = - - - 49,660
Share-based payment charge - - = = = 1,805 1.805
Cash dividend - = - (5,682} (5.682)

e e e e e vy T - —— T .
dStaltransactions with owners SR A81E ,mﬁm‘wst’:’ ”If{:’")’_,.”’}'ffiﬁ.» 6%

"&ls*’soslw TG 1.5=97.g,

42 1653 AL AR 778{

52 ,,.‘,(z 727)r‘r.5;;’§, TR AAN2697)E%. M.Jaa.om irAN26154
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Year ended 31 December 2018

Share
Share premium Other Translation Retained
capital account reserve reserve earnings Total
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 . '$°000 $'000

BSnce atddlanuary.2018 ’%Ls.u-,:\‘-'-' A 12165kt w407 18Y mead241538h e s (909 PRI R59/6 30 s i 1351202

Total comprehensive income / (loss] for the year

Loss for the year - - - - (6,106} 6,106)
Foreign currency translation differences V- - (4,029} - 14,029)
o T T TR e Sy e L s e P SR e = = .
Total comprehenslve xncome/llosslfj% 'r,r-“';h;, S ‘&fﬁ'g ST At WY T Ciel4:029) LT TR 8106) B £2.4(10,135)

Transactions with owners

Share-based payment charge - i= - = {1.472) (1,472)
Share-based payments to subsidiaries - = 5131 , - - .. .5131
iotal transactions with‘owners{ = —‘h*',‘ 1 3. e LI R 1315‘;‘,‘:‘,{;‘,‘?‘15‘? _)'&(1’1.72&3\‘5{4‘:13”659,

"u{;‘ \%‘.i"

LT

‘ala‘“’nce’at TDetaaber, 2019} ’*;«kt; 0 AL !;:"’“;@;Bz 16585 '?‘3'1.9 778"’*4‘3‘,;,129’669’:‘1’?;1[4 939)&%&352 ost“ '&1’28}72’6_'

Year ended 31 December 2017

Share
Share premium Other Treasury Translation Retained
capitatl account reserve stock fund reserve earnings Total
. .$000 . $°000 $'000 . $'000 '$°000 . _ . $'000 ... .$'000

Balance 3 a’:’,’1‘%,a?"'nu"'a"" 017,\‘1«: _f*z“’r E ;11 98&2&%%1103}!;&;@'&52“1&609 B AH1,9 29 TR T 2065 0 i SR T6 7,805 ¥ 488316

Total comprehensive income /
(loss] for the year

Profit for the year - i= - - - 1,160 1.160
Foreign currency translation
differences

= =* 1,747

Total comprehensnve |ncomef *"’T“"&‘F “"" T BT T, i N *-i‘”‘t' R T
(s PNl e Bk 3~3*.a~ z_i..f "‘3'15‘:4%&3, e fé's‘i—-{_,-'_ﬁ,} TaTk %:,,

Transactions with owners

Exercise of options 31 165 - 1929 - (1.929) 196
Issue of shares 150 49,510 - - -- - 49,660
Share-based payment charge - - : = =1 =i (1,724) {1,724)
Share-based payments to

subsidiaries - - 3,529 = = - 3,629
Cash dividend ) ) - - {5,682) _ [5,682)

ffotal*»transEEtions with owiers

A3 TR snr‘;?'f;@mm;’szs[ | 3*529&*&31‘«*_@'929‘? R RS 19,3350 ) 16 TA5,979)

Sy gty prowe e e = T virrors Ty
BalaRce at 31 December 201777 e L A2 65 R T49,TTBF 20k 4 24538 B 2 2 et kb 009 Kot 065959, 6 30 g5 1351202
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

< oa =7

For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

[a) General information

Telit Communications PLC [the "Group” or “Telit"] is a global leader in Internet of Things [loT)
enablement, with an extensive portfolio of wireless connectivity modules, platforms, virtual
celtular loT operator, and professional services, empowering hundreds of millions of
connected things’.

The Group sells its products and services directly through a network of distributors to
thousands of direct and indirect customers globally. With nearly two decades of loT innovation
experience, Telit continues to redefine the boundaries of digital business by delivering secure,
integrated fof solutions for many of the world's largest brands. This includes enterprises,
original equipment manufacturer (0EMs), system integrators and service providers across all
industries enabling their pursuit of enterprise digital transformation.

The Group offers a broad portfolio of integrated products and services. This includes cellular
communication modules {from 26 to 56 technologies], global navigation satellite system
(GNSSI, short range wireless modules including low power Wi-Fi and Bluetooth, loT
connectivity and loT platform services.

The company’s financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries
{together referred to as the "Group”]. The parent company financial statements present
information about the Company as a separate entity and not about its Group.

On publishing the parent company’s financial statements here together with the Group
financial statements, the Company is taking advantage of the exemption in s408 of the
Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual statement of comprehensive income and
related notes that form a part of these approved financial statements.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently
to all periods presented in these group financial statements, with lhe exception [FRS 15 and
IFRS 9 applied by the Group for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result
of adoption of these new accounting standards are described below.

(b) Basis of presentation of the financial statements

Both the parent company’'s financial statements and the Group financial statements have
been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ["Adopted IFRSs"). The Group and parent’s financial
statements have been prepared on 3 historical cost basis, except for: financial assets and
liabilities which are presented at fair value through profit or loss.

Basis of preparation - Going Concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position as well as the financial position of the Group. The groups cash
flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are set out in the Finance Director’s statement
on pages 12 to 21 and in notes 18, 23, 24, 26 and 27 to the financial statements. These pages
also include the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its
financial risk management abjectives; details of its financial instruments; and its exposures
to credit risk.

Following the sale of the automotive division on 27 February 2019, the group has repaid all
outstanding loans and credit facilities from HSBC Bank plc and certain of its affiliates and also
from Bank Hapoalim B.M. Since this date the company has adequate cash to finance its
working capital needs. Going forward the group will look to secure new lines of credit and
other facilities in order to release cash and increase its financing flexibility.
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In addition, the Group has received tong-term preferential rate loans supported by the Ministry
of Trade and Commerce in ltaly. Further information is provided in note 26.

In assessing going concern, the Board has considered the risks related to (a) the level of
demand for the Group's products which may also affect the possibility of utilising some of
these facilities since they depend upon the level of sales in specific markets and in some
instances to specific customers; (b) the fluctuations in the exchange rate and thus the
consequence for the cost of the Group's raw materials; [c] the continuity of supply from key
suppliers; and {d) the company’s budgets and forecasts in current market environments.

The Board has also carefully reviewed the Group’s budget for 2019 and its medium-term
plans, including the restructuring plan. The Directors are mindful that the Group operates in
the loT sector which remains a rapidly growing industry subject to ongoing change in
technological and competitive landscape.

After making enquiries, the directors are canfident that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements. '

{c) Functional and presentational currency

The consolidated and company financial statements are presented in US dollars, which differs
from the functional currency of the Company and some subsidiaries thatare not located'in the
dollar zone.

The Company’'s functional currency is the GBP.

The Group and Company reportis in US dollars to fully reflect the Group's global operations
due to the following: 1) the production of its products in Asia resulting in manufacluring costs
denominajed in US dollars; and 2] revenues in US dollars, or linked to the US dollars. comprise
the biggest share of the Group’s overall revenues.

The assets and liabilities of the Company’s subsidiaries that have a functional currency ather
than the US dollar are translated at the closing exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date. Income and expense items and cash flows are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange rate differences arising, from the translation of the above mentioned
items, are recorded directly in other comprehensive income as a separate component called
“translation differences”. Goodwill and intangible assets arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each batance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss, with the exception of monetary items that are designated to hedge a portion of the
Group's net investment in a foreign operation. These are recognised in the statement of other
comprehensive income {"OCI") until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss, Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

(d) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries controlled by the Company for the years to 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if,
the Group has:

« power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee),

» exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee.

¢ the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Theresults of subsidiaries acquired during the yearare included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the date control is obtained. All intra-group transactions and
balances between the Group’s companies are eliminated on consolidation.

Gain or loss on partial disposal of investments in subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are recognised in equity.,

{e} Business combination

Business combinatians are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition
date, which is the date on which control transferred to the Group.

For acquisitions the Group measures goadwill at the acquisition date as:

e the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

» the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire; plus
o the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquire; less

* the net recognised amaunt (fair value] of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in prolfit or
loss. Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or
equity securities, are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not re-measured and settlement is
accounted for withih equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognised in profit or loss. On a transaction-by-transaction basis, the
Group electsto measure non-controlling interests either atits fair value or atits proportionate
interestin the recognised amount of the identifiable net assets of the acquire at the acquisition
date.

(f) Trade receivables

Trade receivables classified as current assets are recognised at the transaction price less
impairment based on the simplified Excepted Credit Losses (ECL} model. For trade
receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.

Trade receivables classified as non<current assets are recognised at the originat invoice
amount, discounted to present value where the effect is material.
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{g) Inventories

_Produced finished goods are stated at the lower of cost or net realisablevalue. Cost comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, directs labour costs and those overheads that have
been incurred in bringing the inventofies ta their present location and condition. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realizable value represents the estimated
selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred’in marketing,
selling and distribution.

Raw materials are presented at the lower of cost or net realisable vatue, with cost calcutated
using the weighted average method.

{h) Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment. The company investment in
subsidiaries is tested for impairment by comparison against the underlying value of the
subsidiaries’ assets.

(i} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and deprec'i'at:ibn method are reviewed at each
year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost over the estimated useful l“i':fe of the assets,
using the straight-line method. Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation rates are as follows:
Useful life - Years

Buildings 33
Office furniture and equipment 7-17
Computers 3
Vehicles 4-7
Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term and 7-10
Machines and equipment 4-10

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and'is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminuep

For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

(j! iIntangible assets

intangible assets with finite lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are
available for use.

Amortisation rates are as follows:

Useful life - Years

Software and licenses 3-7 or license term
Customer relationships 4.5-5
Acquired technology 2.5-5
Trademark - Company only . 8
Internally developed intangible assets: '
loT Products 3-5
loT Services 3

The cost of research activities is recognised as an expense in the periodin whichiitisincurred.

Aninternally developed intangible asset arising from the Group's expenditure on development
is recognised only when the Group can demonstrate:

* The technical feasibility of completing the intangible assets so that the asset will be
available for use or sale

* Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset
» How the asset will generate future economic benefits

» The availability of resources to complete the asset ]

» The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Internally generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful
lives, typically 3-5 years, from the date at which such assets are available for use. Where the
internally generated intangible asset is not yet available for use, it is tested for impairment
annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recaverable amount. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(k) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
and the amount recognised for the non-controlling interest over the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabitities and contingent liabilities of the entity or business
recognised at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset held at cost and is subsequently measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired
entity and re-valued to the closing rate at each balance sheet date. Goodwill is not subject to
amortisation but is subject ta testing for impairment. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwilt is allocated to the cash-generating unit to which it relates. Cash generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recagnised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

On full or partial disposal of a subsidiary attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on
dispasal. On partial disposal of subsidiary where controlis not lost any goodwill attributable
would be recognised against non-controlling interest in equity.

{l] Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of it's tangible and
intangible assets (excluding goodwilll to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment lass. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where the
asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. :

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset [cash-generating unit] is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

(m) Other operating expenses, exceptional expenses related to
restructuring and other exceptional items

The Group classifies and presents certainitems of income and expense as exceptional, as the
Group considers that it allows for a comparable analysis of the underlying performance of the
Group. The Group also seeks to present a measure of underlying performance which is not
impacted by exceptional items. These measures are described as "adjusted” and are used by
the management to measure and monitor the Group’s underlying performance. The Group
considers any other exceptional items of income and expense for classification as exceptional
by virtue of their nature and size. The items classified as exceptional (and are excluded from
the adjusted measures) are described in further detait in notes 5 and 6.

Y
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminuen

For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

{n} Income taxes
The tax credit represents the sum of net operating losses recognised as deferred tax assets.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported in the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liabilily for current taxis calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liabitity method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liabilityin a transaction thatis not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent thatitis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting
date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive income, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in equity.

(o) Trade payables

Trade payabtes are non-interest bearing. Trade payables initially recognised at their tair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

(p) Post-employment benefits

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan, which requires contributions to be made
to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
ptan is determined using the projected urit credit method. Re-measurement, comprising of
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benetit liabilityl. are recognised immediately in the
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings
through OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement are not reclassified to profit
or toss in subsequent periods. b
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Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liabitity or
asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
‘administration expenses’ and ‘selling and distribution expenses’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income [by functionl:

« Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements

* Netinterest expense or income

Severance pay schemes
Severance pay scheme surpluses and deficits are measured as:
* the fair value of plan assets at the reporting date: less

« plan liabilities calculated using the projected unit credit method, discounted to'its present
value using yields available for the appropriate government bonds that have maturity dates
appropriate to the terms of the liabilities; plus

Remeasurements of the net severance pay scheme assets and liabilities, including actuarial
gains and losses on the scheme liabilities due to changes in assumptions or experience within
the scheme and any differences between the interest income and the aclual return on assets,
are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

(g} Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at the amount that reflects consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales
related taxes. The Group sells its products and services to customers and distributors, which
are considered end-customers.

loT Products revenues

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. This generally occurs when the customer takes goods from the
Group's premises or its agent. In other cases, control of the assets is transferred when the
goods ‘are delivered to the specific location agreed with the customer. )

Warranty obligation

The Group provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sate of
its loT products, in accordance with general terms and conditions. These assurance-type
warranties are accounted for under |AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets. Refer to the accounting policy on warranty provisions in section (x}.

Customers discounts

The Group provides retrospective discounts to a limited number of certain customers based
onthe quantity and mix of the products purchased. These discounts are offset against revenue
and amounts payable by the customer. The Group records accrued liability using expected
value method to reflect the estimated discounts that will be provided in the following periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conTinueo

Faor the year ended 31 December 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

loT Services revenues
Revenue from Connectivity and loT Platforms, being the major part of services revenue, is

recognised over time, based on usage or on a straight-line basis, depending on the customer’s
contract.

Revenue for other services is recognised at point in time by reference to stage of completion
of the transaction, which is determined by surveys of work performed.

Royalty income [Parent Company)
Revenue for the Company is recognised for sales-hased royalty when the sale occurs.

Contract balances
Trade receivabtes
Areceivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional

(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is duel. Refer to
accounting policies of financial assets in section [v].

Contract liabllities [deferred income] -

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due] from the customer. If
a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever
is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue.when the Group performs under the
contract.

{r) Supplier rebates

Rebates from suppliers are accounted for in the period in which they are earned and are based
on commercial agreements with suppliers. All Rebates earned are volume related and are
short-termin nature, with rebate earned but notyetreceived typically relating to the preceding

,quarter’s trading. Rebate income is recognised in cost of sales in the Statement of
comprehensive income and rebate earned but notyet received is included within other current
assets in the Statement of Financial Position.

[s) Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also
spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(t) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Finance charges; including any premiums to be paid on settlement or redemption and direct
issue costs and discounts relating to barrowings, are accounted for on an accruals basis and
charged to the statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest method.
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(u) Government grants

Government grants are recognised when it is reasonable to expect that the grants will be
received and that all related conditions will be met.

Government grants recelved in respect of costs which have been capitalized as development
costs are deducted from the carrying amount of Lhe asset.

Government grants relating to costs which have been expensed are recognized in other
operating income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs.

In accordance with IAS 20, government loans that have a below-market rate of interest are
recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 at their fair value and subsequently at
amortized cost. The difference between the initial carrying value of the loan (its fair value) and
the proceeds received is trealed as a government grant.

{v) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets
Initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the accounting policies in (q] Revenue
recognition. In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or
fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘'solely payments of principat
and interest (SPPI}' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as
the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. ACCOUNTING PbLIClES CONTINUED

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at arnortised cost [debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

» Thefinancial assetis held within a business model with the abjective to hald financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
[EIR} method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. The Group's financial assels at
amortised cost includes trade receivables, and loans to subsidiaries in parent company.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses [ECLs) for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows willinclude cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are recognised in two
stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-manth ECL]. For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifelime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is untikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account‘any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Derivative financial instruments

In 2018 the Group entered into forward currency contract as economic hedges of its exposure
to foreign currency risk in forecast transactions. These derivatives are measured at fair value
through profit and loss. Refer to Note 8 for more details.
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Financial liabilities

All the Group's financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabililies. It holds no
financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss’.

Other financial liabilitics are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expecled life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate,
ashorter period.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

{w) Share-based payments
The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based payment.

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees and directors.
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments’is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that
wilt eventually vest.

Fair value is measured using an appropriate valuation model at the date of the grant.

That costis recognised in employee benefits expense, together with a corresponding increase
in equity [retained earningsl, over the pefiod in which the service and, where applicable, the
performance conditions are fulfitled {the vesting period]. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimata of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period. The financial effect of awards by the parent company of options over its
equity shares to employees of subsidiary undertakings is recognised by the parent company
in its individual financial statements as an increase in its investment in subsidiaries with a
credit to equity equivatent to the IFRS 2 cost in subsidiary undertaking. The subsidiary, in turn,
recognised the IFRS 2 cost inits income statement with a credit to equity to reflect the deemed
capital contribution from the parent company. .
Where the Group has settled a grant of equity instruments during the vesting period, the
Group accounts for the settlement as an acceleration of vesting, and recognises immediately
in the statement of comprehensive income the amount that otherwise would have been
recognised for services received over the remainder of the vesting period. When the terms of
an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair
value of the unmadified award, provided the original terms of the award are met. An additional
expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuepd

For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

{x) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised on the sale of its loT products. The
Group has provided for the estimated cost of replacement or repair of those products on which
it expects to receive warranty claims during that period. The actual cost of warranty repair is
dependent on the number of returns during the warranty period and the nature of the repairs
to be undertaken or the product replacement cost.

This pravision is reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted for management's best current .
estimates, the judgmental nature of these items means that future amounts settled may differ
from those provided. Since 2018, the accruat of this provision was changed from a general
one, covering generalwarranty risks to an accrual on a case-by-case basis, where a provision
is accrued when a warrant claim or negotiations reach an advanced stage. Initial recognition
is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised
annually.

ly) Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Critical accounting judgments

Inthe process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management consider the fottowing
judgments, apart from those involving estimates on future uncertain events, which are
discussed further below, to have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from 10T Connectivity and Platforms, being the major part of services revenue, is
recognised over time, based on usage or on a straight-line basis, depending on the customer’s
contract. Revenue for other services is recagnised at a point in time, by reference to stage of
completion of the transaction, which is determined by surveys of work performed.

Grant receivable

Income relating to government grants is recognised when there is reasonable assurance that
the Company has complied with the conditions attaching to them and the grant will be received.
Management is required to exercise judgment in determining when compliance with the
terms of the grant and receipt of the grant are probable. See also note 5A and 8. Judgement is
made on the criteria regarding how and over which period the grant should be recorded and
the estimated fair value of the loan element.

Exceptional and restructuring expenses

Exceptional items are presented separately in the statement income when the amounts
resulting from exceptional or restructuring activities in order to allow for a comparable
analysis of the underlying performance of the Group. See also note 5B8. Exceptionat expenses
related to restructuring are recognised only when the Group has a constructive obligation,
which is when a detailed formal plan identifies the part of the business concerned, the location
and number of employees affected, identified assets related, a detailed estimate of the
associated costs, and the employees affected has been notified. See also note 6.
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Allocating fair values in a business combination

Business combination in subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method whereby
their aggregate consideration is atlocated to the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on management’s best estimates. Management is required to exercise
judgment in the determination of the fair value of identified assets and liabilities, and
particularly intangible assets. See also note 2.

Share-based payments
The Group has granted equity-settled share-based payments to certain directors and

employees. Such options are required to be fair valued in accordance with the requirements
of IFRS 2 Share-based payment. :

Determination of fair value requires the exercise of judgment regarding the appticable
assumptions to be used as inputs into the fair value model, including the expected volatility,
risk-free rate and expected option life. Changes in these assumptions would affect the fair
value of options and hence the amount recorded in the statement of comprehensive income.
Sea also note 25.

Amortisation of internally generated development assets

Amortisation shall begin when the asset is available for use, that is when it is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. The amortisation charge for each period shall be recognised in profit or loss
over the period in which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by
the entity, estimated to be 3 - 5 years. See also note 13.

Assets held for sale classification

Assets are classified as held for sale if the criteria outlined by IFRS 5 "Non-current assets
held of sate and discontinued operations” are met. On 13 July 2018, Telit Communications PLC
agreed to sell its automotive business to TUS International Limited ("TUS"] for a cash
consideration of $105 million (subject to adjustments on completion and an overall cap of
$125 million). The transaction was completed on 27 February 2019. Management'is required
to exercise judgement in determining an assessment of whether criteria for assets held for
sale classification have been met as at 31 December 2018, particularly in respect of:

+ the asset is available for immediate sate subject onlytoterms thatare usual and customary
for sales of such assels (or disposal groups), and

« the sale is highly probable, within 12 months of classification as held for sale (subject to
limited exceptions).

IFRS 5 outlines how to account for non-current assets held for sale {or for distribution to

owners). In general terms, assets [or disposal groups) held for sale are not depreciated, but : B
are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and are

presented separately 'in the statement of financial position. Specific disclosures are also

required for discontinued operations and dispasals of non-current assets.

In general, the following conditions must be met for an asset lor 'disposal group'] to be
classified as held for sale;-

1l Managemen‘l is committed to a ptan to sell

2) The asset is availabte forimmediate sale subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such assets (or disposal groups}

3] An active program to locate a buyer is initiated

4) The sale is highly probable, within 12 months of classification as held for sale [subject to
limited exceptions) ’

5) The assetis being actively marketed for sale at a sales price reasonable in relation to its fair
value

81 Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that plan will be sign.’fficantly
changed or withdrawn
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

The transaction required a reorganisation of the automotive division and within the Group and
transfer of the IP, assets and employees who supported the automotive business in R&D and
sales teams in several countries, this reorganization has been substantially completed in
January 2019.

Before the completion of the deal, and as announced, the buyer asked for a number of
extensions in order to secure funds. The buyer’s shareholders approved the raise of equity on
30 January 2019. The debt raising by the buyer was not completed in order to close the deal,
andon 27 February 2019 Telit agreed, after the buyer was unable to secure all of the necessary
funds, to provide a vendor loan of $38.5m for 6 weeks from the date of completion.

Management judgmentis that the transaction as at 31 December 2018 was not mature enough,
and did not meet all the conditions of IFRS 5 in order to be classified as held for sale.

If the transaction was classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2018, this would result in
reclassification of non-current assets lo current of $42.2 million and no material impact on
the profit and loss, as no impairment would have been recognised and the impact on the profit
and loss would be limited to amortisation and depreciation of non-current assets.

For further details please refer to Note 29.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Provisions

The Group is involved in various legal or other proceedings incidental to the ordinary course of
its business. The process of determining the appropriate provision for such uncertainties
requires judgment. The final resolution of some of thase items may give rise to material profit
and loss and / or cash flow variances. See also note 24. '

Recoverability of deferred tax assets
UnderiFRS, a deferred tax asset arising on trading losses or deductible temporary differences

is only recognised where itis probable that future taxable profits will be available to utilize the
losses. The key judgments in assessing the recognition of a deferred tax asset are:

» the probability of taxable profits being available in the future; and
» the quantum of taxable profits that are forecast to arise.

This requires management to exercise judgment in forecasting future results. There are a
number of assumptions and estimates involved in estimating the future results of the relevant
entity in which the trading losses arose, including:

* management’s expectations of growth in revenue;
¢ changes in operating margins;
» uncertainty of future technological developments; and

» uncertainty over global and regional economic conditions and demand for the Group's
services.

Changing the assumplions selected by management could sfgnifiéantly affect the Group’s
results. See also note 9.
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Recoverability of internally developed intangible assets )

Capitalization of development costs requires the exercise of management judgment in
determining whether it is probable that future economic benefits to the Company arising will
exceed the amount capitalized. This requires management to estimate anticipated revenues

and profits from the related products to which such development costs relate. See also
note 13.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired, requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires estimating the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved in calculating the net present
value of future cash flows from the Group’s cash-generating units, including:

* management’s expectations of growth in revenue;
* changes in operating margins; ’
¢ uncertainty of future technotogical developments in the market;

uncertainty over global and regional economic conditions and demand for the Group's
products;

long-term growth rates; and

selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved.

Changing the assumptions selected by management, in particular the discount rate and
growth rate assumptions used in the cash flow projections could significantly affect the
Group's results. See also note 13.

(z) Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired [treasury shares) are recognised at cost and
deducted from equity.

Na gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group's own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration, if reissued, is recognised in the share premium. Share options exercised during
the reporting period are satisfied with treasury shares.

(aa) Changes in accounting policies
New / Revised standards and interpretations applied

This is the first year the Group has applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9. The nature and effect of the
changes resulting from adoption are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018, but do not have
a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Group has not
chosen to implement early adoption of any standards, interpretations or amendments that
have been issued but are not yet effective.
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IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers .

The Group adopted IFRS 15 from 1 January 2018 without restating comparatives. The Group
undertook a review of the main types of commercial arrangement used under this model. In
arder to determine if a change in policy was required the Group determine the point at which
control passes, how the transaction price is determined, accounting for warranties and the
impact of variable consideration for discounts to customers. Management performed a
detailed analysis based on a five-step model that applies to revenue earned from contracts
with customers as follows:

« ldentify the revenue streams and analyse the contracts with customers;
+ Based on analysis of contracts with customers, identify performance obligations;
» Considerimplications of agent vs principal revenue recognition;

» Determine at what point control passes and when revenue should be recognised, i.e. based
on point in time or over a period of time;

» Determine transaction price and allocate the transaction price to the distinct performance
obligations where relevant;

» Evaluate accounting for customer discounts and assurance type warranties.

Following this analysis management has concluded that the application of IFRS 15 had no
material impact on the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaced 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Group has applied
the standard from 1 January 2018 without restating comparatives.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the Group’s accounting for impairment losses for financial
assets by replacing 1AS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit
toss [ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair vatue through profit or loss and contract assets.

The Group has analysed the financial instruments and applied the ECL model. The Group
concluded that there is no significant impact on its statement of financial position, income
statement and statement of changes in equity as a result of I[FRS 9 implementation. There
were no classification adjustments as a result of the adoption of IFRS 9.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Group's financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases. The new standard supersedes IAS 17 and is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The objective of {FRS 16 is to
ensure a single lease accounting model and lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for alt
leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlining asset is of low value. The
Group plans to apply modified retrospective approach and measure the lease liability based
on the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate as of the
date ofinitial application. Right of use assets will be measured atan amount equal to the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments. The Group will
elect to apply the standard to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
1AS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Group will elect to use the exceptions proposed by the standard on
lease contracts for which the lease term ends within 12 months as of the date of initial
application, and lease contracts for which the underlying assets are low value. The Group will
apply the standard to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics, since it is reasonably
expected that the resulting effect is not materially different from applying the standard on a
lease-by-lease basis.
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The Group believes that at the initialimplementation date of the standard, assets are expected
to increase by $12.6M and liabilities by $12.6M. Accordingly, from the initial application date,
instead of presenting the rental expenses for the leased assets under operating leases, the
Group wilt recognize depreciation expenses for depreciation of the right-of-use assets that
were recognized and will also recognize financing expenses for the lease liability. Therefore,’
application of the standard is expected to result in a decrease in operating expenses in the
amount of $3.7M in 2019 and an increase in depreciation and in financing expenses in amount
$3.9M. In addition, following application of the standard, there is expected to be an increase in
cash flows from operating activities and a decrease in cash flows from financing activities in
the amount of $3.1M. Application of the standard is expected to have a negligible effect on the
Group’s net profit for 2019.

The Group will continue to assess the impact in the 2019 financial year. For delails is respect
of existing operating leases see Note 23. .

The following relevant inlerpretations and amendments to exisling standards issued by the
|ASB, have not been adopted by the Group as they were either nol eflective for the year or not
yet endorsed for use in the EU. The Group is currently assessing the impact of these
interpretations and amendments will have on the presentation of, and recognition’in, parent
company or cansolidated results or financial position in future periods:..

« Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle lissued on 12 December 2017)

leffective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

IFRIC Interpretation 23 ~ Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

* Amendments to 1AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement [effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 20191

e Prepayment Features with Negative Compensatian - Amendments to IFRS 9 [effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

* AIPAS 12 Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial inslrum;ents
classified as equity {effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

« AIP |AS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capilalisafibn (effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

A.There were no business combinations in 2018.

B.ln February 2017, Telit acquired 100% of the voting equity interest in GainSpan Corporation
for a cash consideration of $8 million. GainSpan designs, develops, manufactures and
commercialises ultra-low power Wi-Fi systems-on-chip and modules for battery and line-
powered devices. It also owns intellectual property in the network stacks, system and
application software it has developed.

The assessment of the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired has been completed:

Fair value

$°000

Cash 1,329
Shart-term deposits 14
Accounts Receivabtes 858
QOther current assets 524
Intangible assets 19
Tangible assets 298
Inventory 2,082
Deferred income tax assets 120
Long-term deposit 25
Technology 4145
Trade payables (1,877}
Other current liabilities {2,402)
Other long-term liabilities (153)
Total net identifiabte assets 5,082
Consideration paid 8,001
Excess of cost - goodwill 2,919

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the skills and experience of the workforce.

Following the acquisition, the Group started the integration of GainSpan which included the
closure of the development site in San Jose. The total expenses related to GainSpan integration
costs, include $0.2 million acquisition related costs and costs related to the shutdown of the
development centre of $3.4 million which were recordad under other operating expenses.

At the end of 2017, following the shutdown on San-Jase site, the Group booked animpairment
of the goodwill related to GainSpan workforce in the San-Jose site of $1.3 million. This amount
is part of the integration costs, see note 5b.

As at 31 December 2017, the activity purchased from GainSpan was fully integrated into the
Group and therefore the Company cannot estimate the exact impact of this acquisition on the
consolidated results. Nevertheless, the revenue generated from the GainSpan products in
2017 amount to $8.1 million.

3. REVENUE

2017

*$°000

Sales of loT HW products . 343,678
Sales of Connectivity and loT ptatforms services 27728

Sales of licences and other services

For geographical split of revenue please refer to Note 4.
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4, SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Operating segments are reportedin a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker in the Group. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments
and makes strategic decisions, has been identified as the Chief Executive.

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss.
The Group is active in three geographical regions: Americas, EMEA and APAC.

The Group's activities in the loT services business unit have grown in recent years and,
although operational results from this business unit still comprise less than 10% from the
Group’s results, the Chief Executive focuses more and more on loT services and end-to-end
loT solutions, as the future engine of growth for the Group. Therefore, the Group now presents
its operational results in two business segments: loT Services and loT Products. These two
business lines are active in all geographic regions,

Segmental information for each business line is presented betow:”

ety ay
#iConsoli dated

2018 | % i 5

Revenue B

External sales: v"’*g;’- aﬁ?yﬂeﬁzﬁﬁ”

Sales of HW products : by

Sales of Connectivity and 10T platlorma
services

Sales of licences and ather services
Inter-segment sales' i .
{TotalreVEnuBY: g s BT oMb S0t ’m 36 OOQLW,)..:{W

4277483,

5

Result

Gross profit

Gross margin

Impairment of goodwitl
Impairment of internally generated
development costs

Segment EBIT

Unallocated expenses?
Operating loss

Finance income

Finance costs

Loss before income taxes
Income taxes

: Loss»for,the

perlodu,f: s TR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

loT Products loT services  Consolidated
2017 $°000 $'000 $°000
Revenue
External sales:
Sales of HW products » 343,678 - 343,678
Sales of Connectivity and 10T platforms
services - 27728 27,728
Sales of licences and other services - 3.125 3125
Inter-segment sales’ - - -
Totalréavenie; 343778} 30,853 374,531
Result
Gross profit 113,740 17,842 131,582
Gross margin 33.1% 57.8% 35.1%
Impairment of goodwitl (1,610) - [1,610)
Impairment of internally generated
development costs (6,6438) (1,976) (8,414)
Segment EBIT 18.942) 17.492) 126,434)

(2.6%) (56.7%])

Unallocated expenses? 123,234}
Operating loss (49.668)
Finance income 155
Finance costs {7,268)
Loss before income taxes (56,781)
Income taxes 4,565
Uoss for.theperiod 1521216)

1 There are notransactions between business unit segments.

2 Unallocated cxpenses principally including general and administrative expenses such as director’s
compensation, salaries of certain senior exccutives, professional fees le.g. legal and audit fees] and other
expenses which cannot be directly allocated Lo one of the segments.

Geographical information

The Group's performance can also be reviewed by considering the geograpbhical markets and
geographical locations within which the Group operates. This information is outlined below:

Revenue by geographical market:

“2018 2017 % of total
. $m gvenue $m revenue Change %
Americas TUN9L . 450% 160.2 42.8% 20.1
EMEA 715946 37:3% 147.4 39.4% 8.3
APAC 55, CATI% 66.9 17.8% 129
Tatal 4275’ ) [ i A4,
Non-current operating assets*:
2017
$m
Americas 179
EMEA 99.3
APAC 19.8
Jotaly 437.0

* Non-current assels for this purpose consist of properly, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME / EXPENSES
A. Other operating income

Governmental grants and benefits®!
Other

[

S,

&}

3

i

(a) The Group recognises such income from the regional grant-making body only once it has received
confirmation of eligibility and ance the qualifying conditions have been satisfied and the Groupis reasonably
assured of receipl. The Group has recognised amounts expected to be received in respect of the regional
grant within other income in the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 as all Lhe conditions for qualification,
which relate lo the tevel of eligible expenditure incurred, have been satisfied.

B. Other exceptional items

2017

$°000
Integration and transaction costs' 4,970
Legal and other expenses related to crisis management? 1,540
Net expenses [gain) in relation to the departure
of the former CEQ3 (1.242)
Legal expenses related to BAMES* -
Cther . L o 144
- ' ' o 5412

1 Costs related mainty 1o the automotive sale which was signed in July 2018 and completed in February 2019
and include mainly Llegal and other costs related to the transaction and the reorganization. (2017: retated
mainly lo the GainSpan integration and restructuring.)

2 Cosis retaled mainly to legal and advisory costs in assacialion with the crisis management started in 2017
following the departure of former CEQ and the ongoing FCA investigation.

3 Nel expenses [gain} were affected by the reversal of unvested share based payment charges related to
unvested options and RSUs issued to CEO's in the amount of $1.3m [2017: $2.5 million), For more details see
also remuneration report.

4 Costsrelated to defending the Group position in BAMES case including the setilement fees of approximately
$1 million - for more details see atso nate 29.

6. EXCEPTIONAL EXPENSES RELATED TO RESTRUCTURING

A. Restructuring plan

At the end of 2017, we commenced a review of the Group's activities, cost base and product
portfolio in order to address the issues around decreased gross margin and increased
operating cost base. As a resullt of this review, we adopted an 18 months restructuring plan
including mainly actions to rationalise the Group’s activities and our operating cost structure
including:

1 Declared a number of our products and services portfolio “end of life” reduced the R&D and
operations investment in maintaining products with low contributions. In some cases, this
led to write-~off of capitalised development assets and inventory [both finished goods and
components]. These write-offs were recorded under restructuring costs in the income
statement.

2 Reducing the number of R&D centres by 2019. We closed one expensive R&D centre in San
Jose in 2017 and another one in Hamburg, Germany in 2018 and transferred the knowledge
to lower-cost sites.

3 Adjusted the headcount of our sales and administrative teams in each region to align them
with the actual group growth globally. Cost rationalisation monitoring witl continue in 2019
and we expect that these measures will reduce again the cash operating expenses in 2019
by approximately $10 million over comparable costs in 2018 after we already achieved a
reduction of $12.7 million in 2018 comparable costs in 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminued

For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. EXCEPTIONAL EXPENSES RELATED TO RESTRUCTURING CONTINUED

B. Exceptional expenses related to restructuring

2017

. $°000
Termination fees and other employees related expenses' 1,890
Accelerated amortisation of capitalised development assets
related to restructuring? 6,218
Accelerated amortisation of acquired technology related to )
restructuring? 1,839
Provision for inventory items related to restructuring? 5,749
Pravision for impairment of goodwill related to restructuring?

1 Related mainly to the headcount reduction following the c\osi;ng of the R&D centre in Germany and the
reduction in the headcounl at the loT services. The amount was affected by the reversal of unvested share
based payment charges related to unvested options and RSUs issued to these employees in the amount of
$0.8m.

2 Non cash write-off of capltahsed devetopment assets, acquired technology and goodwdl which recorded
under restructuring costs following a classification of several products and services as "end of life™ or for
being abandon as part of the overall restructuring plan.

3 The rationalisation of the product portiolio made some inventory [both finished goods and components)
redundant which resulted in non cash impairment charges.

4 Including mainty consultancy costs related to restructuring and other costs related to closfng of olfices in
Germany and in loT services.

7. FINANCE INCOME

2017
. +$’000
lnterestmcome from bank deposits . .. .. .. WM‘M&? . . .155
RIS g TR T o R AN A7 TR e 56
8. FINANCE COSTS

2017
$°000

Non-cash expenses related to effective
interest rate on government preferred loan 1129
Interest expense on bank loans and overdrafts 2,329
Bank fees and other bank expenses 1,218
Loss from forward currency contracts -
Exchange rate differences, net... 2,592
; iE 52&»%7‘2%"&“

e e < mipe e
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9. INCOME TAXES

A.Tax recognised in statement of comprehensive income
Currentincome tax:

2017
$'000
1,437

Current year taxes
Prior year taxes
_Deferred taxes

2017
. y $'000
Net loss / (gain] on actuarial gains and losses P R 46

e T oy e S o
Deferred tax charged 10.0CIF S Sn e is ~f, Tt o 0 X T N C i Pl 15 L

B. Income tax payables / receivables, net

T 2017

$°000

1 January hJ '_?:1*256 2,023
Current year taxes REser Y29 1,437
Prior year taxes " ToiTR612) 1,239
Income tax received [paid) b BETT00) (3.196)
Arising from acquisition . e 7
The effect of changes in foreign exchange R . ) T ‘*,‘9"‘“‘5116 (254)

31|Decemberss 4 T12:07 7L 18256

Income tax payable as of 31 December 2018 includes $1,955.000 proviéion for un'Qertain tax
position. {2017: $1,661,000).

C. Factors affecting the tax expense for the year

The table below explains the differences between the expected tax charge, atthe UK statutory
rate 19% for 2018 and 19.25% for 2017, and the Group's total tax expense for the year:

re |ncorne

{'ossbefo

flax credit opuied atm% 0,930
Tax adjustments arising from:
Non-deductible expenses, net' {1,374)
Tax benefits arising on tax credits 1,696
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 794 .
Movements in unrecognised deferred tax asset? (7,372)
Deferred tax recognized for previous years differences 970
Utitisation of previously unrecognised deferred tax losses i s 160
Tax for previous years %ﬁ?ﬁfj& {1,239)
flaxincome at the effective taxrate,of.8.7% (2017:8.0%I g 3 s o 2. 3ﬁ§&§m%'4‘565

1 Related mainly to share based payments,
2 Relates tolosses in the Group's subsidiaries recorded in 2018 on which no deferred tax asset was recogni§éd.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailﬁtg in the respective

jurisdictions.
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The Group's future tax charge could be affected by numerous factors, including but not limited
to:

o The UK's Corporation Tax Loss Reform introduced in Finance [N. 2} Act 2017 relating to the
utilisation of brought forward losses which applies from 1 April 2017.

¢ Any tax reforms in jurisdictions where we have taxable presence, including any reforms
which may arise from the UK's proposed exit from the EU, from the European Commission’s
proposal for a Common Corporate Tax Base across EU or any reforms adopted from the
OECD’s BEPS actions such as those in relation to the deductibility of interest, anti-avoidance
or transfer pricing.

U.S. Tax Reform

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("The Act”) was enacted on December 22, 2017 and introduced
significant changes to U.S. income tax law. Effective in 2018, The Act reduced the U.S.
corporate statutory tax rate from 35% to 21%, allowed for immediate expensing of certain
qualified capital property, and eliminated the net operating toss carryback but allowed for
indefinite net operating loss carryforwards that can reduce up to 80% of taxable income. In
addition, The Actimposed a one-time mandatory tax on previously deferred foreign earnings
and created a new limitation on the deductibility of interest expense.

The US Treasury issued several proposed regulations supplementing The Act in 2018,
including further guidance clarifying the calculation of the mandatory tax on previously
unrepatriated earnings, interest expense limitations under Internal Revenue Code ["IRC")
Section 163(jl. application of the existing foreign tax credit rules, and expanding details for
application of the base erosion tax on affiliate payments.

Accounting for the income tax effects of The Act requires significant judgments and estimates
in the interpretation and calculation of the provisions of The Act. Due to the timing of the
enactment and the complexity involved in applying the provisions of The Act, we made
reasonable estimates of the effects of the Tax Act in our financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2017, as permitted under Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118, income Tax
Accounting Implications of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, which was also included in ASU No.
2018-05, Income Taxes [Topic 740), Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC Staft
Accounting Bulletin No. 118 {"SAB 118, .

The remeasurement of the Company's U.S. deferred taxes due to the reduction in the U.S.
federal corporate tax rate resulted in a reduction of deferred tax assets offset by an equat
release of the Company's valuation allowance, resulting in no net income impact during the
year ended December 31, 2017. The Transition Tax due with respect to the Company’s foreign
subsidiary was offset by the 2017 net operating losses, resulting in no impact to the overatt tax

provision. As we collected and prepared necessary data and interpreted additional guidance.

issued by the U.S. Treasury Department, the IRS, and other standard-setting bodies, we made
adjustments, over the course of 2018, to the provisional amounts including refinements to
deferred taxes. Our accounting for these items was completed in the fourth quarter of 2018,
the end of the measurement period for purposes of SAB 118, and adjustments related to the
provisional items were immateriat.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminueo

For the year ended 31 December 2018

9. INCOME TAXES CONTINUED

Belgian Tax Reform

In December 2017, a large reform of the Belgian corporate income tax regime was agreed
upon by the Belgian parliament. Part of the reform will be effective as of the current tax year
{2018), with other measures mainly coming into force as of the tax year 2021.

The main item of the reform is a decrease in the general corporate income tax rate from
33.99% to 29.58% las of tax year 2018 and to 25% las of tax year 2021]. A number of
compensating measures were introduced to compensate for the budgetary impact of this rate
reduction. One of the most important compensating measures is a restriction on Belgian
corporate taxpayers on how much of their tax losses they carry torward. While these can still
be carried forward without any time limitation, the use of the losses is limited per year to
EUR 1 million plus 70% of the company's taxable resutt exceeding EUR 1 million. Another
compensating measure is the reduction of the Belgian notional interest deduction to
incremental capital only. The company’s deferred tax asset and liability at 31 December 2018
was calculated based on the rate at which the losses and temporary differences are expected
to reverse.

Israel tax assessment

in August 2018, culminating the first stage of a tax audit, the group affiliates Telit Wireless
Solutions Ltd. and Telit Wireless Services Ltd. received tax assessments from the Israeli Tax
Authorities for FY 2013 and FY 2013-2016 respectively. These assessments relate to the
treatment of losses arising from a statutory reorganization performed in 2014 which were
utilized to offset taxable income. The potential additional tax charge to the Group is
approximately $3 million. The Group has appealed the assessment and considers, based on
professional advice and the particular facts including, specifically, that the statufory
reorganization was performed in accordance with the conditions set out in the Israeli Income
Tax Ordinance, that it has strong arguments against the disatlowance of the losses.
Accordingly. no provision has been made for this amaunt.

10. EMPLOYEES’ AND DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Employees’ emotuments:
The average number of persons [notincluding executive directors) during the year was:

Company
2017 2017
Research and development 552 -
Sales, marketing and operation § 384 10
General and administration R 140 ¢ -
L o aMeRn - - alede 10
Their aggregate reml{neration comprised:
Group Company
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
" 2018 2017 |7 .7 ;2008 2017
)0 $°000 ano $'000
Wages and salaries j 81,822 " 843
Social security costs 13,058 120
Defined benefit pension costs
[see note 20] 744 -
Defined contribution pension
costs ) - 4,361 , ) 198’
R R 3,039 1 - (9998 AT ARLSE . 23 S,
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Directors’ emoaluments s

The directors received the following remuneration in respect of services rendered to the
Group. Please refer to the table on pages 39 and 40 of the Annuat Report:

£ Yearsended:t Year ended

B December + 31December

2017

. $°000

Remuneration - e L&,T”*?}Z 093 3,059

Gain from exercise of share optibns . -v’z'é’ﬁ, S 7877
Post-employment benefits e e . ."“emti&z{%,

fl'otal]emolumenls;z.vé AK: DL

The share based compensation cost attributable to the directors in 2018 is an income of
$1.390.059 due to the reversal of the cosls associated with the unvested options of the former
CEO and former director, which expired. (2017: income of $1,788,677 due to the reversal of the
costs associated with the unvested options of the former CEO which expired when his
employment ended).

The emoluments in relation to the highest paid director are as follows:

Year ended

31 December; 31 December

EeriA2018 2017

AT 1487000 $'000

Total emoluments!' E,.L\,J}1’f019 1,301
Gain from exercise of share options ’ 5,662
Post- employmenl benellts 188
: 75T

1 Feestoformer CEO excluding payments forloss of office compensation - $0.3 for notice period and $1 million
special payment arrangement.

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, ADJUSTED MEASURES AND GROUP AUDIT
FEE

(i) EBIT for the year is stated after charging

. 1 2018 2017

. "‘ $ 000 $°000

Depreciation of owned fixed assets (note 14) o mg&,‘ms, 8,765
Amortisation of intangible asselts [note 13]: fLrRgwegl
Amortisation of purchased customer list - included in selling Eﬂ”p‘:’gﬁ_&

and marketing expenses 2 B 32 1754
Amortisation of acquired technology - W»WW

Included in R&D expenses (note 13) ?m:;ﬁZ OSE 2920

Included in exceptional expenses related to restructuring
(nate 4} . 35 1,839
Amartisation of software - included mainly in R&D expenses ?Mﬁé&f 1995
Amortisation of Internally generated development costs - :

Included in R&D expenses 18,157

Included in exceptional expenses related to restructuring

[note 6) . 6,218
Research and development expenditure 66,871
Costs of inventories recognised as an expense W,EZNTBSZ 229938
Write-downs of inventories recognised as an expense FEFTTAM6S. 1,740

x, ,‘E&Imu»usm?_méﬂ 151,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conTinuen

For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, ADJUSTED MEASURES AND GROUP AUDIT
FEE CONTINUED

{ii) Adjusted EBIT, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted profit before tax, Adjusted net
Profit for the Year and Loss in cash

EBITDA s not afinancial measure defined by IFRS as a measurement of financial performance
and may not be comparable to other similarly-titled indicators used by other companies.
Adjusted EBIT, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted profit befare tax and profit in cash are provided as
additional information only and should not be considered as a substitute for operating profit /
loss [EBIT) or net cash provided by operating activities.

Adjusted EBIT is defined as Earnings Before Interest, Tax, share based payment expenses,
amortisation of acquired intangibles, impairment and other exceptional items and exceptional
expenses; Adjusted EBITDA as Adjusted EBIT plus depreciation and other amortisation; profit
/ loss in cash as Adjusted EBITDA less capitalisation of internally generated development
assets less acquisition of tangible and intangible assets net of proceeds from disposal of
assets.

Adjusted [Loss) / Profit before tax as {Loss) / Profit before tax plus share based payment
expenses, amartisation of acquired intangibles and other exceptional items and exceptional
expenses; and Adjusted net (loss) / profit for the year as net [Loss] / Profit for the year plus
share based payment expenses, amortisation of acquired intangibles and other exceptional
items less deferred tax [credit) / expense. The Group’s management believes that these non-
GAAP measures provide useful information to investors to evaluate operatlng results and
profitability for financial and operational decision- maklng purposes and to provide
comparability between the companies in this sector, as they eliminate non-cash items and
other exceptional items, which are notinherent to the business. Consequently, Adjusted EBIT,
Adjusted EBITDA, {lossl / profit in cash, Adjusted [loss] / profit before tax and Adjusted net
[toss| / profit for the year are presented in addition to the reported resulls.

N 2017

$'000
, S A149,668)

Share- based payments L 4,324
Exceptional expenses related to reslructu;ing ‘ 15,979
Impairment of lnternally developed assets 8.414
Other excephonal items 5,412
Amortisation - |ntang|bles assets acquured . 4,834
A B SERTS SEI10,705)
Depreciation and other amortlsanon’ : - 13,14 {L 28, 757
T Y, Cx"

Capltallsatlon of lnternally generated
development assets )

Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets,
net of proceeds from disposal of assets

Share- based payments 25 hg‘«”};&.—-_

4 A 324
Exceptional expenses related to restructuring 6 }:grsv o 0:84 15,979
Impairment of internally developed assets - EAR10:238 8,414
Other exceptionalitems :ﬁ’MS 545 5,412
Amornsatlon |ntang|bles acqmred k) '8 o 4 834;

3 Excluding amortisation on acquired intangibles.
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2018 2017
Note ___§000 $000
Net loss for the year I36‘,3’60)} {52,216}
Share-based payments 25 5‘,7151 4,324
Exceptional expenses related to restructuring [ 10,8/;2; 15,979
Impairment of internally developed assets 13 10,238 8,414
Other exceptional items 5b 5,545 5,412
Amortisation of intangibles acquired 13 3,381, 4,834
Deferred taxcredit . | *_L/;.Zéﬂi (7,241)
Adjusted netlossfortheyear (6,907} 20,496)
(iii) Audit fee
Group Company
: 2018 2017 | 2018 2017
N $°000 $'000 i $:000 $'000
Fees payable to the Company’s : ! !
auditor for the audit of the | :
Company’'s annual accounts 626 394 | 626{ 394
The audit of the Company's i ‘5 |
subsidiaries pursuant to :
legistation: 466 416 1 3 -
Totalauditfees 1,092 810 (1626 3%
Fees payable to the Company's | : - B
auditor and their associates for J l
other services to the Group: 71. 370 | ~:,Ji 220
Other services relating to | | | N
taxation 391, 387 | 62 99
Total-non-audit fees 462 757 133 319,
Total fees 1,554 1,567 759 713

* This amount includes additional audit fee of $150,000 in respect of scope changes of 2017 audit. [company

$122,000)

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share are based on the following

results and numbers of shares:

Basic earnings per share

Loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company

Basic weighted average number of equity shares (1]

Diluted weighted average number of equity shares (2}

Basic and diluted loss per share lin US dollar cents)

y 2018 2017
i ] $'000 $°000
[ [36.360) {52,216

J

No. of Shafesf

No. of Shares

{7130:444,810 124,689,682
(" 1
{ |
| 130,446,810 124,689,682
]
{ 1279} 1419)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conrinueo

For the year ended 31 December 2018

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE CONTINUED
(1) Basic weighted average number of equity shares:

2017

No. of Shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 115,688,131
Effect of placing of shares [see note 19} 7,495,748

Effect of share options exercised
Basic weighted average number,
of equity shares:at'd1jDecemben iz

E

* EPS calculation includes shares exercised (per year end} for the RSU but Aot included in tho Shares issued
and fully paid lotal as settlement took place in 2019 (see Note 19)

(2) Diluted weighted average number of equity shares:

e 2018 2017
. NE’%F! Shares  No. of Shares
Basic weighted average number of equity shares ,;]:130:'_446‘.810_ 124,689,682

Effect of share options on issue

VDlluted weighted average number, “}a‘ A
of equnty,shares at? 3135ecember ,ﬂv AT

The average market value of the Company's shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive
effect of shares was based on quoted market prices for the period during which the options
were outstanding. g

Adjusted earnings per share

Areconciliation of the profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the year to the adjusted
profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders is presented below. The Group's
management believes that adjusted profit for the year and other adjusted measures such as
Adjusted EBITDA are meaningful for investors because they provide an analysis of operating
results and profitability using the same measures used by management.

2017

$°000
Loss for the year (52,216)
Share-based payments s, 715 ) 4,324
Excepiional expenses r'elated to restructuring l?':i;:ﬂo 842' - 15,979
Impairment of internally developed assets EEZR 38 8,414
Other exceptional items expenses? @ 15 545‘ o 5,412
Amortisation of intangfbles acquired EoRTae8. . .. 4,834
Deferred tax creciit m’?“iIA’ZéG] . 17 2411
to the equntysharehol TS E Rt At Vo 3R Ghaf B, ~l4 907[? W& J120. 494]

j'tdvb'id dilited (055 pereharellin USD centa b 1o ba i Lai(a.8) 7" TEA NG
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets with finite life

Internally
generated
Softwareand  development Custemer Acquired

licenses | assets [A}  relationships technology Goodwill (B} Totat
GROUP $°000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cost
1 January 2017 19,208 102,637 17,105 13,690 19,203 171,843
Net additions’ 3,997 30,416 - - - 34,413
Disposals {685] (1,540) - - - (2,225)
Arising from acquisitions 19 - - 4,145 2,919 7,083
Translation adjustments 1,661 11,436 376 601 339 14,413
31 December 2017 24,200 142,949 17,481 18,436 22,461 225,527
Net additions' 869 24,158 - - - 25,027
Disposals {109} {18,537} - - - {18,646}
Transfer 808 (670) (525) - (322}
Translation adjustments {720} (143) (290) (128) 16,607}
3T iDecember, 2018 . 125,048, 461668, 07621y 221333, 2243975,
Amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses
1 January 2017 {15,762) 132,828) (11,331) {7,700} - 167,621)
Charge for the year (1,835] (24,375) - - - (26,210)
Disposals 241 1,540 - - - 1,781
Impairment - 18,414) - - (1,610} (10,024)
Charges for the year from intangible
assets acquired (160] - {1,754} {4,759] - (6,673}
Transtation adjustments (1.449) (4,2086) (280) {393 (18) (6,344)
31 December 2017 [18,945) (68,283) (13,365) {12,852) (1,628) {115,091}
Charge for the year (1,689) (18,358) - - - [20,047)
Disposals 72 18,537 - - - 18,609
impairment - (10,238] - {535] {1,056) (11.829]
Transier (834) (48} 470 534 - 322
Charges for the year from intangible
assets acquired - - (1,323} (2,058) - (3,381]
Transtation adjustments ) 673 __ 2417 147 203 10 3,450
JiDecEmber2018) 207430 W75973) 03T (4keB) T 22l . (27967
Net book value )
3TDstemBer 2018, w3051 (67336 @a9h - 2803 196 97012
31 December 2017 5,235 74,666 4,116 5,584 20.835 110,436
1 Netof grant to receive. 2018: 51,142k, (2017: $682k}

L]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuen

For the year ended 31 December 2018

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

A.Capitalised development assets are related mainly to development of 4G, 3G, other loT products and loT Services software. Internally
generated assets related to loT products amortize over 3 to 5 years and loT Services amortize over 3 years.

The split of the net assels by technology is as follows:

Internally generated
development assets, net

Technotogy as at 31 December 2017 Change year aver year

$'000 % $°000 %o
4G 49,708 67% (1,760 14%)
3G 9,377 12% (2,758 (29%]
Other loT Modules X 6,845 9% 1,270 19%
loT Services 5% 4 65&'§-me.17% 8,736 12% (4,082) (46%)
a1, December _5 G '.! e {z; . 3 ARy ﬂb“‘ 167,336 B8R S 00%) R ATAT6 665130 B00% e o7, 33017 EE 5 10%)

Internally generated development assets that completed the development phase, moved to mass production phase and which have started
to be amortised, increased to 63% of the total internally generated development assets {2017: 47%).

Net assets in development process [not amortised yet)
Net asselsin amorhsatlon phase

{Totatf s e LS

2017
-$'000 ()
" 39,909 53%
34 757 47%

Each technology includes various subprojects which are in development stage, as demanstrated in the table below:

31 December 2018

Weighted
average of
remaining Internatly generated
Net assets started yearstobe Netassetsindevelopment development assets, net
Technology to be amortised amortised process {notamortised yet] as at 31 December 2018
$'000 % $'000 % $'000 %
4G 30,750 72% 3.4 17,198 70% 47,948 %
3G 6,267 15% 2.6 352 1% 6,619 10%
Other loT Modules 2,77 7% 4.2 5,344 21% 8115 12%
loT Services 2,689 6% 1.3 1,965 8% 4,654 7%
JTDecemben 20181, Dz, SRR T T OO AT 3‘213‘3«&&24*8591&*"5%no%m' 43167, 38VAS 100%
31 December 2017
Weighted
average of
remaining Internally génerated
Net assets started yearstobe Netassetsindevelopment development assets, net
Technology to be amortised amortised process [not amortised yet) as at31 December 2017
$'000 % $°000 %o $'000 %
4G 19,736 57% 3.8 29,972 75% 49,708 7%
3G 8,732 25% 3.3 645 2% 9,377 12%
Other loT Modules 2,023 6% 3 4,822 12% 6,845 9%
loT Services 4,266 12% 1.4 4,470 11% 8,736 12%

T RN R (T ek K R G RO e I e AT

There are no capital commitments for intangible assets as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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B.The Grouptests annually for goodwillimpairment, or more frequently if there are indications
that they might be' impaired. Management considers the loT product lines and loT Services
[collectively. "Business Units”] to be the cash generating units ["CGUs", individually, a
"CGU") for goadwill allocated to them. The cash generating units have been identified based
on the lowest levels at which goodwill is monitored for internat management purposes. The
cash generating units have been identified based on the lowest levels at which goodwiill is
monitored for internal management purposes.

The CGUs carrying amount for 2018 was calculated without the assets and liabilities of the
automotive division that was sold for USD 105 million as of February 27, 2019.

The recoverable amounts of the Business Units have been determined based on a value in
use calculation using discounted cash flow projections. Management engaged an external
appraiser to assist in the preparation of the valuations. The Group's cash flow forecast has
been derived from the most recent financial budget approved by management and the
board of directors adjusted for expected growth for the following years, based on growth
rates in each CGU. In line with the exclusion of the assets and liabilities of the automotive
division from the CGUs carrying amount calculation, the recoverable amount of the CGUs
was estimated excluding the automotive division future cash Hows.

The carrying value of goodwill by CGU at 31 December, and the key management
assessments are as follows:

Average Weighted

revenues EBITDA  Average Cost

2018 2017 growth rate' margins? of Capital

CGU Group $:000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
loT Services 6,016 6,016 16.2% 20% 18%
loT Products 13,645 14,819 8.2% 16% 15%
i R 11 1 A L L T P R S |

t Represent over five-year period.
2 Represent the rate by the end of the five-year period covered by the forecasts.

The Group tests goodwillforimpairment annually or more frequently if there are indications
that they might be impaired.

Impairment in loT products CGU:

In 2018, following the shutdown of the activity in Hamburg site the Group booked an
impairment of the goodwill related to Stollman workforce in Hamburg site of $1.1 million.
This amount is part of exceptional expenses related to restructuring, see note 5h.

In the end of 2017, the Group booked an impairment of the goodwill of $1.6 million, related
to GainSpan worklorce in the San-Jose site, following the shutdown on San-Jose site {$1.3
million}andrelated to group activity thatwas declared as “end of life” as part of restructuring
program [$0.3 million).

The main assumption for each CGU is sales growth which is based on recent history and
expectations of future changes‘in the market.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminuen

For the year ended 31 December 2018

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

Indevelopingits projections, management have takenintoaccount the CGU's past performance
as well as external forecasts of growth in the loT industry. The key assumptions used in
determining value in use are:

Revenue

Management forecast mainly relies on external forecasts of growth in the loT industry.
A double-digit annual growth rate is expected over the next five years for the entire m2m
market, with higher rates among the services CGUs [loT preducts 10.2%, loT Services 17%l.
The long-term growth rate applied for all CGU's was 3%.

Expected changes in operating costs

Changes in operating costs have been forecasts based on the current and expected future
infrastructure required to execute the assumed revenues.

EBITDA margins

EBITDA margins are expected to reach 14% (loT products) and 20% (loT services] by the end of
the five-year periad covered by the forecasts.

Sensitivity analysis
Management has performed sensitivity analyses which include lower growth rates applied to
the revenue forecasts of the CGUs and different discount rates.

Services CGU is sensitive to the short-term revenue growth rate. Management used a lower
growth rate than the prior year, but this includes some market outperformance. However,
using a market growth rate does not indicate an impairment. Management expect that this
growth rate will be achieved over the forecast period.

Areduction of the average revenue growth rate by more than 4% would resultinan impairment
in goodwill but given that the discount rate applied was reflective of the market risk of the CGU
and other mitigating actions that would be applied, management does not consider any
impairment charge to be required.

Trademark Software Total
COMPANY $°000 .$'000 $°000
COST
1 January 2017 7,270 729 7,999
Additions - - -
Translation adjustments 712 149 861
31 December 2017 7.982 878 8,860
Transfer - 824 824
Translation adjustments ) {423) . (115} (538)
3December20le, . . . 589 . - WBBL . 946
AMORTISATION
1 January 2017 (6,532) {666 {7.198)
Charge for the year (772) (63) 1835)
Disposal - 2 2
Translation adjustments [678) (146) (824)
31 December 2017 (7.982) (873) {8.855)
Charge for the year - {4) {4)
Disposal - - -
Transfer . - {824) (824)
Transtation adjustments L 423 .. W5 538
3T December,2018; e (TSB9)  (R5BSN - (19:445)
Net book value . . - .
31 December 2017 - 5 5
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Landand Office Leasehold

Buitding®? Computers equipment Vehicles Improvements Total
GRoOUP $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
COST
1 January 2017 5,703 10,213 33,550 652 1,517 51,635
Net additions 50 1,709 8.043 83 205 10,090
Transfer - 566 {566) - - -
Disposals - (1.195) (1,559) 337 (1181 {3,207}
Arising from acquisitions - 57 226 - 15 298
Translation adjustments 789 451 4,293 9 63 5.605
31 December 2017 6,542 11,801 43,987 407 1,684 64,421
Net additions' - 984 6,175 76 203 7,438
Transfer - (670} 2,164 - 45 1,559
Disposals - (2,816) (2,719) (150} (187) {5.872)
Translation adjustments i - {296) (290) . (1,942) - . 132) (2,560l
FNDecember,2018;- -~ B2 9009, W7reesi 333 W733) . (641986
DEPRECIATION
1 January 2017 (714) {7,609} (19.621] {235) (690} 128,869]
Charge for the year 143) {1,629} (6,682) {931 (218] {8,765)
Transfer - (196) 196 - - -
Disposals - 1,117 1,460 24 59 2,877
Translation adjustments 1107} (319 12,658) {4) {31) 13,119)
31 December 2017 (964) (8,636] (27,305) (91) (880) (37,876)
Charge for the year (150) [1,089) (7,384) 159) (223 (8,905)
Transfer (15) 55 11,527) - [72) (1.559)
Disposals - 2,670 1.968 67 113 4,818
Translation adjustments ) . 48 183 1,389 ) - . 17 1,637
37Decembena08 o doBal . lesT)r . 320859 T i083a. ¢ (04SN . - [lati8E5)
Net book value . 3 _— ; : -
TIDSeeBeRa0Ts, L ags;  Zdval . kwosy - @s0 © GEm . 7301
31 December 2017 5,578 3,165 16,682 316 804 26,545
1 Netofgrantto receive. 2018: $854k. [2017: $77k) .
2 The Group has pledged the buildings as collateral for the martgage toan received to fund the purchase of these assels. See atso note 26.
3 chard?ng liens on certain of the Group's assels see nole 23.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuep

For the year ended 31 December 2018

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investmentsin

subsidiaries

COMPANY < $'000
1 January 2017 81,696
Additions! 5,017
Additions - subsidiaries’ share-based payment charge* 3,529

1 January 2018 90,042
Additions! 2175
Disposal? (1,737)
impairment? (3,612}
Additions - subsidiaries’ share-based Rwent_charge‘__ - . e 5131

1 In December 2018 there was addilional Investment in Tetit Wireless Solutions GmbH.
During 2017 there was additional lavestment i TeliiWi‘éei‘ess solutions HKin the amaunt of $5 million and $17,000 investment in Tetit Taiwan.

2 Duri'ng 2018 the Company sold the investment in Te‘(it Qulomuliia Solutions S.a.rL. to Telit Automotive Solutions NV, for an amount of $2.7 million, as part of the
reorganization of the automotive business. T b '

3 During 2018 the company recorded an impai-grrlem of 51.5 mﬂ!ioni.in respect of Dai Tetecom Holdings (2000} Lid. and $2.1 million in respect of GlobalConect Ltd

‘investment.

4 For turther information in respect of share-based payment see note 25.

Details of the subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Name of company

Country of incorporation and
principal place of business

_ Registered office

Principal activity in 2018

Telit AUtomotive Solutions France "2 Esplanade Anton Philips ‘ Development services and presales

S.arl® Esplanade Effiscience - 14440 of m2m wireless products
COLOMBELLES .

Telit Wireless Solutions Srl' Italy Via San Nicola da Tolentino 1/5, No trading activities

("TWS") 00187, Rome (ltaly)

Telit Communications SpA' Italy 5/b, Via Stazione di Prosecco, Development, sale and distribution

("Telit EMEA") Sgonico [TS) 34010, Italy of m2m wireless products and

services

Telit Wireless Solutions GmbH'  Germany Friesenweg 4 Development services and presales
Haus 14, 2nd floor and distribution of m2m wireless
22763 Hamburg products and services

Telit Wireless Solutions, Inc.! United States N 5425 Page Road, Suite 120 Development, sale and distribution

{“Telit Americas”) Durham, NC 27703 of m2m wireless products

Telit Communications Spain SL'  Spain Paseo della Castellana 141, Presales of m2m wireless products
Planta20 28046 Madrid, Spain

Telit Wireless Solutions Brazil ~AV. Paulista, 1776. 10tk floor, "~ Sale and marketing of m2m

Tecnologia E Servicos Lida?j

__...SuiteC.SaoPaulo,SP . __ .

. wireless products and services

Telit Wireless Solutions Co Ltd"
{"Telit APAC"}

- Republic of Korea

12th FL., Shinyoung Securities Bld.,
6, Gukjegeumyung-ra8-gil,
Yeongdeungpo-gu, Seoul, 150-884,
Korea

Development, sale and distribution
of m2m wireless products and
services

Dai Telecom Holdings (2000) Israel 10 Habarzel Street Tel Aviv 6971014 No trading activities

Ltd.! Israel '

Telit Wireless Solutions Ltd. Israel 10 Habarzel Street Tel Aviv 6971014 Development of m2m wireless

("Telit Israel”)’ Israet products and services; and other
. . . _intra-Group services

Telit Wireless Services Ltd? Israel " 10 Habarzel Street Tel Aviv 6971014 Distribution and sale of m2m

Israel wireless products and services
GlobalConect Ltd' Israel 10 Habarzel Street Tel Aviv 6971014 No trading activities

Israel
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Name of company

Country of incorporation and
principal place of business

. Registered office

Principal activity in 2018

Telit Wireless Solutions [Pty)

Ltd:2’

Republic of South Africa

Prism Office Park Building 1, Ruby
Close, Fourways, Gauteng, 2121

Distribution of m2m wireless

products

Telit Wireless Solutions Hong

Kong Limited!

Hong Kong

Rm 8 17/F. Greenfield Tower,
Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Distribution ol m2m wireless
products and services and provide
intra-Group services

Telit Communications Cyprus

Ltd?

Cyprus

" Arch. Makarios lI, Ave 3-7

6017, Larnaca, Cyprus

Intra-Group supply of m2m
wireless products and services

Telit Technologies [Cyprus] Ltd.2

Cyprus

Arch. Makarios Ill, Ave 3-7
6017, Larnaca, Cyprus

Development of m2m wireless
products and services

Telit Wireless Solutions
[Australia) Pty Limited?

Austratia

Tower 1, Level 2 495 Victoria Street
Chatswood NSW 2067 Australia

Presales of m2m wiretess products

Telit Automotive Salutions NV'4

(0.88 % is indirectly held)

Belgium

Interleuvenlaan 80 3001 Leuven,
Belgium

Development and intra-group sale
of m2m wireless products

Telit loT Platforms, LLC

United States

5300 Broken Sound Blvd.
Suite 150 Boca Raton, FL 33487
USA

Development and distribution of
m2m wireless services; and
intra-Group services

SecureWISE LLC

" United States

" 5300 Broken Sound Blvd.

Suite 150 Boca Raton, FL. 33487
USA

NOT ACTIVE

Telit Wireless Solutions China Room 807, East building of Coast Presales of m2m wireless

(Shenzen| Ltd 2 City, No. 3 Hai'De Avenue, NanShan, products, and other intra-Group
Shen Zhen services

Telit Wireless Solutions Japan  Japan Ebisu Garden Place Tower Presales of m2m wireless

KK! 18th Floor Ebisu 4-20-3 products, and other intra-Group
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo services

Telit Wireless Solutions China Room 13305, 498 Guoshoujing Road  Presales of m2m wireless products

{Shanghai) Ltd (formerly:
Shanghai Stotllmann

Communication Technology Co.,

Ltd.)2

Zhangjiang Hi-tech Zone Pudong,
Shanghai, P. R. China

and services, and other intra-Group
services

GainSpan Corporation?’

United States

359b North First Street, Sui\be 300

San Jose, CA 95134 USA

~ Development, sale and distribution

of m2m wireless products?

Telit Wirelass Solutions Taiwan

Limited? {formally GainSpan
Taiwan)

Taiwan

6F-3, No. 5, Sec. 2, Anhe Road, )
Da-An District, Taipei, Taiwian

Presales of m2m wireless products
and services, and other intra-Group
services

Telit Communications India
Private Limited?

India

#3E, Monarch Romani,

7th "C" Main, 3rd Block,
Koramangala Industrial Layout
Bangalore, 560034 India

Development of m2m wireless
products and services on behalf of
related-parties

All subs‘idiary undertakings are 100% owned:; their respective share capital is made up solely of ordinary shares.

1 Indfca\es that the entity is held dfre_glly by the Company.
2 indicates that the entityis indirectly held by the Company.

3 Over the course of ZOi?. as part of the post-merger integration of GainSpan Corporation, trading activity was migraled to Teljt Wireless Solutions Inc. GainSpan
Carporation, as of 31.12.2017 has no trading activity.

4 The'invested was divested with aulomotive dealin February 2019 ~ sce note 29 lor subsequent event,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conrinuen

For the year ended 31 December 2018

16. INVENTORIES
Group
2018 2017
'$'000 '$°000
Finished goods 14,649 16,939

Raw matenalsand workln rogress 12,538 7 6,890
LT e S b Ll “sw_wazﬂav w“‘«‘-xﬁ‘:a;?s;’zf‘i_

The directors consider that there is no significant difference between the net book value and
replacement cost of stocks held. Inventories are stated net of provisions for slow moving and
obsolete items of $4,550,000 (2017 $8,433,000]). See note é for more detailed regarding
inventory provision as part of restructuring plan.

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

" Group Company
ﬁ;» 442018 2017 EERETE 2017
. 5000 $°000 : $'000
Within current assets: ¥ Tﬁ:’ﬂ ﬁ’,_t‘ﬁiﬂ,
Trade receivables' 3 100,410 L:»mﬁfalzaf 3,251

Income tax receivables
{see note 9]

Other current assets?

Due from Group undertakings §°¢
) Isee note 27]

.L'-,ngns aw‘i;}"iﬂmn 312537,

Wlthln non-current assets:  [MHEENTES, t‘:‘éz‘
Due from Group undertakings® LR uEgiTians - 22,117
_ Other long-term assels B R A i 909 209

R A e ";ﬁ:{(‘l“?ﬂ‘?}}. t%lfss 995%3{; Slu122:926

1 The average credit period on trade receivables in 2018 was 73 days (2017: 83 days). No
interest is charged on trade receivables unless previously agreed with the customer. The
Group has provided against receivables based on expected credit losses [ECL]) model. The
Group applied simplified approach in calculation ECLs, The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

2 Included within other current assets mainly prepaid expenses, supplier rebates and
advance payments lo suppliers of $7.8 miltion (2017: $7.8 million), VAT and other tax
authorities $2.5 million (2017: $2.3 million), government grant to receive of $5.2 million
{2017: $5.4 million) and remaining other receivables.

Inctuded in the Group's trade debtors balance are debtors with a carrying amount of
$20,623,000 (2017: $16,284,000) which are past due at the reporting date. The Group
recorded a provision for expected credit losses of $3,003,000 based on ECL provision
matrix using the expectad credit loss rate between 0.02% to 8%.

The average credit period of these receivables is 91 days (2017: 89 daysl.
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2017

10" _$'000
Aging of past due trade debtors
1-30 days ’!’fg;ms,asg 13,297
30-60 days JTEETI2.567 1,278
60-90days ERRTERR307, 209
1,500

Above 90days . . L o IEAZEE2555

Thedirectorsconsiderthatthe carryingamount of trade and other receivables approximates
their fair vatue.

The Group's trade receivables and other current assets are stated after allowances for

expected credit losses, an analysis of which is as follows:

2017+
$°000

At 1 January

1.093

Increase in allowance for the year

1.715

Amounts written off

108}

27

Translation ad ustments
At 31:0ecember¥ -##-"

* Calculated based on provisions of tAS 39 model lincurred loss model).

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
reporting date. The concentration of credit risk in the Group’s continuing activities is limited
due to the customer base bemg targe and unrelated, but the management reviews carefully
every past due amaount in light of the global economic situation. Accordingly, the directors
believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance for
doubtful debts: There are no allowances for credit losses recorded against other financial

assels.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to
measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with simitar loss patterns. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The company applied the same expected credit loss rates as the group to its receivables

which resulted in an immaterial expected credit loss allowance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminuen

For the year ended 31 December 2018

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS CONTINUED

3 The loans that the Company provided to its subsidiaries are as follows:

Loansto

subsidiaries

COMPANY $°000
1 January 2017 17,843
Additions' 3,000
Translation adjustments 1874
1 January 2018 ) 22,117
Additions’ 35,665
Repayment? {3,975}
Impairment? 1493}
Translation adjustments (111)
STDecember2018) . . .« L Y. 531803

1 During 2018 the Companyincreased the Loan to Telit Automotive Solutions NV.
During 2017 the Company increased the Loan to Telit Wireless Solutions inc.

2 Ouring 2018 there was a repayment of the Loan from Telit Wireless Solutions Inc in the amount of
$3 million. repayment The loan from Telit Automotive solutions SARL, in the amount of $1 million, was

repaid by assigning it to Telit Automotive Solutions NV.

3 During 2018 the Campany recorded an impairment related to the loan te Dai Tetecom Holdings [2000) LTD,
which represents the lifetime credit loss, as Dai Telecom Holdings (2000} LTD is non-trading. In respect of
other balances, considering the probability of default and loss given default, expected credit loss was not

material.

Interest on the Group's intercompany loans is at arm’s length. See note 27.

Alltoans are non-current as of 31 December 2018 and 2017.

18. CASH

The Group’s cash resources are as follows:

Company
2017 £ 2018 2017
i $'000 - 3§01 $°000
Deposits - restricted cash : 5 393 -
Cash and cash equivalents ] 41,908 . 11,568
Totat. DN BT . (42300 . (81419, . 441568

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term deposits with an
average period at inception until maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of

these assets approximates their fair value.

The Group's cash resources are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
it 18
Sterling g
US dollar ) 35,388 { -
Euro 39121
KRW 1,368
Brazilian Real 152
HKD 177 1.
ILS 339
Other 1. , 893. L
PR TR VI

106 Telit Communications PLC Annual Report 2018



19. ALLOTTED SHARE CAPITAL

2017
COMPANY AND GROUP ;000 $'000

Allotted and issued: g
190,612 ordinary shares of 1 penny each [2017: 474,137). ]

Allotted, issued and fully paid:
130,218,200 ordinary shares of 1 penny each
The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no rights to fixed income.

{2017: 130,217,154 ordinary shares of 1 penny each).

During 2018 the Company issued:

+ Noordinary shares issued as a resull of exercises of options and RSUs by employees {2017

1.898.065)

* 500,000 ordinary shares were allotted and issued to a broker in October 2018. 500,000 and
400,000 ordinary shares were allotted and issued to a broker in May and August 2017,
respectively, to be held for the fulfilment of options and RSUs exercises by employees. The
par value of these shares is paid to the Company once they are used to fulfil an option or
RSU exercise. As at 31 December 2018, the balance held by the broker was 190,612 ordinary
shares.

Share options

The number of outstanding options as at 31 December 2018 and at the date of this report was
12,933,958and 10,146,329 equal to 9.9% and 7.8% respectively, of the outstanding share capital
of the Company {9.0% and 7.2%, respectively of the outstanding share capital of the Company,
on a fully diluted basis).

Share premium account

The share premium account is used to record the premium on shares issued.

Translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from
the translation of financial statements of overseas subsidiaries.

Treasury shares fund

During 2015 and 2016 the Group repurchased 409,400 and 207,722 ordinary shares for a total
consideration of $1.9 million. During 2017 the Company used all these shares to cover the
exercise of options and RSUs by employees.

Dividend
No dividend was paid in 2018.

On 5 May 2017, the Company paid $5.682,000, for the financial year ended 31 December 2016,
of 4.9 cents per share.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continugn

For the year ended 31 December 2018

20. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A.Until 1 January 2007, employees of Telit's Italian subsidiaries received defined benefit
pension arrangements under which employees were entitled to retirement benefits based
on the accumulated contributions upon attainment of the retirement age or when leaving
the Company. Due to changes in applicabte retirement and severance benefit legistation in
ltaly, existing entitlements as at 1 January 2007 were frozen. For all new entitlements,
employees can elect to have their entitlements paid into a group defined contribution plan
or alternatively, into an ltalian government defined contribution plan for private sector
employees. The accrued benefit as at 1 January 2007 is unfunded. The actuarial present
value of this frozen defined benefit obligation were measured using the projected unit credit
method. The majority of the employees are still paid under the Italian government defined
contribution plan and the Company only accrues for the future termination indemnity.

B.The Group's liability for severance pay for Israeli resident employees is calculated pursuant
tothelsraeliSeverance Payl aw, basedonthe mostrecentsalariesandtermof employment,
and is mostly covered by payments to insurance companies and pension funds. Amounts
accumulated in the insurance companies and pension funds are not included in the financial
statements since the Group bears no material actuarial risk. The accrued severance pay
liabilityincluded in the balance sheetinrespect of the Israeli resident employees represents
the balance of the liability not covered by the above-mentioned deposits and / or insurance
policies for which a fund is maintained [in the Group’s name] as a recognised pension fund.,

The liability in respect of accrued severance pay for the Israeli resident employees is
$72.000 [2017: $52,000) and the charge to lhe statement of comprehensive income in the
year is an income of $20,000 (2017: $15,000 expenses).

C. The Group sponsors a partially funded Defined Benefit Plan in APAC. The plan provides a
benefit to employees on leaving employment. The benefit is determined regarding the
employee’s salary and service at the time of leaving employment. The Group's liability for
severance pay for APAC resident employees is calculated pursuant to the local severance
pay law, based on the most recent salaries and term of employment. The actuarial present
value of the related current service cost and curtailment loss was measured using the
traditional unit credit method.

D. The Group has liability for severance pay for Germany resident employees in the amount of
$456.000 (2017: $489.000) and for Beldgium and France resident employees of $184,000
(2017: $183,000). This liability was divested as part of the disposat of automative division in
February 2019, please refer to Note 29.

E.The |AS 19 disclosures in respect of the Group’s untunded defined benefit obtigations in
Italy and partially funded defined benefits obtigations in APAC are detailed further below.

Expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income $ng;:
Interest cost 107
Current service costs ; 637
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The amount included in the balance sheet arising from changes in the present value of the
defined benefit scheme obtigation for Telit EMEA and Telit APAC are set out below:

Present value of defined benefit scheme obligation
Y January
Current service costs and interest
Benefits paid by the Company
Actuarial gains on ptan liabilities - experience
Actuarial gains on plan liabilities - financial assumptions
Allocated to short-term liability
The effect of changes in foreign exchange

2017
$°000

4,281

744

{208

103

(126}

588

5176

12,628),

e

Present value of defined benem scheme asse\ lAPACl
31iDecember' L . e :

25148

Present value of defined benefit scheme asset (APAC)
{ January

Contributions by employer

Return on plan assets

Maintenance fee

Benefit paid

2017
$'000

1,822

619

38

(14}

(100}

263

_ The effect of changes in forelgn exchange
3 1‘December‘ § : :

Plan assets were valued at fair market value. The pension plan assets are quoted in an

active market and represent the fotlowing:

Government bonds and corporate bonds
Loans

Saving deposit

Other investments

Totaldefinéd benatitisthemeassen <. *

The financial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit

scheme were as follows:

Discount rate (ltaly / APAC)

Expected salary increase rate (ltaly)

Expected salary increase rate including inflation (APAC)
Inflation {italy)

{0 2017
) hm"h/;:wlﬂﬁ%?.% 0.88% /3.14%
2.63%

4.00%

% 1.50%

The experience adjustments arising on the plan liabilities at the balance sheet date, totalled
$68,782 (2017: $51,120) and the expected contributions to be paid in 2019 total $277,699.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coninuen

For the year ended 31 December 2018

21. CURRENT LIABILITIES

Company

2017 ! 2017

$°000 0 $'000
Short-term bank loans 22112 BEEANERE .
Current maturitie§ of ;
long-term loans 8,144 2,508
Total short-term borrowing
trom banks 30,256 2,508
Trade creditors (i) 104,012 B 2,999
Due to Group undertakings - 33,309
Provisions see also note 24) 708 -
Income tax payables
{see also note :7) 2,190 -
Contract liabilities
[deferred income) 1.769 -
Accruals and other current
liabitities (i) 26,415 . 1,858

R ’fﬁbsmsogﬁiaf BB 23K WA GIANETh

gTotalécur_rentrliabili‘i'iegst RS

The direclors consider that the carrying amount of short-term borrowings, trade payables
and other current financial liabilities approximates to their fair value.

1i) The average credit period on purchases of certain goods in 2018 was 126 days 12017: 137 days}:No interestis-
charged on the trade payables. The Group has linancial risk management policies in place Lo ensure that all:
payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

1) Malnly consists of current liabilities related to employees of $13.2 mittion [2017: $14.3 miliionl and accrued
expenses of $14 million (2017;:$10.8 million] of which $2.4 million related to restructuring ptan [2017: $2. 7|A
Also includes $0.9 million for VAT and other tax authorities [2017: $1.1 mnlhunl

22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Legal proceedings

1. Claims filed by M2M Solutions LLC (“M2M")

On August 26, 2014, M2M Solutions filed a Complaint in the United States District Court for (he
District of Delaware against the Company and Telit Americas, alleging that they infringed one
of M2M’s patents. On August 9, 2015, the Company was dismissed from the case, leaving Telit
Americas as the sole defendant. In October 2015 Telit Ameficas filed Inter Partes Reviews
["IPR") in the U.S. Patent Office directed to the asserted patent in the 2014 case. The parties
agreed to stay the 2014 case, pending the outcome of the IPRs.

On March 6, 2017, the Patent Trial and Appeal Board'in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
determined that all claims for which an IPR had been instituted were invalid. From Qctober to
December 2017, the parties briefed invalidity of the remaining claims of the asserted patent.

On January 2, 2019, the court entered an Amended Scheduling Order for the case going
forward. Telit has produced supplemental core technical documents and producllon of sales
figures for the accused products, and Blackbifd has provided infringement contentions. Telit's
invalidity contentions are due April 12, 2019.

In the opinion of the Company’s management based, among other things, on the opinion of its

professional advisers, and as M2M has not disclosed the amount of damages it seeks in
relation to the 2014 Case, no prowsnon is considered necessary.
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2. Claim filed by Koninklijke KPN N.V.,, (“"KPN")

On January 30, 2017, KPN filed a Complaint in the United States District Court for the District
of Delaware against the Company and Telit Americas [the "Tetit Defendants”] and a number of
other parties, alleging infringement of one of KPN's patents, which had expired prior to the
filing.

The Defendants in the KPN suit filed a motion to have the asserted patent declared invalid as
a matter of law under 35 U.S.C. § 101. Ahearing on that mation was held on December 8, 2017.

By order dated March 22, 2018, the Court granted Telit a motion to dismiss the KPN litigation,
finding that the patent is directed to abstract subject matter.

On April 19, 2018, KPN filed a Notice of Appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the
Federal Circuit concerning the Court's Final Judgment.

3.0n May 24, 2016, Telit Wireless Services L.td. (“Telit Ltd.”) filed a statement of claim in
the Tel Aviv court against Ingeniorsfirman Sjoberg AB, a foreign Swedish Company
(“Ingeniorsfirman”).

Telit Ltd. is suing for damages from a breach of contract claim arises from a distribution
agreement entered into by Telit Ltd. and Ingeniorsfirman, in which Ingeniorsfirman ordered
from Telit Ltd in a total sum of ILS 583,290.

On January 1, 2017, Ingeniorsfirman delivered a statement of defence and counterclaim in the
Tel Aviv court against Teit Ltd., which claimed that Ingeniorsfirman had no choice but to cancel
the order of Kits and that Telit Ltd. breached its obligation to assist in publicizing and
advertising the product in the local market. The amount claimed is ILS 420,000.

On March 7, 2017, Telit Ltd. submilted a statement of defense to the counterclaim denying
Ingeniorsfirman’s claims and asked the court that Ingeniorsfirman post a bond in favour of
TelitLtd.in case the counterclaimisrejected. The courtruled in favour of Telit Ltd. and ordered
Ingeniorsfirman to post a bond in the amount of ILS 75,000 which was reduce by a court of
appeals in January 2018 to ILS 42,000.

The case is currently in the pretiminary proceedings stage and pretiminary hearing is set to
May 6, 2019.

Attempts to reach a settiement through mediation were not successful. In the opinion of Telit .

Ltd.'s management, supported by the opinion of its legal advisers, the counterclaim is without

merit and it is more likely than not that Telit Ltd. will be successful in its defense against it.

Therefore, no provision was recorded. ) ,
4. The Graup is currently involved in various tax assessment investigations in ltaly. Should a

case be brought by the Tax Administration inany of these, there could be a possible tax liability.

However, given the stage of these investigations, it is not possible to make a reliable estimate

of any potential liability at present.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminueo

For the year ended 31 December 2018

23. COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

Operating lease commitments

The Group had total outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as set out below:

Land and buildings Other
2017 JEEnnSrHo018 2017
s'auo g’k, $°000 $'000
m
Within one year 3,887 [»*{E:?:;ﬁ 478 952

In the second to fifth years

’Fq’ f:ﬁrﬂ'

3o Ay

inclusive : ,,;;"9.'41*,91. 8125 MBI G%s . 1055
Above fweyears ' E{'ﬁ:ﬁﬁ:&ma 584 FeascmpE 0 0 2

ez, é"i‘emﬁﬁ%z's% SR

Minimum lease payments
under operating leases charged
to the statement of {
comprehensive income for the |

year 1,170

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its
office properties.

Bank Facilities, Guarantees and liens

A.ln October 2016, the Company and some of its subS|d|ar|es entered into committed credit
facilities with HSBC Bank plc and certain of its affiliates ("HSBC ") and Bank Hapoalim B.M.
("BHI USA"] for an aggregate amount of $110 million (the “Facilities”).The Facilities consist
of a committed five year term credit facility for $40 million and a commiitted three year term
revolving credit facitity for $35 million - in total $75 million - with HSBC, and a committed
three year term revolving credit facility with BHI USA for $35 million.

The Company and those subsidiaries which entered into the Facilities provided guarantees,
not limited in amount, to HSBC and BHI USA and placed liens over certain assets, mainly
patents registered in the major territories where the Group does business pledged the
share capital of the main subsidiaries, as well as recording floating charges and negative
pledges, as typical for such borrowings.

Following the sale of the automotive in 27 February 2019, Telit has paid off all previous
credit facilities from HSBC Bank plc and its affiliates and Bank Hapoalim B.M. and the two
banks agreed to release all the pledges and guarantees.

B.The Company provides guarantees to certain banks in Italy to sustain long-term loans
granted by those banks to one of the Company's subsidiary. The guarantees are for a total
amount of $34.5 million (2017: $37.9 million) but shatl not exceed the amount of current
borrowings from these banks.

C. The Company provided guarantees, in the ordinary course of business, of up to $17.1 million

{2017: $17.1 million) to certain suppliers of the Group to sustain credit lines granted by the
suppliers to Group companies in respect of purchases actually made.
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24. PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. The Company’s management
does not expect that certain legal matters for which provision was recognised will be settled
within 12 months and therefore the provision for such legal matters was included in non-
current liabilities.

Warranties Tax Legal Other
{al (b) {c} (d) - Total
_...$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at
1 January 2018 220 488 - 923 | 1631
Utilized in the year 1187] - - - {187)
Provided in the year 950 - 980 501 2,441
Release in the year (188) - - - {188}

Exchange dmerences

B i T s St
Balancesa\[’w’g

PR g m@f*{;

S
31lDecemben 20185 iR 6 ‘3:‘ lv's’ f-i" 1373 LE
Classifiedas: "~ 7 o ) ] -

Current liabilities 802 466 986 - 2,254

Non- current llabllltles - l 373 1 373

a. The Group provides warranties on the sale of its loT products generally for a period of 12 to
18 months. The Group has provided for the estimated cost of replacement or repair of those
products on which it expects to receive warranty claims during that period. The actual cost
of warranty repair is dependent on the number of returns during the warranty period and
the nature of the repairs to be undertaken or the product replacement cost.

This provision is reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted for management’s best current
estimates, the judgmental nature of these'iterns means that future amounts settled may
differ from those provided. Durmg 2018 we received several warranty claims which led us
to change our provision method to be from a general one, covering general warranty risks
to an accrual on a case-by-case basis, where a provision is accrued when a warrant claim
or negotiations reach an advanced stage.

b. In December 2013 and November 2014 Telit EMEA received four VAT assessments from the
Italian tax authorities in the total amount of approximately €16.6 million mcludmg interest
and penalties {approximately $18.6 million], in relation to tax years 2004, 2005, 2006 and
2007. The assessments are wholly related to the Company’s discontinued EVAR business
unit which was divested in January 2008 and has no relation to the Company’s current
business. The appeals filed by Telit EMEA with the first level tax court, against these VAT
assessments, were upheld by the tax court in January 2015 (with respect to 2004) and in
December 2015 and the assessments were therefore annulled.

The Tax Office appealed the first level decisions and Telit EMEA filed its counter briefs
accordingly. In June 2017, the Regional Tax Court issued a favourable decision for Telit,
confirming the first level one, and annulled the tax assessments accordingly. In January
2018, the Tax Office appealed this decision before the ltalian Supreme Court. Telit has filed
its counter appeal and a hearing for the merits of the case has not yet been scheduled.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuep

For the year ended 31 December 2018

24, PROVISIONS CONTINUED

In August 2015, in parallel to the discussion about the main assessments mentioned above,
Telit EMEA received three penalty deeds from the Italian tax authorities in the approximate
aggregate amount of €5 million (approximately $6 million), which are related to the
abovementioned VAT assessments for tax years 2005, 2006 and 2007. Telit EMEA filed
appeals against such penalty deeds with the first level tax court and in March 2018 these
were rejected. In June 2018, Telit filed an appeal with the Regional Tax Court to appeal this
decision, and in July 2018, the Regional Tax Court of Trieste suspended the payment of the
amounts due, on the basis of the first level decision. In September 2018, the Itatian Revenue
Agency served Telit with payment notices for a total of approximately €4.2 mitlion. Since a
suspension was granted by the Regional Tax Court, the requested amounts were not due.
A hearing on the merits of the case was held in the Regional Tax Court in November 2018.
Since the decision on the appeal with respect to the penalty deed should not deviate from
the merits of the cases for 2005, 2006, 2007, the Regional Tax Court has decided ta suspend
litigation concerning the penalty deed until the Italian Supreme Court renders its‘decision
with respect to the merits of the VAT case.

c. Between 2007 and 2010, the Company and its ltalian subsidiaries were parties to several
agreements with Bartolini After Market Electronic Services Srl. ["BAMES”) and its
subsidiary Services for Electronic Manufacturing Sri. (SEMI, as disclosed in the Company's
financial statements for 2007 to 2010. BAMES went into liquidation in 2013. In 2016, the
Company became aware of a criminal investigation against, among others, its then CEOQ,
Mr. Oozi Cats, with respect to BAMES' insolvency.

In March 2018 the Company was informed that the public prosecutor intended to file a
criminal complaint against several people including Mr. Cats, subject to a preliminary
hearing which had been scheduled for 25 May 2018. In July 2018, Telit was informed that the
administrators to BAMES had taken steps to bring a civil claim against Telit - a civil liable
entity - regarding its involvement with BAMES.

In March 2019, Telit reached a settlement agreement approved by the court according to
which it will'pay, without any admission of tiability and against a-waiver of all civil claims
against Telit in this respect, an amount of €840,000 plus approximately €21,000 of legal
costs. This agreement has been entered into by Telit in order to bring certainty and closure
to the matter between the Group and the administrators of BAMES. The settlement fees
was paid in April 2019.

d. The Group is involved from time to time in various legal and other proceedings incidental to
the ordinary course of its business. Management believes, based on the opinions of the
legal advisers handling the different proceedings. that the provisions recorded in the
financial statements in relation to such legal and other proceedings are sufficient under the
circumstances, and that none of these proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, are
expected have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, financial position or
operating results. White this provision is reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted for
management’s best current estimates, the judgmental nature of these items means that
future amounts settled may differ from those provided. Since 2017, the accrual of this
provision was changed from a general one, covering general IP infringement risks to an
accrual on a case-by-case basis, where 3 provision is accrued when license negotiations
reach an advanced stage.
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group and Company operate a share-based option plan for executive diréciors, senior
managers and employees.

In 2018 and 2017 the Company granted options to employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries, as follows:

Exercise Exercise
price, price, as
Amount original amended*® Expiration
Dateofgrant granted [GBP) [GBP} Vesting schedule date
19/03/17 86,000 3.27 1.83 25% on 19/03/19 19/03/22
25% on 19/03/20
50% on 19/03/21
20/04/17 280,000 3.415 1583 25% on 20/04/19 20/04/22
25% on 20/04/20
50% on 20/04/21
04/10/17 2,176,660 183 25% on 10/04/18**  04/10/22
25% on 10/04/19
25% on 10/04/20
25% on 10/04/21
VT 53,333 183, 25% on 17/11/18 17/1/22

25% on 17/11/19
25% on 17/11/20
25% on 17/11/21
25% on 16/07/19 16/07/23
25% on 16/07/20
25% on 16/07/21
25% on 16/07/22
20/09/18 20,000 1.83 25% on 20/03/19 20/09/23
25% on 20/03/20
25% on 20/03/21
25% on 20/03/22

16/07/18 4,715,000

* On December 29, 2017 the Remuneration Committee repriced subslanhally all of the options granted to
specilic employees of the Company and its subsidiaries, with an exercise price greater than GBP 2.6, to
GBP 1.83. The'incremental fair value granted as aresult of this modification $111,572 whichis spread over the
remaining (ite.

The incrementat fair value granted as a result of these modifications was measured usmg Binominal model,
. which isih line with Group accounting policies.

From June 2014, substantially all options under the Company's share option plans are exertised onacashless
basis, whichis a mechanism according to which an option holder isissued such number of shares thatis equal
10 the spread between the exercise price and the market price of the shares on the day of exercise, and does
not pay the exercise price to the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuep

For the year ended 31 December 2018

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED
In 2018 and 2017 the Company granted Restricted Stock Units [RSUs] to employees of the

Company

and its subsidiaries, as follows:

Date of grant Amount granted

Vesting schedule

19/03/17

16,000

100% on 19/03/21

09/05/17

10,000

25% on 09/05/19
25% on 09/05/20
50% on 09/05/21

04/10/17

2,512,000

25% on 10/04/18**

25% on 10/04/19
25% on 10/04/20
25% on 10/04/21

06/1117

32,000

25% on 06/11/18
25% on 06/11/19
25% on 06/11/20
25% on 06/11/21

12/mn7

8,000

25% on 17/11/18
25% on 1711119
25% on 17/11/20
25% on 17/11/21

04/05/18

32,000

25% on 01/01/19
25% on 01/01/20
25% on 01/01/21
25% on 01/01/22

16/07/18

70,000*+*

25% on 16/07/19
25% on 16/07/20
25% on 16/07/21
25% on 16/07/22

20/09/18

48,000

25% on 20/03/19
25% on 20/03/20
25% on 20/03/21
25% on 20/03/22

50% will vest on the second anniversary of the Grant Date:

25% will vest on the third anniversary of the Grant Dale;

The remaining 25% will vest on the fourth anniversary of the Grant Date.

In respect of individuals whose employment or consultancy services for the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, began on or after 1 January 2017, their Grants will vest as foltows:

*** £0,000 (out of the 70,000} of the RSUs shall vest as follows: 25% are vested upon Grant; 25% shalt vest
& months from the grant date: 25% shall vest 15 months from the Grant date and 25% shall vest 24 months
from the Grant date,
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The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

Weighted average exercise

Number price [pancel

‘ 2018 2017 2018 2017
Outstanding at beginning of yeari 10,109,042  13,258.314 ! 2.08 1.88
Granted during the year | 4,735,000 2595993 | 1.71 1.84
Exercised during the year { 4 (2.689,050) ! - 1.51
Cancelled due to cashless ; ‘ j I
exercise during the year ! < 11,603,347} | - 1.48
Forfeited during theyear (4,533,084  1.452,868] : 191, 2.27
Outstanding at year end 10,310,958 10,109,042 1.95 2.08
Exercisableatyearend 4595916 2795194 1.98 2.05

The options outstanding at 31 December 2018 have an exercise price in the range of £1.71 to
£3.2750 (2017: £1.78 to £3.2750 ) and a weighted average contractual life of 2.18 years (2017:
1.68 years).

The number and weighted average exercise prices of RSUs are as follows:

Number

2018 2017
Outstanding at beginning of year 1 3:854,000 1,735,000
Granted during the year i 150,000 2,578,000
Exercised during the year { (778,500) (252,000)
Forfeitedduring theyear 1 1602,500) (207,000
((Outstanding atyear end 2,623,000 3,854,000
Exercisableatyearend R

The RSU's outstanding at 31 December 2018 have an exercise price of 1 pence and a weighted
average contractual life of 2.07 years (2017: 3.06 years).

The Group recognised a total expense of $3,659,000 in respect of equity settled share-based
paymenttransactions for the year ended 31 December 2018 {2017: $1,805,000). Of this amount,
an income of $1,472,000 is attributed to the Company {2017: expense of $1,724,000). This
includes reversal of unvested options charge relating to the former CEQO of the company and
other employees made redundant as part of restructuring ($2,056,000).

The fair value of services received in return for share-based options is measured by reference
to the fair value of the share-based options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
services received is measured using the Black-Scholes pricing model except for the grant
dated 16 September, 2014, which is measured using the Monte Carlo pricing model, as only
this grant has market performance conditions associated with it.

In 2016 the Company changed the valuation model from Black-Sholes to Binominal model to
reflect a possibility of early exercise of the option before the end of the option’s life.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminued

For the year ended 31 December 2018

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

The assumptions usedin the measurement of the fair values at the grant date of the options

are as follows:

Grantdate

19 March, 2017
19 March, 2017
RSU’s

20 Aprit, 2017
09 May, 2017
RSU’s

04 October, 2017
04 October, 2017
RSU's

06 November,
2017 RSU's

17 November,
2017

17 November,
2017RSU's

05 May, 2018
RSU's

16 July, 2018
RSU’s

16 July, 2018
20 September,
2018

20 September,
2018 RSU's

Share Exercise Expected Option Risk Dividend Fair value
price price  volatitity life freerate yleld peroption
{pence} [pence) %] {years} %) {%]) (pence)
3.27 3.27 40 5 0.6 2 071
3.27 0 40 5 0.6 2 1.98.
3.42 3.415 40 5 0.52 2 0.70
3.63 0 40 5 0.52 2 — 2.44,
1.77 1.83 ' 53 5 0.79 0 0.56!;
1.77 -0 53 S 0.79 0 1.37
1.6%9 0 54 5 0.76 0 1.31
1.825 1.83 54 5 0.76 0 0.60
1.825 0 54 5 0.76 0 1.41
1.619 0 56 5 1.09 0 1.31
1.7 0 56 5 1.03 0 1.41
1.71 1.7 56 5 1.03 0 0.57
1.60 1.83 56 5 1.20 0 0.48
1.60 0 56 5 1.20 0 1.31

Expected volatility is estimated by considering historic average share price volatility.

A charge to the consolidaled income statement in respect of any RSU’s or options granted to
employees are recognised and spread over the vesting period of the RSU’s or options based
on the fair value of the RSU’s or options at the grant date, adjusted for changes in vesting

conditions at.each balance sheet date.

These charges have no cash impact.
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26. BORROWINGS
Company
. 2018 2017
dg& $'000 '$'000

e

Secured ~ at amortised cost
Current maturities

of long-term loans CH 2,508
Other long-term loans . 9 .. 16,664,
: N2 .

b,

Unsecured - at amortised cost

Short-term bank loans
and other borrowings

Due to Group Undertakmgs

Dlsclosed in the funancml
statements as:

Current borrowings
Non-current borrowings

L SRSy ) v«

30.256 2.508
42,203 q 16.664
- i‘;@‘?@ﬁ%u .{JX\&‘MSJ FETARIGAT2

Group Company
%’; ,z ' 2017
. $000
Borrowings breakdown m VL ”’m
Working capital borrowinﬁ.‘ ! TUHLILT -
Long-term loan? B4 _z}r20‘033. ] 19172
Governmental loan? 15422:862 24,657 {"'"r"'";:a’;‘.‘zf \ -

Mortgageloan‘~ . LT 993 L. . 2,339 (KR gl
s WW%% AR R o

[ Y s [ rp—— pommeayovgunpantt)

1 Short-term borrowings, less thanone year, based on committed credit facilities used for working capitat. The
credit facilities of up to $70 million bear interest at a rate of 2.20% t0 3.70%.

2 Representing long-term loans from HSBC in the amount of $16.6 mitlion with interest at a rate of LIBOR plus
2.95% and is being repaid in 7 half year instalments thal commenced in October 2018. In December 2018 Lhe
group failed to meet the EBIT covenant from HSBC and therefore presented the full amount of the toan in
current liabilities. Following the automotive transactian comptetion, this loan was lully repaid in February
2019. Long-term loans from banks in haly of $3.4 million with an interest rale of Euribor 6 months plus +
5.50% and is repayable in 4 semi-annual instalments that will commence in Decémber 2020.

3 chresenung preferential long-term loans (il for $19 miltion with fixed-rate of 0.5% and is repayable in 14
semi-annual instalments that commence in December 2016, supported by the Italian MISE (Ministry ot
Economic Development) to devetop an innovative platform for the application of M2M technologies and, il for
$3.9 million with a fixed-rate of 0.80% and is repayable in 16 semi-annualinstalments that will commenced in
December 2019, supported by the Ministry of Trade and Commerce in ltaly, provided in cennection with the
Group's business development program in ftaly. The loans are initially recognised at fair value and
subsegquently measured at amortised cost.

4 Representing a preferential rate loan of $2.0 million from a regional fund in ltaly provided in connection with
the Group’s acquisition of the campus used for the Company’s main R&D facility in Trieste, Italy. The mortgage
loan is denominated in Euro, attractsiinteresl at a rate of 80% of Euribor 6 months, with a minimum interest
rate of 0.85%",and is repayable over 15 years in semi-annual instalments that commenced in Junc 2012. The
loan is initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,

The directors believe that the credit facilities will remain available to the Group in the
foreseeable future and that therefore the Group will be abte to continue to fund its operations
from these credit facilities.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management is an integral part of the way the Group is managed. The Board
establishes the Group’'s financial policies and the Chief Executive establishes objettivesin line
with these policies.

Itis the Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments is undertaken.
In the course of its business the Group is exposed mainly to financial market risks and credit
risks. Financial market risks are essentially caused by exposure to foreign currencies and

interest rates.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Foreign
1 January Cash exchange 31 December
2018 flows Reclassification' movement Other 2018

Short-term
borrowings
from banks 22112 6,895 - (685 13,880} 24,442
Long-term
loans including
current

50,347 14,710 1,620 [2.369) - 44,888

72459, 2485 - 0 w20 (3:054) (3:860) . . /VEJ

1 This reclassification retates to preferential loans which are initially recognised at fair value. These loans
therefore contain a benelit element which is recorded within ‘other current assets’ until the prelerential loan
is received. at which point it is net-off against the loan balance. See Note 26.

2 The Group ctassifies interest paid as cash flows from operating activities.

3 This relates to non-cash expenses related to the effective interest rate on preferred loans [see Note 81, and
the amortisation of loan arrangement fees.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates in a wide number of geographic areas. While change in currency might
affect our revenue and gross prolil, we estimale that the impact on our operating profils is nat
material. Foreign exchange exposure arises where the Group's companies transact in a
currency different from their functionat currency.

The Group uses short-term borrowings from banks in the same foreign currency of those
transactions to reduce the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by using the foreign currency forward contracts
for operational transactions in Euro that are expected to occur within a maximum 12-month
period. During 2018 the Group entered into forward contract for 1-3 months of its expected
foreign currency transactions in Euro. The Group recognised a loss of $675,000 from these
transactions in 2018.
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The carrying amount of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date,
denominated in currency different to the functional currency of the entity in which such
monetary assets and liabilities are held is as follows:

Liabilities
2017 ) 2017
i $'000 $'000
US Dollar [ 57,330 33,463
Euro 2.768 634
iLS 318 1,733
Other 435 83

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10% change in US dollar against the
respective foreign currencies. 10% represents management's assessment of the passible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date has been determined based on the change taking place at
the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period.

2017

000 $'000

Impact on profit or loss of a 10% decrease B8 2,694
Impact on profit or loss of a 10% increase S (818) (2.494)

The impact on equity would be equal and opposite of the impact on the profit or loss.

Interest rate risk

interest rate risk comprises the interest cash flow risk resulting from short-term borrowings
at variable rates. The Group's working capital is funded through short-term borrowings at
variable rates of interest. Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
depositrates. As a result, material fluctuations in the market interest rate can have an impact
on the Group's financial results.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates
at the reporting date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial
year and held constant throughout the reporting period. A 1% change is used when reporting
intereslt rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the possible change in interest rates.

At the reporting date, if interest rates had been 1% lower / higher and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's net loss would decrease / increase by $761,000 {2017: $7461,000};
there is no material impact upon equity. This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group, and arises principally from the Group's trade
receivables. \

The Group’s trade receivables are derived from sales to customers in America, EMEA and
APAC. The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers. Allowance for
expected credit losses'is determined using simplified approach. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. For further details
please see Note 17.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Credit risk associated with the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash deposits
is managed by placing funds on deposit with internationally recognised banks with suitable
credit ratings.

Except as detaited in the following table, the carrying amount of financial assets recorded in
the financial stalements, net of any allowances for losses, represents the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk:

Maximum credit risk:

Company
L 2017 { . . 2018 2017
$°000 | ) $'000
Group
Cash and cash equivalents 41,908 11,568
Deposits - restricted cash 393 -
Trade receivables 100,410 {. - 3,251
Due from Group undertakings - 61,737
Other long-term asset 1,909 { 209
Loan [or investment in) to B
subsidiaries L ~ =1 - 22,717
Guarantee provided to banks on | - o
subsidiary’s borrowings -5 - 37,908

Activities that give rise to credit risk and the associated maximum exposure include, but not
limited to:

» making sales and extending credit terms to customers and placing cash deposits with ather
enlities. In these cases, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the
related financial assets;

« granting financial guarantees to lending banks which may be called in the event of failure by
a subsidiary to repay amounts due to the lending bank when due.

In this case, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount the entity woutd
have to pay if the guarantee is called on, which may be greater than the amount recognised as
a liability as at 31 December 2018 where such guaranteed borrowings were not fully drawn at
that date.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of
Directors, The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking
facilities, by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and tiabilities.
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The foltowing table details the Company's and the Group's remaining contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities excluding interest that will
accrue to those liabilities.

Group
JAX 0183 — 2017 .
X w lEﬁt’e’d ST SR S Weighted
Ly AR S . : average
effective
interest Lessthan  More than
Ayeari rate 1year 1year
»X‘s 200 % $°000 $°000
Trade payables § - 104,012 -
Other current [5F7%
liabilities - 28,184 -
Fixed rate 5.89% 4,752 19.905
Variable rate 3.85% 25,504 22,298

Company
; . L2007 e
: Weighted e
average
effective
interest Less than More than
rate 1year 1year
G % $'000 $°000
Trade payables L e - 2999 -
Other current 'FF% - rﬁ&
. aate W
liabilities St ~s?:£m3 A5, = ¢ 1858 -

Variable rate 1&5‘45% j*ﬁmusL P 4.40% 2,508 16,664
Due to group : ' '“W‘

undertakings
Guarantees

- 33,309 -
el - 37,908

Fair value of financial instruments

The financial instruments held by the Group are primarily comprised of non-derivative assets
and liabilities (non-derivative assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts
receivable and other receivables; non-derivative liabilities include bank loans, trade accounts
payable, other payables and other current liabilities]. Due to the nature of these fjpancia\
instruments, there are no material differences between the fair value of the financial
instruments and their carrying amount included in the financial statements.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capltal to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as

. going concerns while maXImlsmg the return to stakeholders through the optlmlsanon of the
debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 26, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, regerves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the statement of changes in equity on page 64.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Gearing Ratio

The Group defines debt as both long and short-term borrowings as detailed in note 26. Equity
includes all capital and reserves of the Group attributable to the equity holders of the parent.

The Group's gearing ratio at the year-end is as follows:

2017

. $'000
Cash and cash equivalent 41,908
Restricted cash deposits ) ] 393
fotatgash T 42,307
Current borrowings (30,256)

Non-current borrowing
flotdtborrowings,

Nevdest - ST U £ 2
Shareholders’ equity 86,486
Net debt to equity ratio - {39.30%) (24.21%)

The Company is not subject ta any externally imposed capital requirement.

Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is uncbservable

As of 31 December 2018, the Company does not have any financial instruments at the Level 1,
tevel 2 and Level 3 categories.

The management assessed that fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables,
trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate borrowings are evaluated by the company based on

market interest rates. As at 31 December 2017 and 2018 the carrying amounts of loans were
not materially different from their calculated fair values.
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28. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Transactions with subsidiaries

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries represent related party transactions.
Transactions with subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation.

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

Related party transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are summarized below:
(al Trade receivable - See note 17.

[b) Trade payable - See note 21.

lc) Intercompany transactions:

2017

$°000

Royalties (i} 12,649
Revenues from sale of producls and services 5.956
Cost of sales oL .. 15,387)
Research and Development {ii) (381)
Selling and marketing (iii) Y9.74) (5,324)
General and Admiinistrative [ii) 51239) (3,309)
Other expenses (iv} 97 {838)
Interestincome AT 1116
Guaranlee fees SR T 867

Al The Company s'.l'gned a license agreement with some of its subsidiaries according to wt:)ich the subsidiaries
shall pay royalties of a certain percentage of their revenues in consideration of their;use sl the Company's
trade name and trademarks. )

(il Services provided to the Company by related parties include research and devélopment expenses and
general and administrative support services. ’ -

] Marketing and sates support services. Global Marketing services are provided to the Company in support ol
the Telit brand.

liv) Other expensesincludes pro!‘il of $1.2mfromsale of investment, $2.2mloss fromimpairment of investment
{see note 15).

In addition, the Company signed an agreement with certain subsidiaries for allocation of
shared costs. .

Transactions with key management personnel

A.Key management personnel are determined as the executive directors-of Telit
Communications PLC. Details of transactions with the Directors and their compensation
are detailed in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 36 to 42. There are no
outstanding balances as at the year end.

B.0On August 1, 2011, the Company waived any and all claims it then had or in the future may
have against the Company’s Chief Executive, Oozi Cats in relation to certain indemnification
letters provided to the Company by Mr. Cats and to any other tax related claims in connection
with Mr. Cats’ service and employment agreements. Pursuant to the indemnification
letters, Mr. Cats had personally undertaken to satisfy in full certain potential tax liabilities
if applicable. The underlying potential liability stems from possible tax exposures relating
ta Mr. Cats’ past and current employment and service arrangements. After due and careful
consideration of the matters, our Board of Directors authorized the release of Mr. Cats from
any liability under those indemnification letters.

Telit Communications PLC Apnual Report 2018

125



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminueo

‘For the year ended 31 December 2018

29. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

a. Automotive deal - On 13 July 2018, Telit Communications PLC agreed to sell its automotive
business to TUS International Limited ["TUS"). On 27 February 2019 the sale was completed
for a total consideration of $105.0 million. The company has received $67.5 million in cash,
including $1 million on account of the cash and working capital position of the disposed
business, and has granted TUS a short-term vender loan of $38.5m (“Vendor Loan").

TUS repaid this vendor loan in full on 15 April 2019.

The transaction required a reorganisation of the automotive division and within the Group
and transfer of the IP, assets and employees who supported the automotive business in
R&D and sales teams in several countries, this reorganization has been substantially
completed in January 2019.

As of 31 December 2018, the net book value of the net assets, excluding working capital
items, of the disposed business units is approximately $42 million. This includes Intangible
assels of approximately $34 million. The net working capital items will be finally determined
in May 2019 and will be added to the net consideration.

The capital gain before tax is expected lo be approximately $55m and will be recordedin the
financial statement of first hall of 2019.

b. BAMES settlement - Between 2007 and 2010, the Company and its ltalian subsidiaries
were parties to several agreements with BAMES and its subsidiary Services for Electronic
Manufacturing Srl. [SEM), as disclosed in the Company’s financial statements for 2007 to
2010. BAMES went into liquidationin 2013. In 2014, the Company became aware of a criminal
investigation against, among others, its then CEO, Mr. Oozi Cats, with respect to BAMES’
insolvency.

In March 2019, Telit reached a settlement agreement approved by the court according to
which it will pay, without any admission of liability and against a waiver of all civil claims
against Telit in respect, an amount of €840,000 plus approximately €21,000 of legal costs.
This agreement has been entered into by Telit in order to bring certainty and closure to the
matter between the Group and the administrators of BAMES. The settlement fees were
paid in Aprit 2019.

For more details see note 24c.
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GLOSSARY

3GPP

3rd Generation Partnership Project, a collaboration between groups of telecommunications associations, known as the
Organizational Partners. 3GPP standardization encompasses Radio, Core Network and Service architecture.

AEP

Application enablement platform a form of platform-as-a-service meant to enable a developer to rapidly deploy an loT
application or service without worrying about scale-out or scate-up faclor.

BLE

Bluetooth low energy also known as Smart Bluetooth — a wireless persanal area network lechnology -

cop

Connected Device Platform. An laT connectivity management platform that enables entérprises’ lo effectlvely manage
connectivity ona global scale lhroughoul the full device lifecycle.

R

Dead Reckoning the process of calculating one’s current position by using a prevnously determined position, or fix, and
advancing that position based upon known or estimated speeds over elapsed time and course.

GNSS

._applications.

Global Navigation Satellite Sys}te?n lGNSSl"réEei\fé’r's.“using GPS, GLONASS, Galileo or Beidou system, are used in many

Industry 4.0

The current trend of automation and data exchange in manufacturlng technolog:es It mcludes cyber physmal syslems the
Internet of things and cloud computing.

foT

The Internet of Things is the inter-networking of physical devices, vehicles, also referred to as “connected devices” and smart
devices”, buildings, and other items ~ embedded with electronics, software, sensors, actuators, and network connectivity that
enable these objects to cotlect and exchange data. .

HoT

Industrial Internet, lloT incorporates machine learning and big data technology harnessing lhe sensor dala machlne lo-
machine {(M2M) communication and automation technologies that have existed in industrial settings for years.

LTE

Long-Term Evolution is a standard for high-speed wireless communication for mobile phones and data terminals, based on
the GSM / EDGE and UMTS / HSPA technologies.

3GPP release 12(2015) marked the introduction of MTC [Machine Type Communications| LTE standards, essentially bifurcating
LTE solutions in two categories:

LTE LOW CAT - Focused on MTC/ |oT applications ‘lower throughput’ with ‘Low Cost’ and ‘Lower Energy Consumption’,
LTE HIGH CAT - higher and higher throughput’ based on Carrier Aggregation (2CC,3CC and even 4CC) CC (Carrier Component).

NB-loT

Narrow Band loT - a LPWA Network [LPWAN)] radio technology standard that has been developed to enable a wide range of
devices and services to be connected using cellular telecommunications bands. NB-loT is a narrowband radio technology
designed for the Internet of Things (loT), and is one of a range of Mobile loT (MloT} technologies.

LTE CAT-M

LTE-CAT M |s part of the 3GPP LTE Release 13 Advanced Pro standard and is intended for narrowband LTE applications such
as mobile healthcare applications and wearables that require a low power network with widespread coverage. LTE CAT-M
competes with other low-power connectivity options such as Wi-Fi, Bluetooth, ZigBee, and Zwave.

LPWA

Low Power Wide Area a type of wireless telécommunication network designed to allow long range communications at a low
bit rate among things [connected objects), such as sensors operated on a battery.

MNO

Mobile Network Operator - also known as a wireless service provider, wireless carrier, cellular company, or moblle network
carrier, is a provider of services wireless communications that owns or controls all the elements necessary to sell and deliver
services toan end user including radio spectrum allocation, wireless network infrastructure, back haulinfrastructure, billing,
customer care, provisioning computer systems and marketing and repair organizations. -

MVNO

Mobile Virtual Network Operator - a wireless communications services provider that does not own the W|reless network
infrastructure over which the MVNO provides services to its customers. An MVYNO enters into a’business agreement with a

._mobile. network operator to obtain bulk access to network services at wholesale rates, then sets retail prices independently.

PLC

A programmable logic controller, or programmable controller is an industriat digital computer which has been ruggedised
and adapted for the control of manufacturing processes.

Wi-Fi

A technology for wireless local area networking with devices based on the IEEE 802.11 slandards 802.11 is the “radio
frequency” needed to transmit Wi-Fi.
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